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The 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of 1st Financial Services Corporation will be held at 1000 a.m on

Tuesday May 26 2009 at the Thomas Auditorium in the David Sink Jr building at Blue Ridge Community College
located at 100

College Drive Flat Rock North Carolina

The purposes of the meeting are

Election of Directors To elect four directors each to serve three-year term

Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation To vote on non-binding advisory resolution to endorse and

approve compensation paid or provided to our executive officers and our executive compensation policies and

practices

Proposal to Ratify the Appointment of Independent Accountants To vote on proposal to ratify the

appointment of Brown Edwards Company LLP as our independent accountants for 2009 and

Other Business To transact any other business properly presented for action at the Annual Meeting

At the Annual Meeting you may cast one vote for each share of our common stock you held of record on April 20
2009 which is the record date for the meeting Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR the election of

each of the four nominees for director named in this proxy statement and FOR each of the other two proposals

You are invited to attend the Annual Meeting in person However ifyou are the record holder of your
shares of our common stock we ask that you appoint the Proxies named in the enclosed proxy statement to vote

your shares for you by signing and returning the enclosed proxy card or following the instruction in the proxy
statement to appoint the Proxies by Internet even ifyou plan to attend the Annual Meeting if your shares are
held in street name by broker or other nominee only the record holder of your shares may vote them for

you 80 you should follow your brokers or nominees directions and give it instructions as to how it should vote

your shares Doing that will help us ensure that your shares are represented and that quorum is present at

the Annual Meeting Even ifyou sign proxy card or vote by Internet you may still revoke it later or attend
the Annual Meeting and vote in person

This notice and the enclosed proxy statement and form of appointment of proxy are being mailed to our
8hareholders on or about April 30 2009

By Order of the Board of Directors774
Gregory Gibson

Chief Executive Officer

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT
WHETHER YOU OWN ONE SHARE OR MANY YOUR PROMPT COOPERATION

IN VOTING YOUR PROXY CARD IS APPRECI143rIL
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ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

General

This proxy statement is dated April 30 2009 arid is being furnished to our shareholders by our Board of Directors in

connection with our solicitation of appointments of proxy in the enclosed form for use at the 2009 Annual Meeting of our

shareholders and at any adjournments of the meeting The Annual Meeting will be held at the Thomas Auditorium in the

David Sink Jr building at Blue Ridge Community College located at 100 College Drive Flat Rock North Carolina at

1000 a.m on Tuesday May 26 2009

In this proxy statement the terms you your and similar terms refer to the shareholder receiving it The terms

we us our our company and similar terms refer to 1st Financial Services Corporation Our banking subsidiary

Mountain 1st Bank Trust Company is referred to as the Bank

At the Annual Meeting record holders of our common stock will consider and vote on proposals to

Elect four directors for three-year terms see Proposal Election of Directors on page

Approve non-binding advisory resolution to endorse and approve compensation paid or provided to our

executive officers and our executive compensation policies and practices see Proposal Advisory
Vote on

Executive Compensation on page 25

Ratify the appointment of Brown Edwards Company as our independent accountants for 2009 see Proposal

Ratification of Appointment of Independent Accountants on page 31 and

Transact any other business properly presented for action at the Annual Meeting

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR the election of each of the four nominees for

director named in this proxy statement and FOR each of the other two proposals

How You Can Vote at the Annual Meeting

Record Holders If your shares of our common stock are held of record in your name you can vote at the Annual

Meeting in one of the following ways

You can attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person

You can sign and return an appointment of proxy proxy card in the form enclosed with this proxy statement and

appoint
the Proxies named below to vote your shares for you at the meeting or you can validly appoint another

person to vote your shares for you or

You can appoint the Proxies to vote your shares for you by going
to our Internet voting website

httpsI/www.mountainlst.comlproxy and click on the link for proxyvoting When you are prompted for your

voter control number you should enter the number printed just
above your name on the enclosed

proxy card

and then follow the instructions you will be given You may vote by Internet only until 500 p.m EDT on May 25

2009 which is the day before the Annual Meeting date If you vote by Internet you need not sign and return

IMPORTAT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR

THE SHAREHOLDER MEETING TO BE HELD ON MAY 26 2009

The proxy statement and annual report to security
holders are available at

httpsllwww.mountainlst.comlproxy



proxy
card You will be

appointing
the Proxies to vote your shares on the same terms and with the same authority

as if you marked signed and returned
proxy card The authority you will be

giving
the Proxies is described below

and in the
proxy

card enclosed with this
proxy statement

Shares Held in Street Name Only the record holders of shares of our common stock or their appointed

proxies may vote those shares As result if your shares of our common stock are held for you in street name by
broker or other nominee then

only your broker or nominee i.e the record holder may vote them for you You will need

to follow the directions your broker or nominee provides you and give it instructions as to how it should vote your shares

by completing and
returning to it the

voting instruction sheet you received with your copy of our
proxy

statement or by

following any other directions you received for giving voting instructions electronically Brokers and other nominees who
hold shares in street name for their clients

typically have the authority to vote those shares on routine proposals such as

the election of directors when they have not received instructions from the beneficial owners of the shares However

they often do not have authority to vote on non-routine proposals without instructions from the beneficial owners of the

shares
they

hold To ensure that shares you hold in street name are represented at the Annual Meeting and voted in the

manner you desire it is important that you instruct your broker or nominee how to vote your shares

Solicitation and Voting of Proxy Cards

If you are the record holder of your shares of our common stock proxy
card is included with this

proxy statement

that provides for you to name three of our officers Peggy Denny Roger Mobley and Mary Dopko or any
substitute appointed by them individually or as group to act as your Proxies and vote your shares at the Annual

Meeting We ask that you sign
and date your proxy

card and return it in the enclosed envelope or follow the instructions

above for
appointing

the Proxies by Internet so that your shares will be represented at the meeting

If you sign proxy card and return it to us so that we receive it before the Annual Meeting or you appoint the Proxies

by Internet the shares of our common stock that you hold of record will be voted by the Proxies according to your
instructions If you sign and return

proxy
card or appoint

the
proxies by Internet but do not give any voting instructions

then the Proxies will vote your shares FOR the election of each of the four nominees for director named in Proposal

below and FOR Proposals and discussed in this proxy statement If you do not return proxy card or appoint the

Proxies by Internet the Proxies will not have
authority to vote for you and shares you hold of record will not be

represented or voted at the Annual Meeting unless you attend the meeting in person or validly appoint another person to

vote your shares for you If before the Annual Meeting any nominee named in Proposal becomes unable or unwilling to

serve as director for any reason your proxy card will give the Proxies discretion to vote for substitute nominee named

by our Board of Directors We are not aware of any other business that will be brought before the Annual Meeting but if

any other matter is properly presented for action by our shareholders your proxy
card will authorize the Proxies to vote

your shares according to their best judgment The Proxies also will be authorized to vote your shares according to their

best judgment on matters incident to the conduct of the meeting including motions to adjourn the meeting

Revocation of Proxy Cards How You Can Change Your Voting Instructions

Record Holders If you are the record holder of your shares and you sign
and return proxy card or appoint the

Proxies by Internet and you later wish to change the voting instructions you gave the Proxies or to revoke that authority

you can do so at any time before the voting takes place at the Annual Meeting by taking the appropriate action described

below

To change the voting instructions you gave
the Proxies

You can sign and submit proxy card dated after the date of your original proxy card which contains your new

instructions or

You can click on the link for proxy voting on our Internet website enter the
voting

control number
printed just

above your name on the enclosed
proxy card and then change your voting instructions

The Proxies will follow the last
voting instructions they receive from you before the Annual Meeting



To revoke your proxy card or your appointment of the Proxies by Internet

You can give our Corporate Secretary written notice that you want to revoke your proxy
card or Internet vote or

You can attend the Annual Meeting and notify our Corporate Secretary that you want to revoke your proxy
card or

Internet vote and vote your shares in person Your attendance at the Annual Meeting alone will not revoke your

proxy card or Internet vote you also must notify our Corporate Secretary that you revoke

Shares Held in Street Name If your shares are held in street name and you want to change voting

instructions you have given to your broker or other nominee you must follow your brokers or nominees directions

Expenses and Method of Solicitation

We will pay all costs of soliciting proxy
cards for the Annual Meeting including costs of

preparing
and mailing this

proxy statement We are requesting
that banks brokers and other custodians nominees and fiduciaries forward

copies
of

our proxy
solicitation materials to their principals and request their voting instructions and we will reimburse those

persons
for their expenses in doing so In addition to solicitation using the mail the Banks and our directors officers and

employees may solicit proxy cards either
personally by telephone or by other methods of communication but they

will

not receive any additional compensation from us for
doing so

In connection with the solicitation of proxy cards for the Annual Meeting we have not authorized anyone to give you

any information or make any representation not contained in this proxy statement If anyone gives you any other

information or makes any other representation to you you should not rely on it as having been authorized by us

Record Date and Voting Securities

The close of business on April 20 2009 is the Record Date we are using to determine which shareholders are

entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting and how many shares they are entitled to vote Our
voting

securities are the 5001248 shares of our common stock that were outstanding on the Record Date You must have been

record holder of our stock on the Record Date to vote at the Annual Meeting

Quorum and Voting Procedures

quorum must be present for business to be conducted at the Annual Meeting For all matters to be voted on at the

meeting quorum will consist of majority of the outstanding shares of our common stock Shares represented in person

or by proxy at the meeting will be counted for the purpose of determining whether quorum exists Once share is

represented for any purpose at the meeting it will be treated as present for quorum purposes for the remainder of the

meeting and for any adjournments If you return valid
proxy card appoint the Proxies by Internet or attend the meeting

in person your shares will be counted for purposes of determining whether there is quorum even if you abstain from

voting Broker non-votes also will be counted in determining whether there is quorum Broker non-votes will occur if

your broker or other nominee votes your street name shares on one or more matters at the meeting but does not vote on

non-routine matter because you have not given voting instructions on that matter If your shares are represented at the

meeting with
respect to any matter voted on they will be treated as present with respect to all matters voted on even if

they are not voted on all matters

You may cast one vote for each share of our common stock you held of record on the Record Date on each director

to be elected and on each other matter voted on by shareholders at the Annual Meeting You may not cumulate your votes

in the election of directors

Vote Required for Approval

Our directors are elected by plurality
of the votes cast in elections In the election of directors at the Annual

Meeting the four nominees receiving the highest
numbers of votes will be elected For Proposals and to be approved

the votes cast in favor of each proposal must exceed the votes cast against
it So long as quorum is present abstentions

and broker non-votes will have no effect on the
voting

for directors or on Proposals and



PROPOSAL ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

General

Our Bylaws provide that

Our Board of Directors consists of not less than five nor more than 20 members and that our Board is authorized

to set and change the actual number of our directors from time to time within those limits and

Our Board of Directors is divided into three classes and directors are elected to staggered three-year terms and

that each
year

the terms of the directors in one class expire and directors in that class are elected for new three-

year
terms or until their

respective successors have been duly elected and qualified

Nominees

The number of members of our Board of Directors currently is set at 11 The terms of four of our current directors

expire at the Annual Meeting Based on the recommendation of our Corporate Governance Committee those four

directors have been nominated by our Board for reelection to new three-year terms

Name and Age ____________________ ________ ___________ __________________________
Lee Beason

51

Gregory Gibson

52
Vincent Rees

41
2004

years
Owner and operator Historic

Inns Inc Hendersonville NC
bed and breakfast

accommodations

Listings of the members of committees of our Board are contained below under the heading Committees of Our

Board

First elected refers to the
year in which each individual first became director of the Bank Each person became

our director
during 2008 in connection with our organization as the Banks holding company and previously served as

director of the Bank

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR each of the four nominees named above

The four nominees receiving the highest numbers of votes will be elected

Year First Proposed Term
Positions With Us Elected of Office

Chief Operating Officer

and Director

2004

Principal Occupation
and Business Experience

John Sheiry

57

Chief Executive Officer 2004

and Director

President and Director 2004

years Our executive officer

years Our executive officer

years
Our executive officer

Director



Incumbent Directors

The following table contains information about our other seven current directors whose terms of office will continue

after the Annual Meeting

First Elected

Current Term Piincial Occupation

Name and Age Position with Us Expires
and Business Experience

Michael Foster Director 2004 2010 Owner and President Foster Real

67 Estate
Appraisers Inc Asheville NC

real estate appraisal firm

James Kirkpatrick
Director 2004 2010 Real estate investor former co-owner

45 and President Forge Mountain Foods

Hendersonville NC specialty
food

wholesaler and retailer 2000 to 2004

previously part-time weather anchor for

WSPA TV Spartanburg SC CBS
affiliate television station

Van Phillips
Director 2004 2010 Co-owner and Vice President Great

57 Meadows Inc Spruce Pine NC real

estate developer and investor

previously
served as director and

Executive Committee member of

MountainBank and MountainBank

Financial Corporation Hendersonville

NC and as Chairman First Western

Bank Burnsville NC

Catherine Schroader Director 2004 2010 Former co-owner Schroader Honda

72 Hendersonville NC motorcycle

dealership previously
served as

director and Compensation Committee

Chairman MountainBank and

MountainBank Financial Corporation

Hendersonville NC

William Burton Vice Chairman 2004 2011 Owner and Chairman Cafe Enterprises

55 Inc Taylors
SC parent company of

Fatz Cafe restaurants President Old

Mill Stream LLC real estate

development previously served as

director and Audit Committee

Chairman of MountainBank and

MountainBank Financial Corporation

Hendersonville NC



First Elected

Current Term
PrinciaJ Occupation

Name and Age Position with Us Expires and Business Experience

Steve McManus Director 2004 2011 Owner Southwestern Development of

67 NC LLC and Moon-McManus

Development LLC residential real

estate developers Co-owner and

President Beacon Food Services Inc

restaurants previously Chief

Executive Officer Hardees Food

Systems Inc Rocky Mount NC 1995

to 1996 previously served as director

and Executive Committee member of

MountainBank and MountainBank

Financial Corporation Hendersonville

NC

Bradley Schnyder Chairman 2004 2011 Owner Mountainscape Inc

52 Hendersonville NC residential

contractor co-owner Schnyder and

Riels Hendersonville NC residential

community developer and Burney

Mountain Associates Inc

Hendersonville NC residential

community developer

Listings of the members of committees of our Board are contained below under the heading Committees of Our

Board

First elected refers to the
year

in which each individual first became director of the Bank Each person became

our director during 2008 in connection with our organization as the Banks holding company and previously served as

director of the Bank



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Director Independence

Our Board of Directors periodically reviews transactions relationships and other arrangements involving our

directors and determines which directors the Board considers to be independent In making those determinations the

Board applies the independence criteria contained in the listing requirements of The NASDAQ Stock Market The Board

has directed our Corporate Governance Committee to assess each outside directors independence and
report

its findings

to the Board in connection with the Boards periodic determinations and to monitor the status of each director on an

ongoing basis and inform the Board of changes in factors or circumstances that may affect directors ability to exercise

independent judgment The following table lists our current directors persons
who served as directors during 2008 and

all nominees for election as directors at the Annual Meeting who our Board believes are were or will be independent
directors under NASDAQs criteria

William Burton Steve McManus John Sheiry

Michael Foster Van Phillips Catherine Schroader

James Kirkpatrick Bradley Schnyder Michael Smith

On April 28 2008 Mr Smith announced his retirement from the Board effective July 28 2008

In addition to the specific NASDAQ criteria in assessing the independence of our directors the Corporate

Governance Committee and the Board consider whether they believe transactions required to be disclosed in our proxy

statements as related person transactions as well as any other transactions relationships arrangements or factors could

impair directors ability to exercise independent judgment In determining that the above directors are independent

those other factors considered by the Corporate Governance Committee and the Board included the Banks lending

relationships with directors the lease arrangements between us and Mr McManus and Mr Phillips companies

described under the caption Transactions with Related PersonsRelated Person Transactions During 2008 and 2007

appraisal services provided to us from time to time by Mr Fosters company and consulting services on hotel loans

provided to us from time to time by Mr Sheiiy

Executive Sessions of Independent Directors

At their discretion our independent directors meet separately without management and non-independent directors

being present During 2008 the independent directors met two times in executive session

Attendance by Directors at Meetings

Board of Directors Meetings Each of our current directors attended 75% or more of the aggregate number of

meetings of our Board and of the Banks board and any committees on which he or she served Since the completion of

our bank
holding company reorganization

in May 2008 the Banks and our Boards of Directors have met jointly During

2008 the Banks Board met 14 times

Annual Meetings Attendance by our directors at Annual Meetings of our shareholders gives directors an

opportunity to meet talk with and hear the concerns of shareholders who attend those meetings and it gives those

shareholders access to our directors that they may not have at any other time dunng the
year

Our Board of Directors

recognizes that directors have their own business interests and are not our employees and that it is not always possible for

them to attend Annual Meetings However our boards policy is that attendance by directors at our Annual Meetings is

beneficial to us and to our shareholders and that our directors are strongly encouraged to attend each Annual Meeting

whenever possible Eleven of the Banks then-current directors attended the last Annual Meeting which was held during

July 2008



Communications with Our Board

Our Board of Directors encourages our shareholders to communicate with it regarding their concerns and other

matters related to our business and has established
process by which you may send written communications to our

board or to one or more individual directors You may address and mail your communication to our Corporate Secretary

at

1st Financial Services Corporation

Attention Corporate Secretary

101 Jack Street

Hendersonville North Carolina 28792

You also may send them by email to directorcominunications@mountainlst.com You should indicate whether your

communication is directed to the entire Board of Directors to particular committee of the Board or its Chairman or to

one or more individual directors All communications will be reviewed by our Corporate Secretary and with the
exception

of communications our Corporate Secretary considers to be unrelated to our business forwarded to the intended

recipients Copies of communications from customer of the Bank relating to deposit loan or other financial

relationship or transaction also will be forwarded to the department or division most closely associated with the subject

Code of Ethics

Our Board of Directors has adopted Code of Ethics that applies to our directors and all of our executive officers

including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and among other things is intended to promote

Honest and ethical conduct

The ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interests between personal and professional relationships

Full fair accurate timely and understandable disclosure in reports and documents we file with the Securities and

Exchange Commission and other public communications we make

Compliance with governmental laws rules and regulations

Prompt internal reporting of violations of the Code to the Boards Audit Committee and

Accountability for adherence to the Code

copy of the Code of Ethics will be provided without charge upon written request to our Corporate Secretary at 1st

Financial Services Corporation 101 Jack Street Hendersonville North Carolina 28792 or upon request by telephone at

828 697-3100

COMMITTEES OF OUR BoAiw

General

Our Board of Directors has two independent standing committees that assist the Board in oversight and governance

matters the Audit Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee Those Committees operate under written

charters approved by our Board that set out their composition authority duties and responsibilities We believe each

member of those committees is an independent director as that term is defined by the listing standards of The

NASDAQ Stock Market current copy of each Committee charter is posted on our Internet website at

www.mountainlst.com The current members of each committee are listed in the following table and the function of and

other information about each committee is described in the paragraphs below

Audit Committee Corporate Governance Committee

Van Phillips Chairman John Sheiry Chairman

William Burton William Burton

Steve McManus Steve McManus

Bradley Schnyder Catherine Schroader



Audit Committee

Our Audit Committee is
joint

committee of the Banks and our Boards of Directors Under its charter the Audit

Committee is responsible
for

Selecting our independent accountants and
approving

their compensation and the terms of their engagement

Approving services proposed to be provided by our independent accountants and

Monitoring and overseeing the quality and integrity of our accounting and financial reporting process
and

system

of internal controls

The Committee reviews various reports
from our independent accountants including its annual report on our

audited consolidated financial statements reports we file under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 and reports of

examinations by our regulatoiy agencies
and it oversees our internal audit program The Committee met four times

during 2008

Audit Committee Financial Expert Since the retirement of our former director who was designated as our audit

committee financial expert we have not had designated audit committee financial expert because we have not have

identified and selected another current director who is an audit committee financial expert Our Corporate Governance

Committee continues to actively consider the recruitment of nominee to our board who is an audit committee financial

expert

Audit Committee Report

Our management is responsible
for our financial

reporting processes including our system of internal controls and

disclosure controls and procedures and for the preparation
of our consolidated financial statements in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted iii the United States of America Our independent accountants are responsible

for auditing those financial statements The Audit Committee oversees and reviews those processes In connection with

the
preparation

and audit of the Banks financial statements for 2008 the Audit Committee has

Reviewed our audited consolidated financial statements for 2008 and discussed them with management

Discussed with our independent accountants the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing

Standards No 61 as amended

Received written disclosures and letter from our independent accountants required by the independence

standards of the PCAOB PCAOB Rule 3526 and

Discussed with our accountants their independence

Based on the above review and discussions the Audit Committee recommended to our Board of Directors that the

audited financial statements be included in the Banks 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission

Members of the Audit Committee who participated in the reviews and discussions described above pertaining to the

preparation and audit of our consolidated financial statements for 2008 are named below

The Audit Committee

William Burton Steve McManus Van Phillips Bradley Schnyder

Corporate Governance Committee

Functions Our Corporate Governance Committee is jomt committee of our and the Bank Boards of Directors

Under its written charter the Corporate Governance Committee acts as nominations committee and as compensation

committee for our and the Banks Boards The Committee met four times during
2008

Nominations Committee Functions Among its other duties and responsibilities assigned from time to time by

the Board the Corporate Governance Committee functions as nominations committee by identifying individuals who

are quaiified to become directors and recommending candidates to the Board for selection as nominees for election as

directors at our Annual Meetings and for appointment to fIll vacancies on our Board



The Committees charter provides that the Committee will recommend individuals who have high personal and

professional integrity
who demonstrate ability

and judgment and who with other members of the Board will be effective

in collectively serving
the

long-term interests of our shareholders Candidates also must satisfy applicable requirements of

state and federal banking regulators and the Committee may develop other criteria or minimum qualifications for use in

identifying and evaluating candidates The Committee has not used the services of third-party search firm

In
identifying

candidates to be recommended to the Board of Directors the Committee will consider candidates

recommended by shareholders Shareholders who wish to recommend candidates to the Committee should send their

recommendations in
writing to

Corporate Governance Committee

1st Financial Services Corporation

Attention Corporate Secretary

101 Jack Street

Hendersonville North Carolina 28792

Each recommendation should be accompanied by the following

The full name address and telephone number of the person making the recommendation and statement that

the person making the recommendation is shareholder of record or if the person is beneficial owner of our

shares but not record holder statement from the record holder of the shares verifying the number of shares

beneficially owned and statement as to whether the person making the recommendation has good faith

intention to continue to hold those shares through the date of our next Annual Meeting

The full name address and telephone number of the candidate being recommended information regarding the

candidates beneficial ownership of our equity securities any business or personal relationship between the

candidate and the person making the recommendation and an explanation of the value or benefit the person

making the recommendation believes the candidate would provide as director

statement signed by the candidate that he or she is aware of and consents to being recommended to the

Committee and will provide such information as the Committee may request for its evaluation of candidates

description of the candidates current principal occupation business or professional experience previous

employment history educational background and any areas of particular expertise

Information about any business or personal relationships between the candidate and any of our customers

suppliers vendors competitors directors or officers affiliated companies or other
persons

with any special

interest regarding us or the Bank and any transactions between the candidate and the Bank and

Any information in addition to the above about the candidate that would be
required to be included in our proxy

statement under to the SECs Regulation 14A including without limitation information about
legal proceedings in

which the candidate has been involved within the
past

five years

To be considered by the Committee in connection with its recommendations of candidates for selection as nominees

for election at an Annual Meeting shareholders recommendation must be received by the Committee not later than the

120th day prior to the first anniversary of the date that our proxy statement was first mailed to our shareholders in

conjunction
with our preceding years Annual Meeting Recommendations submitted by shareholders other than in

accordance with these procedures will not be considered by the Committee

The Committee will evaluate candidates recommended by shareholders in manner similar to its evaluation of other

candidates The Committee will select candidates to be recommended to the Board of Directors each
year

based on its

assessment of among other factors the candidates business personal and educational background and experience

community leadership independence geographic location within our service area and their other qualifications

attributes and potential contributions the
past

and future contributions of our current directors and the value of

continuity and prior board experience the existence of one or more vacancies on the Board the need for director

possessing particular attributes or particular experience or expertise the role of directors in our business development

activities and other factors that it considers relevant including any specific qualifications the Committee adopts from

time to time

10



The Corporate Governance Committee recommended to our Board of Directors that four of our current directors

whose terms are expiring at the Annual Meeting be nominated for reelection for new terms

Compensation Committee Functions The Corporate Governance Committee also functions as compensation

committee Under its written charter and in addition to other duties that maybe assigned from time to time by the
joint

Board of Directors of our company and the Bank the Corporate Governance Committee reviews and provides overall

guidance to the Board about our executive and director compensation and benefit programs and makes recommendations

to the Boards about

Cash and other compensation paid or provided to our and the Banks Chief Executive Officer and other executive

officers

Adoption of new compensation or benefit plans or changes in existing plans
under which compensation or benefits

are or will be paid or provided to those persons and

Administration of the Banks annual incentive program

The Committee also reviews and makes recommendations to our Board about amounts of compensation paid to our

directors and if requested by our Board compensation paid individually or in the aggregate to our other employees

In performing its duties the Committee may if it considers it appropriate delegate any of its responsibilities to

subcommittee However any subcommittee must be composed entirely of independent directors The Committee is

authorized to conduct investigations and to request and consider any information from management or otherwise that it

believes is necessary relevant or helpful in its deliberations and in making its recommendations It may rely on

information provided by management without further verification However under its charter when the Committee takes

an action it should exercise independent judgment on an informed basis and in manner it considers to be in the best

interests of our shareholders In its review and consideration of compensation matters in general the Committee

considers information provided by our Chief Executive Officer about the individual performances of officers other than

himself and his recommendations as to their compensation After receiving the Committees recommendations the

Board makes all final decisions about executive compensation matters

The Committee may retain the services of outside counsel or consultants at our expense and on terms including

fees that it approves During 2008 the Committee independently engaged Grady Associates as independent legal

counsel for executive compensation issues Grady Associatesis Cleveland Ohio law firm
specializing

in financial

institution executive compensation planning Other than in this advisory capacity Grady Associates has no role in the

actual recommendations the Committee makes to our Board of Directors or in our Boards approval of the amounts of

executive compensation

In connection with our participation in the TARP capital purchase program of the United States Department of the

Treasury the Treasury Department the Corporate Governance Committee met with our senior risk officer to review

and discuss incentive compensation arrangements in which our executive officers
participate to ensure that those

arrangements do not encourage those officers to take unnecessary and excessive risks that threaten the value of our

company Also while we remain participant
in that program the Committee will meet with our senior risk officer at

least
annually to review and discuss the relationship between those arrangements and our risk policies
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

We consider our officers listed below to be our executive officers

Gregory Gibson age 52 serves as our Chief Executive Officer He was employed by MountainBank in

Hendersonville North Carolina from 2000 until October 2003 where he served as Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer of that bank and its parent holding company From 1997 until 2000 Mr Gibson operated his owil public

accounting
and financial institutions consulting firm He was employed as Senior Vice President of Bank of Mecklenburg

Charlotte North Carolina from 1994 to 1997 and as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Rock Hill

National Bank and its parent holding company RHNB Corporation Rock Hill South Carolina from 1985 until 1994 and

he previously held
positions

with two other North Carolina commercial banks Mr Gibson is certified public accountant

and has total of 28 years of experience in the banking industry having served as an executive officer of six community

banks and bank holding companies

Vincent Rees age 41 serves as our President He was employed by MountainBank in Hendersonville North

Carolina from its organization during 1997 until October 2003 He served MountainBank as Chief Lending Officer from

1997 until 2001 and then as Regional President of that bank and Executive Vice President of its parent holding

company Mr Rees previously was employed in South Carolina for seven years by NationsBank now Bank of America
and its predecessor CS Bank where he served in various positions in branch management credit analysis and

consumer and commercial lending Mr Rees has total of 18 years of banking experience

Lee Reason age 51 serves as our Chief Operating Officer From 2001 to November 2003 he was employed by

MountainBank in Hendersonville North Carolina in various administrative and branch supervisory positions including

State Executive He was employed as City Executive of High Street Banking Company Asheville North Carolina from

1997 until 2001 He has total of 18
years

of banking experience

Peggy Denny age 58 serves as our ChiefAdministrative Officer and is responsible for branch network

management training and various other functions From 1997 to November 2003 Ms Denny was employed by

MountainBank in Hendersonville North Carolina as Senior Vice President Earlier she was employed by First Union

National Bank and its predecessor Northwestern Bank She has total of 35
years of banking experience

Kirk Robinson age 41 has served as our Chief Credit Officer since 2004 He previously was employed by Capital

Bank in Raleigh North Carolina as Senior Credit Analyst from 2003 to 2004 by MountainBank in Hendersonville North

Carolina as Senior Credit
Analyst

from 2002 to 2003 and by BBT as City Executive and Business Banker in Lexington
South Carolina from 1998 to 2002 He has total of 12

years
of banking experience

Roger Mobley age 38 has served as our Chief Financial Officer since September 2008 Mr Mobley previously

served as Certified Public Accountant and Assurance and Advisory Senior Manager with Elliott Davis LLC Prior to

that position from September of 2003 Mr Mobley served as Certified Public Accountant with KPMG in its banking

group
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OFFICER COMPENSATION

Summary

The following table shows the cash and certain other compensation paid or provided to or deferred by our named

officers for 2008 and 2007 Our named officers are compensated by the Bank for their services as its officers and they

receive no separate
salaries or other cash compensation from us for their services as our officers Each of our named

officers is employed under an employment agreement with the Bank as described below

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Non-Equity

Option Incentive Plan All Other

Salary Awards Compensation Compensation

Name and Principal Position Year Bonus Total

Gregory Gibson 2008 $173250 $-0- $-0- -0- 9515 $182765

Chief Executive Officer 2007 165000 -0- -0- 61322 10771 237093

Vincent Rees 2008 157500 -0- -0- -0- 4878 162378

President 2007 150000 -0- -0- 61322 12658 223980

Lee Beason

Executive Vice President and Chief 2008 131250 -0- -0- -0- 8206 139456

Operating Officer 2007 125000 -0- -0- 50896 8373 184269

Peggy Denny
Executive Vice President and Chief 2008 131250 -0- -0- -0- 7053 138303

Administrative Officer 2007 125000 -0- -0- 50896 8116 184012

Messrs Gibson Rees and Beason are members of our Board but they do not receive any additional compensation

for service as directors

Includes the amount of salary deferred at each officers election under our Section 401k plan

All outstanding stock options
held by our executive officers are fully vested and exercisable As result we did not

recognize any compensation expense for those options in our financial statements for 2008 under SFAS 123R

Reflects the amounts of cash awards paid to each officer for each
year

under our annual Incentive Plan described

below under the caption Plan Based Awards

The following table describes each officers Other Compensation for 2008

Description
Gibson Rees Reason Denny

The Banks matching contributions for the officers accounts

under our Section 40 1k plan $8277 $4203 $7286 $5973

Imputed income for the officers interest under split

dollar arrangement in insurance polices owned by the

Bank $1238 675 920 $1080

In addition to compensation paid in cash from time to time our executive officers receive various personal benefits

None of the named officers received personal benefits during 2008 for which our estimated
aggregate

incremental

cost exceeded $10000 and the amounts of any such benefits they received during 2008 are not included in the table

We also provide our executive officers with group life health medical and other insurance coverage
that are

generally available to all salaried employees and the cost of that insurance is not included in the table

Employment Agreements

Messrs Gibson Rees and Beason and Ms Denny each are employed under an Employment Agreement which has

rolling three
year

term which on each anniversary date of the agreement is extended by one additional
year

unless our

Board of Directors gives notice that it will not be extended Unless sooner terminated the term of the agreement will end

at the time each of them reaches
age

65 Each agreement provides for

Annual base salary which will be reviewed and must be increased for cost of living increases on an annual basis

and otherwise may be increased at the discretion of the Board
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Participation in all officer or employee compensation bonus incentive and benefit plans in effect from time to

time

Reimbursement of reasonable business
expenses

and reasonable
expenses

for attendance at annual and other

periodic meetings of trade associations and

Reimbursement for the cost of disability insurance providing an annual benefit not to exceed 60% of the officers

base and bonus salaty after an elimination period of 90 days

Each of the current employment agreements were entered into on November 12 2008 These agreements replaced

prior employment agreements made in 2007 The Bank and these named executive officers entered into new agreements
to comply with contractual restrictions required for us to participate in the Treasury Departments TARP Capital

Purchase Program These restrictions are outlined below

These employment agreements contain other provisions under which payments and benefits will be provided to

Messrs Gibson Rees and Beason and Ms Denny following an involuntary termination of his or her employment

without cause or voluntary termination under various circumstances whether before or after change in control of the

Bank and that restrict their ability to compete against
the Bank

following termination of employment Those
provisions

are described below under the
caption Potential Payments Upon Termination of Employment or Change in Control

Plan-Based Awards

We have three compensation pians under which awards have been granted or from time to time in the future may be

granted to our executive officers which are our

Employee Stock Option Plan under which options to buy shares of our common stock have been granted and

remain outstanding but which has been superseded for any new awards by our new 2008 Omnibus Equity Plan

2008 Omnibus Equity Plan under which stock options restricted stock awards performance share awards and

stock
appreciation rights may be granted and

Incentive Plan under which additional cash compensation may be paid each
year based on our corporate

performance

The 2008 Omnibus Equity Plan was adopted during 2008 and approved by our shareholders at our 2008 Annual

Meeting The 2008 Omnibus Equity Plan authorizes the issuance of up to 288292 shares which includes 38292 shares

authorized to be granted under the Employee Stock Option Plan that were not awarded No new awards may be granted

under the Employee Stock Option Plan but outstanding awards granted under it remain in effect and are subject to its

terms

Employee Stock Option Plan Stock options granted under the Employee Stock Option Plan give the officer to

whom it is granted the right to buy shares of our common stock during stated period of time ordinarily ten years at

fixed
price per share equal to the market value of our stock on the date the

option is granted An officers options will

terminate 90 days following his or her voluntary termination of employment except in the case of retirement or one year

following termination as result of disability In the case of retirement death or involuntary termination without cause an

officers options will remain in effect for its full term Options will terminate immediately following the involuntary

termination of an officers employment for cause Option grants did not include any performance-based conditions The

exercise price and
vesting schedule for each option were approved by our Corporate Governance Committee at the time

the option was granted

2008 Omnibus Equity Plan Under our 2008 Omnibus Equity Plan we may make the following types
of awards

Incentive stock options that qualify for favored tax treatment under Internal Revenue Code section 422 or stock

options that do not qualify under Code section 422

Stock
appreciation rights

Restricted stock and

Performance shares

14



Non-employee directors are eligible only for awards of non-qualified stock options and restricted stock The terms of

each award will be described in an award agreement between us and the person to whom the award is granted

An option is the right to acquire
shares of our common stock during stated period at specified exercise price

An

option may be an incentive stock option or ISO qualifying for favored tax treatment under Code section 422 ISOs may

be granted only to employees Any option that is not an ISO is known as non-qualified stock option or NQSO An

NQSO may be granted to employees or to non-employee directors The term exercise price conditions and form of

payment will be determined by the Plan Committee within limits set by the 2008 Omnibus Equity Plan An options

exercise price may not be less than the fair market value of share of our common stock on the date the option is

granted as determined under rules set forth in the 2008 Omnibus Equity Plan

stock appreciation right or SAR is the right to receive cash equal to the difference between the fair market value

of share of our common stock on the date the SAR is exercised and the SARs exercise price
stated in the award The

exercise price of SAR may not be less than the fair market value of our common stock on the date the SAR is granted

SAR ordinarily yields the same value on the date of exercise as stock option although SARs ordinarily are more likely to

be settled in cash rather than stock and the exercise of SAR does not require payment by the award recipient
As an

alternative to cash settlement of SAR the award agreement may permit or require participant to receive common

stock having an aggregate fair market value on the exercise date equal to the amount of cash the participant would have

received had the SAR been exercised for cash instead of stock with any fractional share settled in cash

restricted stock award is an award of common stock subject to forfeiture if conditions specified in the award

agreement are not satisfied by the end of specified restriction period established by the Plan Committee The typical

condition that would be imposed would be employment for specified period During the restriction period restricted

stock is held in escrow and may not be sold transferred or pledged Restricted stock vests when the conditions to vesting

stated in the award agreement are satisfied and at that time the transfer restrictions and risk of forfeiture lapse and the

shares are released to the
participant

If the
vesting

conditions are not satisfied restricted stock is forfeited and the

forfeited shares again become available under the Plan for future awards

Performance shares are similar to restricted stock awards but they ordinarily vest only if
corporate or individual

performance goals or both specified in the award agreement are satisfied by the end of the specified period The plan is

designed to allow conditions for performance share awards to be customized so that they can be measured by the

particular
award recipients responsibilities by corporate goals and operating results and by other factors and by

combinations of factors
participants

award agreement usually will specify that at the end of the
period

in which

satisfaction of the performance criteria is determined the Plan Committee will certify that the employee has or has not

satisfied the performance criteria The shares will be forfeited if the performance criteria are not satisfied or issued to the

employee participant if the performance criteria are satisfied

Incentive Plan Under our Incentive Plan portion
of the cash compensation paid each

year
to our executive

officers and other employees chosen to participate in the plan is tied to the extent to which we achieve goals set by our

Board for the
year

with
respect

to various measures of corporate performance Cash awards under the plan are calculated

based on percentage of each executive officers annual base salary

EESA and ARRA Limitations In November 2008 we became participant in the Treasury Departments TARP

Capital Purchase Program CPP Under rules promulgated by the Treasury Department under the Emergency

Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 EESA that apply to CPP participants we are required to implement provisions to

clawback bonus or incentive compensation paid to our senior officers if any of the criteria on which those payments are

based is later found to have been materially inaccurate Each of our executive officers has agreed to
repay upon our

demand any bonus or incentive compensation they receive under any compensation arrangement if in the judgment of

our Board of Directors or Compensation Committee the compensation was based on materially inaccurate financial

statements or any other materially inaccurate performance criteria

More recently the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ARRA enacted during February 2009 has

amended EESA and directed the Treasury Department to establish new standards that impose additional restrictions on

executive compensation paid by CPP participants ARRA requires
that the new standards among other provisions

expand the clawback arrangements required by EESA to include in addition to our executive officers our next
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20 highest paid employees and in the future with limited exceptions prohibit us from
paying or accruing any bonus

retention award or incentive compensation to our most highly compensated employee currently our Chief Executive

Officer

Grants During 2008 During 2008 no new stock
options or other

equity awards and no cash awards for

performance under the Incentive Plan were granted to any of our executive officers named in the Summary

Compensation Table

Outstanding Stock Options During 2008 no previously granted options were exercised by any of our executive

officers named in the Summary Compensation Table This table contains information about all
outstanding options held

by those named officers on December 31 2008

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2008 YEAR END

Option Awards

Number of Number of

Securities Securities

Underlying Underlying
Unexercised Unexercised

Option Ojtion
Stock Options Stock

Otions Exercise Expiration
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Price Date

Gregory Gibson 37108 -0- $5.63 07/26/2014

Vincent Rees 37108 -0- 5.63 07/26/2014

Lee Beason 37108 -0- 5.63 07/26/2014

Peggy Denny 37108 -0- 5.63 07/26/2014

Retirement Benefits

In 2008 the Bank entered into Salary Continuation Agreements with Messrs Gibson Rees and Beason and with

Ms Denny to provide them with retirement benefits Under these agreements the Bank would make monthly payments

to the officers 15
years following their normal retirement ages stated in the agreement as 62

Under generally accepted accounting principles the Bank accrues liability on its books each year for its obligation

to each officer under his or her agreement These accruals are in amounts that at each officers normal retirement age

cause his or her accrual balance to equal the then-current
present value of the officers normal retirement benefits The

discount rate used by the Bank to determine the
present value of the normal retirement benefit for 2008 was 6.00% It

may be changed from time to time in the future to maintain the rate within reasonable standards under generally accepted

accounting principles

These Salary Continuation Agreements contain other provisions under which payments and benefits will be provided

to Messrs Gibson Rees and Beason and Ms Denny following an involuntary termination of his or her employment

under various circumstances Those provisions are described below under the caption Potential Payments Upon
Termination of Employment or Change in Control

Potential Payments Upon Termination of Employment or Change in Control

Under employment agreements between the Bank and Messrs Gibson Rees and Beason and Ms Denny these

executive officers will receive payments and benefits from the Bank if their employment terminates under various

circumstances Those arrangements are described in the following paragraphs and summary of the payments and

benefits each officer will receive following different termination events is contained in the table below

Employment Agreements Our named Executive Officers employment agreements are described under the

caption Employment Agreements Under these agreements if an executive officers employment is terminated by us

without cause or if an executive officer terminates his or her own employment for good reason the executive officer will

continue to receive salary payments for the unexpired term of the employment agreement and we will provide him or her

with continued life and medical insurance
coverage

for the remaining term or if earlier until the executive officer reaches

age 65 dies or becomes employed elsewhere Continued life and medical insurance coverage also will be provided for the

16



remarning term of the agreement following termination of the executive officer employment as result of disability

Good reason will exist for the executive officer to terminate his or her own employment if without the executive

officers consent

The executive officers salary is reduced

Duties are assigned to the executive officer that are materially inconsistent with his or her position or represent

reduction in his or her authority

There is material diminution in the authority duties or responsibilities of the supervisor to whom the executive

officer reports

There is material change in the geographic location at which the executive officer must perform services or

The Bank
materially

breaches the employment agreement

No payments will be made under the agreement if the executive officers employment is terminated by us for cause

or by the executive officer without good reason

If there is change in control of our holding company or the Bank each executive officer will be entitled to

lump-sum payment equal to three times the total of his or her base salary rate at the time of the change in

control plus the amount of any bonuses or incentive compensation earned for the preceding calendar year

Continued medical and life insurance coverage for the remaining term of the agreement or if earlier until the

executive officer reaches age 65 dies or becomes employed elsewhere

Immediate vesting of benefits under any qualified and non-qualified plans in which he or she
participates

unless

those plans separately address the effect of change in control and

If the payment and acceleration of benefits under other plans or arrangements results in parachute payment

that is subject to an excise tax under Sections 280G and 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code in 2009 or later an

additional gross-up payment equal to the amount of the excise tax the executive officer owes plus the additional

amount needed for the executive officer to receive the amount of the excise tax net of all income payroll or other

excise taxes The applicable percentage gross-up payment amount that the Executive Officer is entitled is 33% for

change of control occurring in 2009 66% for change of control occurring in 2010 and 100% for change in

control occurring in 2011 or afterwards

These changes in control payments and benefits would be in lieu of any other severance payments provided for in the

agreement and an executive officers right to receive the lump-sum payment would not depend on whether his or her

employment was terminated

The named executive officers agreements provide that in general change in control will have occurred if

person accumulates ownership of our stock that amounts to more than 50% of the total fair market value or total

voting power of our outstanding stock

Within 12-month
period person acquires

shares of our stock that amount to 30% or more of the total voting

power of our outstanding stock

majority of our directors are replaced during any
12-month

period by persons
whose appointment or election is

not endorsed in advance by majonty of our directors or

There is change in ownership of our assets that amounts to 40% or more of the total gross fair market value of all

of our assets

Under these employment agreements each of our named executive officers
agrees not to disclose any confidential or

proprietary information about our company or the Bank to any other person and that for the remaining period of the

agreement following termination of his or her employment the executive officer may not directly or indirectly compete

with the Bank by providing financial products or services on behalf of another financial institution or assisting
another

financial institution in providing financial products or services within the counties in North Carolina in which the Bank or

any of its affiliates conducted operations at the time the executive officers employment was terminated or in any North

Carolina county contiguous to those counties If the executive officer violates this non-competition provision
he or she
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will forfeit all rights and retirement benefits under his or her employment agreement as well as all death benefits under

his or her Endorsement Split-Dollar Agreement described below However the restriction on their ability to compete

against the Bank will terminate immediately upon change in control

This table lists estimates of
aggregate payments and benefits that would have been paid or provided to the executive

officers under their employment agreements if their employment had terminated under various circumstances or there

had been change in control on December 31 2008

Type of Tennination Event and

Description of Payment or Benefit Gibson Rees Beason Denny

Involuntary Termination Without Cause or Voluntary

Termination with Good Reason Other Than After Change
in Control

Aggregate cash payments $512474 $465885 $388238 $388238

Continued insurance
coverage 34666 20021 27179 33182

Change in Control Without Regard to Termination of

Employment

Lump sum cash payment $519750 $472500 $393750 $393750

Continued insurance coverage 36174 20892 28362 34626

Additional 280G gross-up payment -0- -0- -0- -0-

Reflects the aggregate of monthly payments based on the following annual salary rates Mr Gibson$ 173250

Mr Rees$157500 Mr Beason$131250 and Ms Denny$131250 that would be made during the remaining

term of the Employment Agreement
Reflects our estimate of the

aggregate cost of continued insurance coverage equivalent to that
currently provided to

each of these executive officers that could be obtained in the marketplace for the remaining term of the Employment

Agreement
The applicable percentage gross-up payment amount that the Executive Officer is entitled is 33% for change of

control
occurring

in 2009 66% for change of control occurring in 2010 and 100% for change in control occurring

in 2011 or thereafter

Salary Continuation Agreements Our named executive officers Salary Continuation Agreements are described

under the
caption

Retirement Benefits If before normal retirement age an officers employment terminates for any

reason other than for cause or following change in control the Bank will make monthly payments to the officer for 15

years in an amount that is based upon the accrual balance at the time of employment termination Those payments will

begin on the later of the first day of the seventh month after termination of the officers employment or the month

after the officer reaches normal retirement age

Following an officers death his or her beneficiaries will receive lump-sum payment in an amount equal to the

officers accrual balance at the time of death An officers agreement will terminate automatically and the officers rights

to payments will be forfeited if his or her employment is terminated for cause

If there is change in control of the Bank the Bank will make lump-sum payment to each officer of the
greater

of

$750000 or the accrual balance at the time of the change of control For change in control
occurring

in 2009 or

thereafter the Salary Continuation Agreements also provide that the Bank will pay tax gross-up benefit if the benefits

payable to the executive after change in control are subject to excise taxes under the Internal Revenue Code For

change in control
occurring

in 2009 the Bank would pay only
33% of the full

gross-up payment The Bank would pay 66%

of the full
gross-up payment if change in control occurs in 2010 and 100% if change in control occurs in 2011 or

afterwards

As defined in the agreements change in control will occur if

person or group accumulates ownership of our stock that amounts to more than 50% of the total fair market

value or total
voting power of all our outstanding shares

person or group acquires within 12-month period ownership of our stock that amounts to 30% or more of the

total voting power of all our outstanding shares
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majority
of our Board of Directors are replaced during any 12-month period by directors whose appointment or

election is not endorsed in advance by majority of our board or

person or group acquires assets from us that amount to 40% or more of the total gross fair market value of all our

assets

The following table lists the actual amounts of payments that would have been made to the named executive officers

under their Salary Continuation Agreements if their employment had been terminated under the specified circumstances

as of December 31 2008

Yearly Payment

Yearly Payment Following Termination Lump-Sum Payment Lump-Sum Payment

Following Termination at or Disability Before Following Following

Name Normal Retirement Age Normal Retirement Age Death Change in Control

Gregory Gibson $134000 $11737 74933 $750000

Vincent Rees 186000 8391 28151 750000

Lee Beason 100000 8054 48430 750000

Peggy Denny 72000 14644 137951 750000

Payments would begin following the officers normal retirement ages and be made monthly for 15
years

None of the

officers had attained the
age

62 normal retirement age by December 31 2008 The amount of the payment increases

annually by 3%

Payment amounts are based on the officers actual accrual balances on December 31 2008 Those payments would

begin following the officers normal retirement
ages

and be made monthly for 15 years The amount of the payment

increases annually by 3%
The lump-sum payment amounts equal the officers accrual balances on December 31 2008

The amount of this benefit is the greater
of $750000 or the accrual balance on December 31 2008

Endorsement Split-Dollar Agreements The Bank has purchased insurance policies on the lives of our named

executive officers and has entered into Endorsement Split-Dollar Agreements with each of them The policies are owned

by the Bank Under the agreements upon an executive officers death while employed by the Bank before reaching age

62 portion of the total death benefits under the policies on his or her life will be paid to the officers beneficiary The

amount that will be paid to each officers beneficiary will be equal to the lesser of the policys net death proceeds

meaning the total death benefit minus the policys cash surrender value or $1.25 million in the case of Messrs Gibson

and Rees or $1 million in the case of Mr Beason or Ms Denny The Bank will receive the remainder of the death

benefits from each officers policies including the full cash surrender value of the policies

These agreements previously provided that the executive officers received death benefits whether or not he or she

was employed by the Bank The officers agreed to amend these agreements to address unfavorable changes in accounting

rules

Employee Group Life Insurance Plan We also provide
life insurance benefits to each of the named executive

officers under our group life insurance plan in which all employees participate Under the group plan death benefits are

payable to participants beneficiaries equal to two times the participants annual salary rate at the date of death subject

to cap of $250000

This table lists estimates of aggregate
death benefits calculated as described above that would have been paid to the

named officers beneficiaries under the
policies

if
they

had died on December 31 2008

Type of Termination Event and G.L

Description of Payment or Benefit Gibson Bees Beason Denny

Death benefits under split-dollar life insurance policies $1250000 $1250000 $1000000 $1000000

Death benefits under group life insurance plan 250000 250000 250000 250000

Accelerated Vesting of Stock Options In the event of change in control of our company if provision is not

made for the assumption of outstanding stock options
held under our option plans or for the exchange of those options for

new options covering shares of the successor company our executive officers rights under their options will terminate at
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the time the transaction becomes effective However to the extent that any option has not yet become exercisable it will

become exercisable in full immediately before the transaction becomes effective without regard to any vesting schedule

All options currently granted to our named executive officers have vested in full

EESA and ARRA Limitations During November of 2008 we became
participant in the Treasury Departments

TARP Capital Purchase Program CPP Under rules issued by the Treasuiy Department under the Emergency
Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 EESA that apply to CPP

participants
if the employment of one of our four named

executive officers is involuntarily terminated while the Treasuiy Department continues to hold any security purchased

from us under the CPP aggregate severance compensation paid to that officer could not exceed an amount in excess of

three times the officer base amount calculated under Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code

More recently the American Recoveiy and Reinvestment Act of 2009 AREA enacted during February 2009 has

amended EESA and directed the Treasury Department to establish new standards that impose additional restrictions on

executive compensation including severance payments paid by CPP participants AREA
appears

to require that the new

standards among other
provisions prohibit payments to any of our named executive officers or to any of our next five

highest paid employees in connection with any termination of their employment for any reason other than payments

relating to services already performed or benefits already accrued

In connection with our participation in the CPP our named executive officers have entered into written agreements

with us under which our Board of Directors or Compensation Committee may unilaterally and without the officers

consent modify any of their compensation agreements or arrangements including by reducing or eliminating severance

benefits to the extent the Board in its judgment considers
necessary to comply with

applicable rules and guidance

governing compensation paid by CPP
participants
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Director Fees

Our outside directors serve and are compensated as directors of the Bank and they do not receive any additional

compensation for their services as our directors The following table describes the standard schedule of fees paid to the

Banks directors beginning in July 2007 which now are paid to our directors

Description
Amount

Per diem fee for attendance at meetings of our Board $400

Per diem fee for attendance at committee meetings 100

Additional per diem for attendance at Committee meetings by the Committee Chairman 100

Additional per diem for attendance at Audit Committee meetings by financial expert 100

Director Stock Options

We have Director Stock Option Plan under which options were granted from time to time to our directors to

purchase shares of our common stock Each stock option gives the director to whom it is granted the right to buy shares of

our common stock during ten
year period at fixed price per share equal to the market value of our stock on the date

the option was granted Options generally remain in effect for their full terms following the termination of director

service for any reason Option grants
did not include any performance-based conditions The exercise price

and vesting

schedule for each option was recommended by the Corporate Governance Committee to our Board of Directors which

approved the terms of each option granted

No additional
options

will be granted under our Director Stock Option Plan Any further options will be granted

under our 2008 Omnibus Equity Plan described above under the caption
Officer CompensationPlan-Based Awards

2008 Omnibus Equity Plan

During 2008 no new stock
options were granted to any of our directors and no previously granted options were

exercised by any of them Information about stock
options

held by our outside directors on December 31 2008 is

contained in the footnotes to the Director Compensation Table below

Director Compensation for 2008

2008 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Fees Earned or All Other

Name Paid in Cash Option Awards Compensation Total

William Burton 7200.00 -0- -0- 7200.00

Michael Foster 6800.00 -0- -0- 6800.00

James Kirkpatrick 8000.00 -0- -0- 8000.00

Steve McManus 6300.00 -0- -0- 6300.00

Van Phillips 9400.00 -0- -0- 9400.00

Bradley Schnyder 12400.00 -0- -0- 12400.00

Catherine Schroader 6700.00 -0- -0- 6700.00

John Sheiry 6900.00 -0- -0- 690000

Messrs Beason Gibson and Rees are not listed in the table They are compensated as officers and employees of the

Bank and do not receive any separate
cash compensation for their services directors

All outstanding stock options held by our outside directors are fully vested and exercisable As result we did not

recognize any compensation expense for those
options

in our financial statements for 2008 under SFAS 123R On

December 31 2008 each of our outside directors held stock
options covering 55589 shares
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TivisisAcTloNs WITH RELATED PERSONS

Our Policy

Our Board of Directors has adopted written policy under which our independent directors acting as separate

committee review and approve certain transactions arrangements or relationships in which we or the Bank is

participant and in which any of our related persons has material interest Our related
persons

include our directors

nominees for election as directors executive officers any beneficial owners of more than 5% of class of our common

stock and members of the immediate families of those persons

Except as described below the policy covers

Any transactions arrangements or relationships or series of transactions arrangements or relationships that are

required to be disclosed in our proxy
statement under rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission in

general those in which the dollar amount involved exceeds or will exceed an aggregate of $120000 including all

periodic payments and

Any other transactions arrangements or relationships that would fall in the first
category

above
except for their

amount being less than the $120000 dollar threshold specified above

The transactions covered by the policy generally include loans but it does not cover loans the Bank makes in the

ordinary course of the business that are subject to banking regulations related to insider loans and that are required to

be approved by majority of the Banks Board of Directors The policy also does not cover the Banks depository or

similarbanking services in the ordinary course of its business or compensation paid to the Banks executive officers that

has been reviewed and approved or recommended to the Banks Board of Directors for approval by our Corporate

Governance Committee

In its review of related person transactions the policy provides that the Committee should exercise independent

judgment and should not approve any proposed transaction unless and until it shall have concluded to its satisfaction that

the transaction

Has been or will be agreed to or engaged in on an arms-length basis

Is to be made on terms that are fair and reasonable to us and

Is in the best interests of us and the Bank

Related Person Transactions During 2008 and 2007

The Bank has had and
expects to have in the future banking transactions in the ordinary course of its business with

certain of our and its current directors nominees for director executive officers and other related persons All loans

included in those transactions during 2008 and 2007 were made in the ordinary course of the Banks business on

substantially the same terms including interest rates repayment terms and collateral as those prevailing at the time those

loans were made for comparable transactions with other persons and those loans did not involve more than the normal

risk of collectibility or present other unfavorable features

During prior years the Bank entered into leases with related parties of two of our directors on buildings
the Bank

uses as branch offices Van Phillips is Vice President and co-owner of Great Meadows Inc which has leased the Bank

the
building that houses its branch office in Marion North Carolina The initial lease term is five years and the Bank has

options to renew the lease for up to four successive three-year renewal terms The terms of the lease call for $3500 per

month rental payment during the initial term Rental payments for each renewal term will be adjusted by the aggregate

increase in the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers for the immediately preceding lease term

Steve McManus is the owner of McManus Development LLC which leases the Bank the building that houses its

Fletcher North Carolina branch office The initial lease term is ten years and the Bank has
options to renew the lease for

up to three successive five-year renewal terms The terms of the lease call for $3200 per month rental payment during

the first five
years

of the initial term with payments during the second five
years to be increased by the lesser of 18% or

the
aggregate

increase in the Chained Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers during the previous five years
Rental payments during each renewal term will be

adjusted by the lesser of 15% or the aggregate increase in the Chained

Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers for the immediately preceding five years
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In each of the above leases we are responsible
for the payment of insurance and property taxes on the building during

the term of the lease Both of these leases were approved by our Board of Directors and are on terms and conditions our

Board believes are at least as favorable to us as those we could have obtained in leases from non-affiliated lessors on

comparable properties
in similar locations

BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF OUR COMMON STOCK

Principal Shareholders

We are not aware of anyone who owned beneficially or of record 5% or more of our outstanding shares on the

Record Date for the Annual Meeting

Directors and Executive Officers

The following table describes the beneficial ownership of our common stock on the Record Date for the Annual

Meeting by our current directors nominees for election as directors and certain of our officers individually and by all

our directors and executive officers as group

Amount and Nature of Percent of

Name of Beneficial Owner BeneficialOwnership Class

Lee Beason 63177 1.25%

William Burton 172668 3.41%

PeggyH Denny 51031 1.01%

Michael Foster 95271 1.88%

Gregory Gibson 98927 1.96%

James Kirkpatrick 111555 2.21%

Steve McManus 163167 3.23%

VanF Phillips
170665 3.38%

Vincent Rees 99337 1.97%

BradleyB.Schnyder 106531 2.11%

Catherine Schroeder 163279 3.23%

John Sheiiy
67185 1.33%

All current directors and executive

officers as group 14 people 1386441 24.68%

Except as otherwise noted and to the best of our knowledge the individuals named and included in the group

exercise sole voting and investment power with respect to all listed shares Individuals named and included in the

group have shared voting and investment power with respect to certain of the listed shares as follows Mr Beason

7952 shares Mr Burton32445 shares Ms Denny4705 shares Mr Foster5421 shares Mr Gibson52631

shares Mr McManus14 531 shares Mr Philhps110 113 shares Mr Schnyder6 805 Ms Schroader21 875

shares and all
persons

included in the group256634 shares The listed shares include the following numbers of

shares that could be purchased pursuant to stock options granted under our stock option plans that could be

exercised within 60 days following the Record Date and with respect to which shares the individuals named and

included in the group may be considered to exercise sole investment power only Mr Beason Ms Denny

Mr Gibson and Mr Rees37108 shares each Mr Burton Mr Foster Mr Kirkpatrick Mr McManus

Mr Phillips Mr Schnyder Ms Schroader and Mr Sheiry55858 shares each all individuals included in the

groupS 11048 shares Shares listed for certain of the named individuals have been pledged as security for loans as

follows Mr Kirkpatrick55041 shares and Mr McManus98290 shares

Percentages are calculated based on 001 248 total outstanding shares pius in the case of each named individual and

the group the number of additional shares that could be purchased by that individual or by persons
included in the

group pursuant to stock options
that could be exercised within 60 days following

the Record Date

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

In 2008 our directors and executive officers were required by federal securities law to ifie reports with the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation regarding the amounts of and changes in their beneficial ownership of the Banks common

23



stock and after the holding company reorganization to file such reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission

SEC about our common stock Based on our review of
copies of those

reports we are required to disclose in our proxy
statements failures to

report
shares beneficially owned or changes in beneficial ownership and failures to timely file

required reports during previous years In the
process

of our review for this
proxy statement we discovered that the wife

of our director Van
Phillips

had received
gift

of stock in Mountain 1st Bank Trust Company our predecessor The

report was filed promptly after we discovered that it had been overlooked

PROPOSAL ADVISORY VOTE ON ExEcuTivE COMPENSATION

Say-on-Pay Proposal

The American Recoveiy and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ARRA enacted during February 2009
requires financial

institutions that participate in the Treasury Departments TARP Capital Purchase Program the CPP to include

proposals in their
proxy

statements for non-binding shareholder votes on the compensation paid to their executive officers

As result at the Annual Meeting our Board of Directors will submit such proposal for
voting by our shareholders

This say-on-pay proposal will give our shareholders an opportunity to endorse or not endorse the compensation

paid or provided to our named executive officers and our executive compensation policies and practices as described in

this proxy statement by voting on the following resolution

Resolved that the compensation paid or provided to executive officers of 1st Financial Services Corporation 1st
Financial and its subsidiary and 1st Financial and its subsidiarys executive compensation policies and practices as

described in the tabular and narrative compensation disclosures contained in 1st Financials
proxy statement for its

2009 Annual Meeting hereby are endorsed and approved

The vote by our shareholders will be an advisory vote As provided in ARRA it will not be binding on our Board of

Directors or Compensation Committee or overrule or affect any previous action or decision by the Board or Committee or

any compensation previously paid or awarded Neither will it create or imply any additional duty on the part of the Board

or Committee However the Board and Compensation Committee will take the
voting

results on the proposed resolution

into account when
considering future executive compensation matters

You have the
opportimity to cast vote to state your approval or disapproval of the compensation the executive

compensation disclosed in this
proxy

statement We are committed to controlling compensation expense which is second

only to deposit interest expense in its impact on net income while offering to our executives the
appropriate mix of

rewards for services rendered and incentives for further contributions to our success We believe we have discharged that

responsibility with care and with our shareholders best interests always foremost and are convinced that our

compensation practices are closely aligned with our shareholders long-term interests We encourage you to review
very

carefully the tables and the narrative discussion under Officer Compensation before you cast your vote

This vote only addresses compensation of executive officers identified in the Summary Compensation Table not

compensation paid to other employees or compensation paid to directors shareholder of course may communicate

direcfly with us if the shareholder wishes to make his or her views about any aspect of our compensation practices known
shareholder who wishes to do so should follow the procedure outlined under the

caption Corporate Governance
Communication with Our Board

Our Executive Compensation Program

Executive compensation is chiefly the
responsibility

of our Corporate Governance Committee Over the years the

Committee has dedicated significant time and resources to fashioning an executive compensation package that promotes
our success The Committee has attempted to establish the elements of executive compensation at appropriate levels

engaging compensation consultants obtaining independent legal advice surveying compensation practices
of companies

the Committee considers peers performing independent analyses of our compensation arrangements and evolving

compensation trends and standards and participating in discussions of compensation at meetings of the Committee and

the whole board as well as maintaining an ongoing dialogue with senior management about compensation issues
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The principal elements of compensation of the executives identified in the Summary Compensation Table consist of

salary annual incentive cash bonuses long-term incentive equity awards and
post-termination

benefits These executives

are also entitled to reimbursement for disability and long-term care insurance coverage and they benefit from

participation in broad-based employee benefit arrangements such as medical dental and term life insurance programs

that are generally available to all employees

Salary To control
expenses

and promote more rapid achievement of
profitability

base salaries have been

maintained since inception at rates the Committee considers to be below market levels Base salanes in 2008 for the three

executives identified in the Summary Compensation Table were $173250 for Mr Gibson $157500 for Mr Rees and

$131250 for Mr Beason and Ms Denny As of the date of this
proxy statement no base salary increases have been

proposed or approved by the Committee for the 2009 fiscal year

Annual Cash Incentzve Bonuses Ordinarily the Committee annually recommends target amounts for each

financial measure net income ROAA ROAE and total assets at each performance level minimum strategic

superlative
and extraordinary and the bonus amounts for each executive at each performance level Because of the

rapid weakening of the financial sector of the economy and to demonstrate to our shareholders that management is

willing to sacrifice personal
financial

gain as shareholders face reduced corporate profits the Committee determined early

in 2008 that no performance incentives would be paid for the 2008 fiscal year No incentive pay of any kind was awarded

to executives for fiscal
year

2008 As our most highly compensated employee Mr Gibson will be ineligible for annual cash

incentive bonuses as long as the preferred
stock issued under the CPP is held by the Treasury Department

Long-Term Incentives Equity Awards In 2008 the Corporate Governance Committee awarded no stock

options or other
equity

awards under the 2008 Omnibus Equity Plan to the executives named in the Summary

Compensation Table When the Committee again considers whether to make any equity awards to these executives it will

take account of their
previous

stock option grants as well as the Committees subjective impression of the total

compensation and benefit arrangements provided to the executives As our most highly compensated employee

Mr Gibson will be ineligible as long as the preferred stock issued under the CPP is held by the Treasury Department for

any awards other than restricted stock under the 2008 Omnibus Equity Plan Any restricted stock awards made to him

during that period also will be subject to these limitations the restricted stock cannot become fully vested until the

Treasury Department no longer holds the preferred stock and the value of the restricted stock award cannot exceed

one third of Mr Gibson total annual compensation

Post Terminatzon and Death Benefits Our executive compensation arrangements also provide
for

post-

termination benefits and change in-control benefits through employment agreements and salary continuation agreements

as well as potential death benefit under split dollar life insurance agreements for death occurring both before

employment termination and before normal retirement age

Under Employment Agreements If any of Messrs Gibson Rees or Beason or Ms Denny is terminated

without cause or terminates voluntarily
because of an adverse change in employment circumstances each executive would

be entitled to continue to receive for up to three
years

base salary life and medical insurance coverage
and

reimbursement for disability and long-term care insurance coverage
Each executive also would be entitled to cash

payment equal to the intrinsic value of any unvested stock options
held when termination occurs These severance

benefits will not be
payable

however for termination occurring
while the preferred stock issued by the Company under

the CPP is held by the Treasury Department In that case the terminated executive would be entitled to no termination

benefits whatsoever

The employment agreements also provide for benefits that are payable
if change in control occurs The

change in control benefit consists of lump sum payment in cash in an amount equal to three times the executive

compensation For this purpose the term compensation means the executive base
salary

when the change in control

occurs plus any bonus or incentive compensation earned for the calendar
year immediately before the

year in which the

change in control occurs The change in-control benefit feature of the employment agreements and of the salary

continuation agreements is known as single trigger
benefit meamng the benefit is payable immediately after change

in control even if the executives employment is not terminated after the change in control We
recognize

that single-

trigger change-in-control benefits are more disfavored by shareholder advocates and others than are double-trigger

change-in-control benefits which are payable
if and

only
if employment termination follows shortly

after change in

control We nevertheless agreed to single-trigger change-in-control
benefits for reasons having to do with Internal
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Revenue Code section 409A That section imposes six-month delay on termination benefitssuch as double-trigger

change-in-control benefitspayable to publicly traded companys most highly compensated executives with series of

exceptions that could be difficult to apply and that might or might not be available when termination actually occurs But

section 409A imposes no delay at all on single-trigger change-in-control benefits Recognizing that executives who are

parties to the employment agreements are highly likely either to be terminated or to have good reason to terminate after

change in control because of an adverse change in their employment circumstances and taking into account the potential

legal complications and potential legal expenses
associated with applying the six-month

delay required by section 409A for

double-trigger change-in-control benefits the Committee concluded that the most likely practical differences between

single-trigger versus double-trigger benefit are the terminated executive would receive single-trigger benefits

immediately as intended whereas the same terminated executive might have to wait six months for the double-trigger

benefit and the
single-trigger benefit is clear and

requires no expertise to apply whereas the double-trigger benefit

would almost
inevitably involve payment of legal expenses to determine whether exceptions to the six-month delay are

available and to determine precisely when the benefit may be paid as well as expenses associated with
ensuring that the

acquiring company honors payment of the delayed benefit

These employment agreements also provide for tax gross up benefits to the executives If benefits payable after

change in control would cause the
imposition of the 20% parachute payment excise tax under Internal Revenue Code

section 4999 the executives change-in-control benefit would be increased by the amount necessaiy for the net after-tax

benefit to equal the amount the executive would have received had no excise taxes been imposed The 20% excise tax is

imposed under section 4999 if an executives total change-in-control benefits from all sources equal or exceed three times

his or her base amount meaning his or her
average

taxable compensation in the five
years preceding the change in

control If the total benefits
equal or exceed three times the base amount 20% excise tax under section 4999 is payable

by the executive on the portion of the total change-in-control benefits
exceeding his or her base amount and under

section 280G the employer forfeits its compensation deduction for the same portion of benefits tax gross-up benefit

ehminates the impact of excise tax on an executive but will
significantly increase both the total pre tax benefit paid to the

executive and the portionof the benefit that is not deductible by the employer

Under the employment agreements and Salaiy Continuation Agreements of Messrs Gibson Rees and Beason and

Ms Denny gross-up
benefit equal to 33% of full gross-up benefit could be payable for change in control occurring in

2009 66% of full benefit for change in control occurring in 2010 and 100% for change in control occurring in 2011

or any later year In
staggering the gross-up benefit the Committee reasoned that the total value payable to shareholders

in change in control is likely to increase significantly as we grow over time so that even though the
gross-up may

increase the change-in-control benefit the entire benefit should
represent smaller percentage of that

aggregate
value

with each
passing year Also the Committee considered that exposure to the excise tax is reduced as the executives

approach retirement
age

under the Salaiy Continuation Agreements and as the Banks liability accrual balance and the

associated early termination benefit entitlement of executives grow as result Therefore the magnitude of any gross-up

required should be reduced each
year as the accrual for the benefit grows

The employment agreements also provide that the executives would be entitled to accelerated
vesting in any

unvested stock options or other unvested awards at termination if within 24 months after the change in control their

employment is terminated involuntarily without cause or if they voluntarily terminate employment because of an adverse

change in employment circumstances and continued life and medical insurance
coverage

and reimbursement for

disability and
long term care insurance coverage

for up to three
years

if termination occurs at any time either
involuntarily

without cause or voluntarily because of an adverse change in employment circumstances

Because executives undivided attention to the goal of maximizing shareholder values is most urgently needed in the

context of possible change in control we believe that severance and change-in-control benefit arrangements enable us to

remain competitive for
top management talent and that the arrangements are in our best interest clear majority of peer

banks in the Carolinas of an asset size comparable to ours has entered into employment contracts with the banks most

senior executives

Under Salary Continuation Agreements In early 2008 the Bank entered into salary continuation agreements
with Messrs Gibson Rees and Beason and with Ms Denny With the aid of the Committees independent legal counsel

and compensation consultant we determined the salary continuation agreement retirement benefit by first
projecting

the executives final pay at retirement assuming retirement at
age

62 Our goal was to ensure that an executives
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retirement income produced by all employer-financed
retirement benefits would approximate 60% of projected final pay

at 62 taking into account the employers portion
of Social Security benefits employer 40 1k plan contributions and

benefits payable under the salary continuation agreements Payable for 15
years

in monthly installments beginning at
age

62 the annual retirement benefits are $134000 for Mr Gibson $186000 for Mr Rees $100000 for Mr Beason and

$72000 for Ms Denny increasing annually by 3% each
year

in retirement The benefit for termination before
age

62 is

reduced amount that is calculated based on the Banks liability accrual balance existing when employment termination

occurs also payable in monthly installments for 15 years beginning at
age

62

Caps established under Federal law on qualified plan
contributions and distributions and on Social Security

benefits

for highly compensated individuals often cause senior executives retirement benefits derived from the employers

qualified plan contributions and from the employer-funded portion of the executives Social Security benefits to be

much smaller percentage of final pay for example in the
range

of 30% tO 50% than is the case for other employees which

are commonly in the 70% to 90% range Combined with the Banks portion of Social
Security

benefits and 401k plan

contributions the retirement benefit payable under an executives salary continuation agreement can remedy this shortfall

and allow the executives aggregate employer-financed retirement benefits to more closely approximate the executives

final pay

If change in control occurs each executive will be entitled under his or her salary continuation agreement to the

greater of an amount equal to the Banks liability accrual balance existing when the change in control occurs or

$750000 in either case payable in single lump sum immediately after the change in control Because most of the

executives are many years away from the
age

62 normal retirement age the Banks liability accrual balance for the

executives who have entered into salary continuation agreements will not exceed $750000 for many years The

change-in-control benefit feature of the salary continuation agreements like the employment agreements is known as

single-trigger
benefit meaning the benefit is payable immediately after change in control even if the executive

employment is not also terminated after the change in control The Bank believes the change-in-control benefit feature of

salary continuation agreement is important and that it together with the retirement benefit features of the agreement

reinforces an executives long-term commitment to us For that reason we believe the change-in-control
benefit feature of

the salary continuation agreements as well as the retirement benefit features of the agreement are in our best interests

Under Endorsement Split
Dollar Life Insurance We consider adequate life insurance coverage

for executives to

be an essential element of the compensation necessary
to retain attract and reward excellent service In December 2007

the Bank entered into endorsement split
dollar insurance agreements with Messrs Gibson Rees and Beason and with

Ms Denny entithng each executive to designate
the beneficiary of specified portion of the death benefits payable under

bank owned pohcies on the executive life The agreements were amended in January 2009 to clanf that the executive

right to designate beneficiary of the life insurance death benefit
expires

when the executives employment terminates or

when the executive attains normal retirement age whichever occurs first For purposes of the agreements the term

normal retirement age means the
age

at which an executive would be entitled to full retirement benefits under the

Social Security Act The death benefit payable to the executives beneficiary is the lesser of the policys net death

proceeds meaning the total death benefit minus the policy cash surrender value or $1 25 million in the case of

Messrs Gibson and Rees and $1 million in the case of Mr Beason and Ms Denny The Bank is entitled to all msurance

policy
death proceeds remaining after payment of the death benefit to the executive beneficiary

Purchasing bank owned life insurance on an executive life and then entering into salary continuation agreement

and an endorsement split dollar agreement with the executive is compensation strate Income earned on the cash

surrender value of the bank-owned life insurance policy can offset in whole or in part the after-tax expense of the accrual

necessary
to account for the banks salary continuation agreement obligation to the executive Because the split dollar

agreements entitle the executives to designate the beneficiary
of life insurance proceeds solely for death occurring

before

the earlier of their employment termination or attainment of normal retirement age
under current accounting

rules there

is no compensation expense associated with the life insurance benefit We believe that the bank-owned life msurance used

to finance the salary continuation agreements allows the Bank to implement compensation programs in manner that is

cost effective and that serves the vital purpose of attracting retaining
and rewarding valued executive officer service This

bank owned hfe insurance financing method is not expected to result in any material cost to the Bank but is expected to

increase the Banks non-interest income in future operating periods Because the Bank intends to hold the bank-owned

life insurance policies until the deaths of the executives the increase of cash surrender value should be tax-free income

under current Federal income tax law In contrast assets in traditional taxable investments are subject to Federal income
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taxation The Banks eventual collection of death benefits on the life insurance policies which is also tax free under

current Federal and state income taxation is expected to enhance the companys return as well The combination of

tax-preferred income generated by the
increasing cash value of the insurance policy the tax-free insurance death benefit

and fully tax-deductible benefit payments to participants enables the bank to provide this
significant benefit to executives

through attractive cost-recovely financing

Recent Legislation The Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 reduces from $1 million to $500000 the

maximum Federal income tax deduction that we as CPP participant may claim for remuneration paid to the executives

identified in the Summary Compensation Table This new $500000 deduction limitation in section 162m5 of the

Internal Revenue Code also provides that performance-based compensation such as ordinary stock option compensation
and deferred compensation is to be taken into account in the calculation of total remuneration As condition to

participation
in the CPP we agreed not to claim any deduction exceeding the $500000 limit Based on the compensation

levels of these named executive officers we have determined that for 2008 we will not be required to forego any

compensation deductions because of the $500000 deduction limitation

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 amended the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act to

require
the Treasury Department to adopt rules

governing
the executive compensation practices of CPP

participants and

those rules
generally will apply for as long as the preferred stock issued under the CPP continues to be held by the

Treasury Department In addition to
requiring

shareholder vote on executive compensation the American Recovery and

Reinvestment Act of 2009 provides that the Treasury Department rules must contain the following specific limitations and

provisions

Executive compensation arrangements must exclude incentives for senior executive officers meaning an executive

identified in the Summary Compensation Table to take unnecessary and excessive risks that threaten the value of

the company executive compensation arrangements also must not contain any provision that would encourage

manipulation of reported earnings to enhance any employees compensation

If bonus or other award is made based on materially inaccurate financial statements to any senior executive

officer or any of the next 20 most highly compensated employees the bonus or other award must be recovered or

clawed back by the company

Payments made on account of an executives termination of servicereferred to in the American Recovery and

Reinvestment Act of 2009 as golden parachute paymentsare prohibited altogether in the case of the senior

executive officers and the next five most highly compensated employees although payments for services

performed or for benefits accrued are permitted and

Except for limited amounts of restricted stock bonus and incentive compensation may not be
paid to the most

highly compensated employee which
ordinarily would be the CPP

participants
chief executive officer for as long

as the preferred stock issued under the CPP continues to be held by the Treasury Department Although bonus

and incentive compensation is prohibited CPP participant may award to the most highly compensated employee
restricted stock with value of

up to one third of his or her compensation but the restricted stock may not become

fully vested until the
preferred stock issued under the CPP is no longer

held by the Treasury Department

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 also
provides that CPP participants board must adopt

company-wide policy governing luxury expenditures including expenditures for such items as use of company airplanes

office renovations and entertainment And the companys compensation committee consisting entirely of independent
directors must meet at least twice annually to evaluate risks associated with the companys compensation arrangements

Finally the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 also allows the Treasury Department to demand
recovery

of bonuses and other compensation paid before that statute was enacted if the Treasury Department concludes that the

payments were inconsistent with the purposes of the CPP or contrary to the
public interest

Our Board of Directors believes that our executive compensation policies and practices are

based on pay for-peiformance philosophy and are aligned with our shareholders

long-term interests and it recommends that you vote FOR Proposal

To be approved the number of votes cast in person and by proxy at the Annual Meeting

in favor of the proposal must exceed the number of votes cast against it
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PROPOsAL RATiFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT ACcoUNTANTS

Appointment of Independent Accountants

Our Audit Committee has selected Brown Edwards Company LLP to serve as our independent accountants for

2009 The Committees charter gives it the responsibility and authority to select and
appoint our independent accountants

each
year

and to approve their compensation and other terms of engagement and our shareholders are not required by

our Bylaws or the law to ratify the Committees selection However we will submit proposal to ratify the appointment of

Brown Edwards Company LLP for 2009 for voting by shareholders at the Annual Meeting as matter of good

corporate practice
and as way for shareholders to be heard in the selection process Representatives

of Brown

Edwards Company LLP are expected to attend the Annual Meeting and be available to respond to appropriate

questions
and they will have an opportunity

to make statement if they desire to do so If our shareholders do not ratify

the Audit Committees selection the Committee will reconsider its decision but it could choose to reaffirm its

appointment of Brown Edwards Company LLP Even if our shareholders vote to ratify the Committee selection

during the
year

the Committee could choose to appoint
different independent accountants at any time if it determines

that change would be in our best interests

Brown Edwards Company LLP was appointed by our Audit Committee to serve as our independent accountants

on October 16 2008 and has audited our 2008 consolidated financial statements It replaced Elliot Davis PLLC which

audited the Banks financial statements for 2007 and 2006 and which had served as the Banks independent accountants

since 2005 In connection with Elliot Davis PLLCs audits during the two most recent fiscal
years

for the Bank ended

December 31 2007 and 2006 and through the date of the Committees action dismissing Elliot Davis PLLC there were

no disagreements
with Elliot Davis PLLC on any matter of accounting pnnciples or practices

financial statement

disclosure or auditing scope or procedures which if not resolved to Elliot Davis PLLCs satisfaction would have caused

it to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in connection with its reports on our financial statements

Elliot Davis PLLCs audit reports on the Banks financial statements as of and for the
years

ended December 31

2007 and 2006 did not contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion nor were they qualified or modified as to

uncertainty audit scope or accounting principles

During 2006 and 2007 and through the date of the Committees action dismissing Elliot Davis PLLC there were no

reportable events requiring disclosure pursuant to Item 304a1v of the Securities and Exchange Commissions

Regulation
S-K or any consultations with Brown Edwards Company LLP of type requiring

disclosure pursuant to

Item 304a2 of Regulation
S-K

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR Proposal To be approved

the number of votes ca8t in person and by proxy at the Annual Meeting in

favor of the proposal must exceed the number of votes cast against it

Services and Fees Dunng 2008

Under its current procedures our Audit Committee specifically pre-approves
all audit services and other services

provided by our independent accountants In the future in connection with its approval of services the Committee may

authorize its Chairman to approve
non-audit services that we propose to obtain from time to time during the

year
from

our accountants The Chairman would report
his approval of any services to the full Committee at its next regularly

scheduled meeting

As our independent accountants for 2008 Brown Edwards Company LLP provided us only
with audit services In

the future the Audit Committee may consider whether Brown Edwards Company LLP will provide us with other

professional services If so our Audit Committee will consider whether the
provision

of non-audit services by our

independent accounting
firm is compatible with maintaining its independence
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The
following table hsts the aggregate amounts of fees paid to Brown Edwards Company LLP for audit services

for 2008 and for other services they provided during 2008

Type of Fees and Description of Services 2008

Audzt Fees
including audits of our financial statements and reviews of our intenm consohdated financial

statements $80500

Audit-Related Fees -0-

Tax Fees
-0-

All Other Fees
-0-
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PROPOSALS FOR 2010 ArVNUAL MEETiNG

Any proposal of shareholder other than nomination for election as director that is intended to be presented for

action at the 2010 Annual Meeting must be received by our Corporate Secretary in writing at our address listed below no

later than December 31 2009 to be considered timely
received for inclusion in the proxy statement and proxy card that

we will distribute in connection with that meeting Written proposals
should be sent to the same address as is listed below

for communications with our board For proposal to be included in our proxy materials for particular meeting the

person submitting the proposal must own beneficially or of record at least 1% or $2000 in market value whichever is

less of shares of our common stock entitled to be voted on that proposal at the meeting and must have held those shares

for penod of at least one year
and continue to hold them through the date of the meeting Also the proposal

and the

shareholder submitting it must comply with certain other
eligibility

and procedural requirements contained in rules of the

Securities and Exchange Commission

Written notice of shareholder proposal other than nomination intended to be presented at our 2010 Annual

Meeting but which is not intended to be included in our proxy statement and form of appointment of proxy must be

received by our Corporate Secretary at the address listed below no later than March 16 2010 in order for that proposal

to be considered
timely

received for purposes of the Proxies discretionary authority to vote on other matters presented for

action by shareholders at that meeting

Under our Bylaws at meeting of our shareholders at which directors will be elected nominations for election to our

Board of Directors may be made by our Board or by shareholder of record who is entitled to vote at the meeting if

written notice of the shareholders nomination has been delivered to our Corporate Secretary at our principal
office not

later than the close of business on the tenth business day following the date on which notice of the meeting is first
given to

shareholders

The required notice of nomination must include the names and addresses of the shareholder who intends to

make the nomination and of the person to be nominated representation
that the shareholder is holder of record of

shares of our common stock entitled to vote at the meeting and that he or she intends to appear in person or by proxy at

the meeting to nominate the person named in the notice description of all arrangements or understandings between

the shareholder and the nominee and any other
persons naming those persons pursuant to which the nomination is to be

made by the shareholder representation
that each nominee satisfies all qualifications provided by our Bylaws or by

applicable statute or regulation to serve as director and the written consent of the nominee to serve as director if

elected The shareholder also shall provide such other information about each nominee proposed that we reasonably

request
and which can be obtained by the shareholder including

information of
type

that would be required to be

included in proxy statement ified pursuant to the
proxy

rules under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 if the nominee

had been nominated by the Board of Directors Only persons
nominated in the manner described in our Bylaws are

eligible to be elected as directors at meetings of our shareholders and the Chairman of meeting of our shareholders may

refuse to acknowledge nomination that is not made in compliance with the procedures set out in our Bylaws

The notices described above should be mailed to

1st Financial Services Corporation

Attention Corporate Secretary

101 Jack Street

Hendersonville North Carolina 28792

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and we file reports and other

information about our company with the Securities and Exchange Commission including proxy statements annual reports

and quarterly reports You may review information that we ifie electronically with the SEC on the SECs Internet website

at www sec gay

copy of the Banks 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the Securities Exchange Commission

accompanies this proxy statement
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PART

ITEM Business

General

1st Financial Services Corporation 1st Financial became the parent bank holding company for Mountain 1st

Bank Trust Company the Bank in May 2008 1st Financial has no other assets or liabilities other than its

investment in the Bank 1st Financials business activity primarily consists of directing the activities of the Bank

Accordingly the information set forth in this report including financial statements and related data relates

primarily to the Bank 1st Financial and the Bank are sometimes collectively referred to as the Company in this

report 1st Financial and the Bank are both headquartered at 101 Jack Street Hendersonville North Carolina 28792

Mountain 1st Bank Trust Company the Bank was incorporated under the laws of the state of North

Carolina on April 30 2004 and opened for business on May 14 2004 as North Carolina chartered conmiercial

bank The Bank is engaged in general commercial banking primarily in ten western North Carolina counties

including Buncombe Catawba Cleveland Haywood Henderson McDowell Polk Rutherford Transylvania and

Watauga The Bank operates under the banking laws of North Carolina and the rules and regulations of the

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation the FDIC

As North Carolina bank the Bank is subject to examination and regulation by the FDIC and the North

Carolina Commissioner of Banks The Bank is further subject to certain regulations of the Federal Reserve

governing reserve requirements to be maintained against deposits and other matters The business and regulation

of the Bank are also subject to legislative changes from time to time See Supervision and Regulation

The Banks primary market area is southwestern North Carolina Its main office and Hendersonville South

office are located in Hendersonville North Carolina The Bank also has full service branch offices in Arden

Asheville Boone Brevard Columbus Etowah Forest City Fletcher Hickory Marion Lake Lure Shelby and

Waynesville North Carolina The Banks loans and deposits are primarily generated from within its local market

areas

During 2008 the Company experienced continued asset growth At December 31 2008 the Banks assets

totaled $707.1 million representing an increase of $100.6 million or 16.6% as compared with year end 2007

assets of $606.5 million Net income for the year ended December 31 2008 totaled $339 thousand as compared

with $3.5 million for 2007 representing decrease of 90.4% Diluted earnings per
share totaled $0.04 for 2008

compared with $0.66 per diluted share for 2007 for decrease of 93.9% At December 31 2008 the Banks

gross loans totaled $584.0 million as compared with $521.9 million while deposits amounted to $591.0 miffion as

compared with $529.1 million and stockholders equity increased to $62.6 million from $46.2 million These

totals represent increases of $62.1 million or 11.9% $61.9 million or 11.7% and $16.4 million or 35.5%

respectively

The Banks primary source of revenue is interest and fee income from its lending activities These lending

activities consist pnncipally of onginating commercial operating and working capital loans residential mortgage

loans home equity lines of credit other consumer loans and loans secured by commercial real estate Current

lending strategy targets loan to asset ratio of 75% to 82% It is managements opinion that maintaining loan to

asset ratio in this range maximizes earnings potential while still providing adequate liquidity for the safe and

sound operation of the Bank At December 31 2008 the Banks gross loan to asset ratio was 82.6% slightly

above this target range principally as result of the loans currently being warehoused for Live Oak Bank as

discussed elsewhere herein These loans are expected to be sold to Live Oak during the second half of 2009

Excluding these loans the ratio of loans to assets would have been 77.1% At December 31 2008 the largest

amount the Bank had outstanding to any one borrower and its affiliates was approximately $7.6 million

Interest and dividend income from investment activities generally provides the second largest source of

income to the Bank after interest on loans Management has chosen to introduce little credit risk into the Banks



investment portfolio and as such it is comprised primarily of debt and mortgage backed securities issued by

agencies of the United States and Government Sponsored Enterprises As result of this strategy the Bank has

been able to avoid deteriorating credit issues and associated losses sustained recently by many institutions that

invested in non-government guaranteed securities Management expects to continue this practice for the

foreseeable future Furthermore management has chosen to maintain relatively short duration with respect to

the investment portfolio as whole While this strategy has resulted in slight reduction in portfolio yield it has

reduced the market price volatility and consequently mark to market charges against the Banks capital

Deposits are the primary source of the Banks funds for lending and other investment purposes The Bank

attracts both short and long-term deposits from the general public by offering variety of accounts and rates In

addition to noninterest bearing checking accounts the Bank offers statement savings accounts negotiable order

of withdrawal NOW accounts money market demand accounts fixed interest rate certificates with varying

maturities and IRA deposit accounts Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2007 significant change occurred

within the financial markets as result of the sub-prime mortgage crisis with its ensuing adverse effect on

liquidity within the market as whole The changes experienced within the financial markets with respect to

liquidity created critical funding challenge especially for larger banks As result many of these larger

institutions reverted to local and regionalized CD markets to fill their liquidity shortfalls As result during late

2007 and continuing throughout 2008 these banks dramatically changed the pricing dynamics of many of the

markets in which the Bank operates Management has made strategic decision to apply disciplined pricing

philosophy with respect to both loan and deposit pricing Particularly relating to CD pricing during this period of

market disruption management has opted to begin to utilize lower cost wholesale sources of funds rather than

pay the higher premiums on CDs which have been manifested as result of actions taken by larger bank

competitors Management believes that CD pricing will revert to more normalized level as liquidity returns to

fixed income markets during 2009 and 2010 Accordingly during the fourth quarter of 2008 the Bank initiated

its first use of brokered certificates of deposit At December 31 2008 $38 million in brokered cds were

outstanding At December 31 2008 $48 million in advances were outstanding with the Federal Home Loan

Bank of Atlanta Management expects to continue to utilize these and other wholesale sources of funding as long

as the liquidity and pricing disruption in the Banks core CD markets persist

Throughout most of its history the Bank has operated in an environment of rising interest rates However

beginning the last half of 2007 the Federal Reserves Federal Open Market Committee FOMC began to reduce

short term interest rates in response to weakening economy Heretofore management had structured the Banks

balance sheet with relatively short duration Interest rate risk while relatively neutral has been maintained with

slightly asset sensitive bias since the Banks inception Management considers this configuration to be

favorable in most interest rate environments The primary exception to this approach is scenario in which short

term interest rates are driven down dramatically and rapidly Beginning in the third quarter of 2007 and

continuing through 2008 the FOMC began the most dramatic reduction in short term interest rates experienced

in the U.S in decades During this period short term interest rates were reduced by 500 basis points As result

of this extraordinary drop in short term interest rates and the asset sensitive structure of the Banks balance sheet

management expects the Banks earnings to be adversely impacted for at least the first half of 2009 until

sufficient maturities occur in the Banks CD portfolio to allow for repricing at lower market rates

Competition and Market Area

Commercial banking in North Carolina is highly competitive due in large part to our states early adoption

of statewide branching Over the years
federal and state legislation including the elimination of restrictions on

interstate banking has heightened the competitive environment in which all fmancial institutions conduct their

business and the potential for competition among financial institutions of all types has increased significantly

Banking also is highly competitive in our market North Carolina is home to several of the largest

commercial banks in the United States all of which have branches located in our ten county banking market We

compete with numerous national regional and community commercial banks in our markets as well as several

savings institutions



Interest rates both on loans and deposits and prices of fee-based services are significant competitive factors

among financial institutions generally Other important competitive factors include office location office hours

quality of customer service community reputation continuity of personnel and services and in the case of larger

commercial customers relative lending limits and the ability to offer sophisticated cash management and other

commercial banking services Many of our competitors have greater resources broader geographic markets

more extensive branch networks and higher lending limits than we do They also may offer broader menu of

products and services and can better afford and make more effective use of media advertising support services

and electronic technology than we can In terms of assets we are one of the smaller commercial banks in North

Carolina and we cannot assure you that we will be or continue to be an effective competitor in our banking

market However we believe that community banks can compete successfully by providing personalized service

and making timely local decisions and that further consolidation in the banking industry is likely to create

additional opportunities for community banks to capture deposits from customers who become dissatisfied as

their financial institutions grow larger We also believe that the continued growth of our banking market affords

an opportunity to capture new deposits

Substantially all of our customers are individuals and small and medium-sized businesses We differentiate

ourselves from our larger competitors with our focus on relationship banking personalized service direct

customer contact and our ability to make credit and other business decisions locally We also depend on our

reputation as community bank in our banking market our involvement in the communities we serve the

experience of our senior management team and the quality of the members of our teams charged with the day to

day operation of the Bank We believe our focus allows us to be more responsive to our customers needs and

more flexible in approving loans and customizing deposit products based on our personal knowledge of our

customers

The Banks primary market area is the southwestern mountain region of North Carolina The economy of

the area is generally considered stable and growing The primary economic drivers of the area are tourism and

burgeoning retirement industry which has provided significant stimulus to residential and resort development

Although this area has relatively few large manufacturing facilities it has numerous small to mid-sized

businesses which are our primary business customers These businesses include agricultural producers artisans

and specialty craft manufacturers small industrial manufacturers and variety of service oriented industries

Although there are numerous financial institutions that have operations in our area only four other community

commercial banks are headquartered in any of these counties

Services

Our banking operations are primarily retail oriented and directed toward small to medium-sized businesses

and individuals located in our banking markets We derive the majority of our deposits and loans from customers

in our banking markets but we also make loans and have deposit relationships with commercial and consumer

customers in areas surrounding our immediate banking markets We provide most traditional commercial and

consumer banking services but our principal activities are taking demand and time deposits and making

commercial and consumer loans Our primary source of revenue is the interest income we derive from our

lending activities

Lending Activities

General We provide variety of commercial and consumer lending products to small to medium-sized

businesses and individuals for various business and personal purposes including term and installment loans

business and personal lines of credit equity lines of credit and overdraft checking credit For financial reporting

purposes our loan portfolio generally is divided into real estate loans consumer installment loans commercial

and industrial loans including agricultural production loans if any and revolving consumer related plans We
currently make credit card services available to our customers through correspondent relationship Statistical

information about our loan portfolio is contained in Item of this report under the caption Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations



Real Estate Loans Our real estate loan classification includes all loans secured by real estate Real estate

loans include loans made to purchase refinance construct or improve residential or commercial real estate for

real estate development purposes and for various other commercial agricultural and consumer purposes which

may or may not be related to our real estate collateral On December 31 2008 loans amounting to

approximately 83.6% of our loan portfolio excluding loans held for sale were classified as real estate loans This

compares with 83.1% at December 31 2007 and 80.8% at December 31 2006 While we do originate long term

fixed rate residential mortgages we generally do not retain these loans in the Banks loan portfolio Rather these

are sold on flow basis to other lenders after closing and are reflected in the accompanying financial statements

as Loans held for sale This arrangement permits us to make long-term residential loans available to our

customers and to generate fee income while avoiding the credit and interest rate risks associated with such loans

in our loan portfolio At December 31 2008 the Bank had total of $81.8 million in residential first mortgages

in the loan portfolio amounting to approximately 14.1% of the total portfolio which compares with $72.4 million

or 14.0% or the portfolio at December 31 2007 These loans are predominantly variable rate or short maturity

mortgages

Commercial real estate and construction loans typically involve larger loan balances concentrated with

single borrowers or groups of related borrowers Repayment of commercial real estate loans may depend on the

successful operation of income producing properties business or real estate project and therefore may to

greater extent than in the case of other loans be subject to the risk of adverse conditions in the economy

generally or in the real estate market in particular

Construction loans involve special risks because loan funds are advanced on the security of houses or other

improvements that are under construction and are of uncertain value before construction is complete For that

reason it is more difficult to evaluate accurately the total loan funds required to complete project and the

related loan-to-value ratios To reduce these risks we generally limit construction loan amounts to 85% of the

cost of the projected as built appraised value of our collateral upon completion of construction For larger

projects we include amounts for contingencies in our construction cost estimates We also generally require

qualified permanent financing commitment from an outside lender unless we have agreed to convert the

construction loan to permanent financing ourselves

On December 31 2008 our construction and acquisition and development loans consumer and

commercial amounted to $165.0 million or approximately 28.5% of our loan portfolio excluding loans held for

sale This compares with approximately 30.8% of the portfolio at December 31 2007 Other commercial real

estate loans totaled $193.0 million or approximately 33.3% of our loan portfolio at the end of 2008 This

compares with 31.9% of the loan portfolio at December 31 2007

Real estate loans also include home equity lines of credit that generally are used for consumer purposes
and

usually are secured by junior liens on residential real property Our commitment on each line is for term of 15

years During the terms of the lines of credit borrowers may either pay accrued interest only calculated at

variable interest rates with their outstanding pnncipal balances becoming due full at the maturity of the lines

or they may make monthly payments of principal and interest equal to 1.5% of their outstanding balances On

December 31 2008 our home equity lines of credit accounted for approximately $31.9 million or 5.5% of our

loan portfolio as compared with $24.4 million or 4.7% at December 31 2007

Many of our real estate loans while secured by real estate were made for purposes unrelated to the real

estate collateral This generally reflects our efforts to reduce credit risk by taking real estate as additional

collateral whenever possible without regard to loan purpose Substantially all of our real estate loans are secured

by real property located in or near our banking markets Our real estate loans may be made at fixed or variable

interest rates and they generally have maturities that do not exceed five
years with the exception of home equity

lines of credit as discussed above and provide for payments based on typical amortization schedules of 25 years

or less real estate loan with maturity of more than five years or that is based on an amortization schedule of

more than five
years generally will include contractual provisions that allow us to call the loan in full or provide

for balloon payment in full at the end of period generally not exceeding five years



Consumer Installment Loans Our consumer installment loans consist primarily of loans for various

consumer purposes as well as the outstanding balances of non-real estate secured consumer revolving credit

accounts majority of these loans are secured by liens on various personal assets of the borrowers but they also

may be made on an unsecured basis On December 31 2008 our consumer installment loans totaled $6.5 million

or 1.1% of the loan portfolio as compared with $6.5 million or approximately 1.3% of our loan portfolio at the

end of 2007 In addition to loans classified on our books as consumer installment loans many of our loans

included in the real estate loan classification are made for consumer purposes but are classified as real estate

loans on our books because they are secured by first or junior liens on real estate Consumer loans generally are

made at fixed interest rates and with maturities or amortization schedules that generally do not exceed five years

However consumer-purpose loans secured by real estate and thus classified as real estate loans as described

above may be made for terms of up to 20 years but under terms that allow us to call the loan in full or provide

for balloon payment at the end of period of generally no more than five years

Consumer installment loans are considered to involve greater risks than other loans particularly in the case

of loans that are unsecured or secured by depreciating assets When damage or depreciation reduces the value of

our collateral below the unpaid balance of defaulted loan repossession may not result in repayment of the

entire outstanding loan balance The resulting deficiency may not warrant further substantial collection efforts

against the borrower In connection with consumer lending in general the success of our loan collection efforts is

highly dependent on the continuing financial stability of our borrowers and our collection of consumer

installment loans may be more likely to be adversely affected by borrowers job loss illness personal

bankruptcy or other change in personal circumstances than is the case with other types of loans

Commercial and Industrial Loans Our commercial and industrial loan classification includes loans to

small to medium-sized businesses and individuals for working capital equipment purchases and various other

business and agricultural purposes This classification excludes loans secured by real estate These loans

generally are secured by business assets such as inventory accounts receivable equipment or similar assets but

they also may be made on an unsecured basis On December 31 2008 our commercial and industrial loans

totaled $88.5 million and accounted for approximately 15.3% of the Banks loan portfolio This compares with

$80.9 million or approximately 15.6% of our loan portfolio at December 31 2007 In addition to loans classified

on our books as commercial and industrial loans many of our loans included in the real estate loan classification

are made for commercial or agricultural purposes but are classified as real estate loans on our books because they

are secured by first or junior liens on real estate Commercial and industrial loans may be made at variable or

fixed rates of interest However any loan that has maturity or amortization schedule of longer than five years

normally will be made at an interest rate that varies with our prime lending rate and will include contractual

provisions that allow us to call the loan in full or provide for balloon payment in full at the end of period

generally not exceeding five years Commercial and industrial loans typically are made on the basis of the

borrowers ability to make repayment from business cash flow As result the ability of borrowers to repay

commercial loans may be substantially dependent on the success of their businesses and the collateral for

commercial loans may depreciate over time and cannot be appraised with as much precision as real estate

Loan Pricing Generally we price our loans based on the level of risk identified in particular loan

transaction within market constraints and conditions and in conjunction with objectives established as part of

our asset/liability management function and annual budgeting process On December 31 2008 approximately

73.5% of the total dollar amount of our loans accrued interest at variable rates This is slightly more than the total

of approximately 64.5% at December 31 2007 Management believes that maintenance of the portfolio at this or

higher levels of floating rate loans provides for the best earnings performance under most economic

environments

Loan Administration and Underwriting We make loans based to great extent on our assessment of

borrowers income cash flow net worth sources of repayment and character The principal risk associated with

each of the categories of our loans is the creditworthiness of our borrowers and our loans may be viewed as

involving higher degree of credit risk than is the case with some other types of loans such as long-term



residential mortgage loans in which greater emphasis is placed on collateral values To manage this risk we

have adopted written loan policies and procedures and our loan portfolio is administered under defined

process That process includes guidelines and standards for loan underwriting and risk assessment and

procedures for loan approvals loan grading ongoing identification and management of credit deterioration and

portfolio reviews to assess loss exposure
and to test our compliance with our credit policies and procedures

The loan underwriting standards we use include an evaluation of various factors including loan

applicants income cash flow payment history on other debts and ability to meet existing obligations and

payments on the proposed loan Although an applicants creditworthiness is primary consideration in the loan

approval process our underwriting process
for secured loans also includes an analysis of the value of the

proposed collateral in relation to the proposed loan amount We consider the value of collateral the degree of

certainty of that value the marketability of the collateral in the event of foreclosure or repossession and the

likelihood of depreciation in the collateral value

Our Board of Directors has approved levels of lending authority for lending and credit personnel based on

our aggregate credit exposure to borrower loan that satisfies the Bank loan policies and is withm lending

officers assigned authority may be approved by that officer alone Loans involving an aggregate exposure
to

single relationship in excess of lending officers authority must be approved by our President and/or our Chief

Credit Officer These individuals have independent authority up to total credit exposure amount of $2.0 million

and joint authority up to total credit exposure amount of $4.0 million loan involving an aggregate exposure

to single relationship over that threshold must be approved by the Loan Committee of our Board of Directors

When loan is made our lending officer handling that loan assigns it grade based on various underwriting

and other criteria under our risk grading procedures Generally any proposed loan that grades below threshold

set by our Board of Directors must be reviewed by Credit Administration Officer before it can be made even if

the loan amount is within the loan officers approval authority The grades assigned to loans we make indicate

the level of ongoing review and attention we will give to those loans to protect our position and reduce loss

exposure

After loans are made they are reviewed by our Credit and Loan Administration personnel for adequacy of

contract documentation compliance with regulatory requirements and documentation of compliance with our

loan underwriting criteria Also we engage third party consultant to perform detailed reviews of selected loans

based on various criteria including loan type amount collateral and borrower identity and the particular

lending officers or branchs lending history These reviews typically include at least 10% of the loans made by

each lending officer annually The Banks policy requires that each loan relationship involving an aggregate

exposure of more than $1.5 million be reviewed at least annually by third party credit reviewer Loan

Administration personnel also periodically review various loans based on various criteria and we retain the

services of at least one third party credit risk consultant to annually review our problem loans random

sampling of performing loans related to our larger aggregate credit exposures and selected other loans

Dunng the life of each loan its grade is reviewed and validated or modified to reflect changes in

circumstances and risk We generally place loan on non-accruing status when it becomes 90 days past due or

whenever we believe collection of interest and/or principal on that loan has become doubtful We charge off

loans when their collection has become doubtful and the loans no longer can be considered sound collectible

assets or in the case of unsecured loans when they become 90 days past due

Our Chief Credit Officer is charged with monitoring the overall performance of our loan portfolio and the

collection activities of our lending officers and directly supervises collection actions that involve legal action or

bankruptcies

Allowance for Loan Losses Our Board of Directors reviews all impaired loans at least quarterly and our

management reviews asset quality trends at least monthly Based on these reviews and our current judgments



about the credit quality of our loan portfolio and other relevant internal and external factors we have established

an allowance for loan losses The adequacy of the allowance is assessed by our management and reviewed by our

Board of Directors at least quarterly On December 31 2008 our allowance was $9.0 million and amounted to

1.55% of our total loans excluding loans held for sale This compares with 1.46% at year end 2007 At

December 31 2008 the Bank had total of $10.0 million of nonaccruing loans $1.0 million of which was

represented by single credit secured by first lien on commercial property with an appraised value of over $3

million At that date the Bank had $2.1 million in foreclosed or repossessed property and no loans past due 90

days or more At December 31 2007 the Bank had $1.3 million non-accruing loans $1.0 million of which was

represented by single credit secured by first lien on commercial property with an appraised value of over $3

million

Deposit Activities

Our deposit services include business and individual checking accounts NOW accounts money market

checking accounts savings accounts and certificates of deposit We monitor our competition in order to keep the

rates paid on our deposits at competitive level On December 31 2008 our time deposits of $100000 or more

amounted to approximately $176.5 million or approximately 29.9% of our total deposits The fourth quarter of

2008 marked our first use of wholesale deposits At December 31 2008 the Bank had $38.0 million in brokered

certificates of deposit

Statistical information about our deposit accounts is contained in Item of this report under the caption

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Investment Portfolio

On December 31 2008 our investment portfolio totaled approximately $87.6 million of which $86.8

million were classified as available for sale Available for sale securities include mortgage-backed securities

guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association GNMA or issued by the Federal National

Mortgage Corporation FNMA and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation FHLMC including

collateralized mortgage obligations Also included in the Banks available for sale investment portfolio are debt

instruments issued by U.S governmental agencies or by Government Sponsored Enterprises including FNMA
FHLMC and SBA We analyze their performance at least quarterly Our securities have various interest rate

features maturity dates and call options

Statistical information about our investment portfolio is contained in Item of this report under the caption

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Employees

At December 31 2008 the Bank had 156 full-time equivalent employees including 145 full-time

employees including our executive officers and 22 part-time employees We are not party to any collective

bargaining agreement with our employees and we consider our relations with our employees to be good

Supervision and Regulation

Our business and operations are subject to extensive federal and state governmental regulation and

supervision The following is brief summary of certain statutes and rules and regulations that affect or will

affect us This summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the particular statute and regulatory provisions

referred to below and is not intended to be an exhaustive description of the statutes or regulations applicable to

our business Supervision regulation and examination of the Bank by the regulatory agencies are intended

primarily for the protection of depositors rather than our shareholders
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General We are bank holding company registered with the Federal Reserve Board the FRB under

the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended the BHCA We are subject to supervision and

examination by and the regulations and reporting requirements of the FRB Under the BHCA bank holding

companys activities are limited to banking managing or controlling banks or engaging in other activities the

FRB determines are closely related and proper incident to banking or managing or controlling banks

The BHCA prohibits bank holding company from acquiring direct or indirect control of more than 5.0% of

the outstanding voting stock or substantially all of the assets of any financial institution or merging or

consolidating with another bank holding company or savings
bank holding company without the FRB pnor

approval Additionally the BHCA generally prohibits bank holding companies from engaging in nonbanking

activity or acquiring ownership or control of more than 5.0% of the outstanding voting stock of any company

that engages in nonbanking activity unless that activity is determined by the FRB to be closely related and

proper incident to banking In approving an application to engage in nonbanking activity the FRB must

consider whether that activity can reasonably be expected to produce benefits to the public such as greater

convenience increased competition or gains in efficiency that outweigh possible adverse effects such as undue

concentration of resources decreased or unfair competition conflicts of interest or unsound banking practices

The law imposes number of obligations and restrictions on bank holding company and its insured bank

subsidiaries designed to minimize potential losses to depositors and the FDIC insurance funds For example if

bank holding companys insured bank subsidiary becomes undercapitalized the bank holding company is

required to guarantee the banks compliance subject to certain limits with the terms of any capital restoration

plan filed with its federal banking agency bank holding company is required to serve as source of financial

strength to its bank subsidiaries and to commit resources to support those banks in circumstances in which

absent that policy it might not do so Under the BHCA the FRB may require bank holding company to

terminate any activity or relinquish control of nonbank subsidiary if the FRB determines that the activity or

control constitutes serious risk to the financial soundness and stability of bank subsidiary of bank holding

company

The Bank is an insured North Carolina chartered bank Its deposits are insured under the FDICs Deposit

Insurance Fund DIF and the Bank is subject to supervision and examination by and the regulations and

reporting requirements of the FDIC and the North Carolina Commissioner of Banks the CommissionerThe

FDIC and the Commissioner the Banks primary federal and state banking regulators The Bank is not member

bank of the Federal Reserve System

As an insured bank the Bank is prohibited from engaging as principal in any activity that is not permitted

for national banks unless the FDIC determines that the activity or investment would not pose significant risk

to the DIF and the Bank is and continues to be in compliance with the capital standards that apply to it The

Bank also is prohibited from directly acquiring or retaining any equity investment of type or in an amount that

is not permitted for national banks

The FDIC and the Commissioner regulate all areas of the Banks business including its payment of

dividends and other aspects of its operations They examine the Bank regularly and the Bank must furnish them

with periodic reports containing detailed financial and other information about its affairs The FDIç and the

Conmiissioner have broad powers to enforce laws and regulations that apply to the Bank and to require it to

correct conditions that affect its safety and soundness These powers include issuing cease and desist orders

imposing civil penalties removing officers and directors and otherwise intervening in the Banks operations if

they believe their examinations of the Bank or the reports it files indicate need for them to exercise these

powers

The Bank business also is influenced by prevailing economic conditions and governmental policies both

foreign and domestic and by the monetary and fiscal policies of the Federal Reserve Board Although the Bank

is not member bank of the Federal Reserve System the Federal Reserve Boards actions and policy directives
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determine to significant degree the cost and availability of funds it obtains from money market sources for

lending and investing These actions and policy directives also influence directly and indirectly the rates of

interest the Bank pays on its time and savings deposits and the rates it charges on loans

Capital Requirements for the Bank The Bank as North Carolina commercial bank is required to

maintain surplus account equal to 50% or more of its paid-in capital stock As North Carolina chartered

FDIC-insured commercial bank that is not member of the Federal Reserve the Bank is also required to comply

with the capital adequacy standards established by the FDIC The FDIC has issued risk-based capital and

leverage capital guidelines for measuring the adequacy of banks capital and all applicable capital standards

must be satisfied for the Bank to be considered in compliance with the FDICs requirements

Under the FDICs risk-based capital measure the minimum ratio of banks total capital Total Capital

to its risk-weighted assets including various off-balance-sheet items such as standby letters of credit Total

Capital Ratio is 8.0% At least half of Total Capital must be composed of common equity undivided profits

minority interests in the equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries qualifying noncumulative perpetual

preferred stock and limited amount of cumulative perpetual preferred stock less goodwill and various other

intangible assets Tier Capital The remainder Tier Capital may consist of certain subordinated debt

certain hybrid capital instruments and other qualifying preferred stock and limited amount of loan loss

reserves

Under the FDICs leverage capital measure the minimum ratio of Tier Capital to average assets

Leverage Capital Ratio less goodwill and various other intangible assets generally is 3.0% for banks that

meet specified criteria including having the highest regulatory rating All other banks generally are required to

maintain an additional cushion of 100 to 200 basis points above the stated minimum However during their first

three years of operations newly organized banks are expected to maintain Leverage Capital Ratios of at least

8.0% The FDICs guidelines also provide that banks experiencing internal growth or making acquisitions will be

expected to maintain strong capital positions substantially above the minimum levels without significant reliance

on intangible assets and banks Tangible Leverage Ratio deducting all Intangible assets and other

indicators of banks capital strength also will be taken into consideration by banking regulators in evaluating

proposals for expansion or new activities

The FDIC also considers banks interest rate risk arising when the interest rate sensitivity of banks

assets does not match the sensitivity of its liabilities or its off-balance-sheet position in the evaluation of its

capital adequacy The FDICs methodology for evaluating interest rate risk requires banks with excessive interest

rate risk exposure to hold additional amounts of capital against their exposure to losses resulting from that risk

The regulators also require banks to incorporate market risk components into their risk-based capital Under these

market risk requirements capital is allocated to support the amount of market risk related to banks trading

activities

The Banks capital category is determined solely for the purpose of applying the FDICs prompt corrective

action rules described below and it is not necessarily an accurate representation of its or 1st Financials overall

financial condition or prospects for other purposes failure to meet the FDICs capital guidelines could subject

the Bank to variety of enforcement remedies including the FDICs issuance of capital directive the

termination of deposit insurance by the FDIC prohibition on the taking of brokered deposits and other

restrictions on our business As described below the FDIC also can impose other substantial restrictions on

banks that fail to meet applicable capital requirements The Bank exceeded all applicable capital requirements to

meet the regulatory classification of well capitalized as of December 31 2008

Prompt Corrective Action The FDIC has broad powers to take corrective action to resolve the problems

of insured depository institutions The extent of these powers will depend upon whether the institution in

question is well capitalized adequately capitalized undercapitalized significantly undercapitalized or

critically undercapitalized The FDIC is required to take various mandatory supervisory actions and is
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authorized to take other discretionary actions with respect to banks in the three undercapitalized categories The

severity of supervisory action will depend upon the capital category in which bank is placed Generally subject

to narrow exception current federal law requires the FDIC to appoint receiver or conservator for bank that

is critically undercapitalized

Under the FDICs prompt corrective action rules an institution is considered well capitalized if it has

total risk-based capital ratio of 10.0% or greater ii Tier risk-based capital ratio of 6.0% or greater iii

leverage ratio of 5.0% or greater and iv is not subject to any order or written directive to meet and maintain

specific capital level for any capital measure An adequately capitalized institution is defined as one that has

total risk-based capital ratio of 8.0% or greater ii Tier risk-based capital ratio of 4.0% or greater and

iii leverage ratio of 4.0% or greater or 3% or greater in the case of an institution with the highest examination

rating An institution is considered undercapitalized if it has total risk-based capital ratio of less than

8% ii Tier risk-based capital ratio of less than 4% or iii leverage ratio of less than 4% or 3% in the case

of an institution with the highest examination rating significantly undercapitalized if the institution has

total risk-based capital ratio of less than 6% or ii Tier risk-based capital ratio of less than 3% or iii

leverage ratio of less than 3% and critically undercapitalized if the institution has ratio of tangible equity

to total assets equal to or less than 2%

bank that is categorized as undercapitalized significantly undercapitalized or critically

undercapitalized is required to submit an acceptable capital restoration plan to the FDIC An undercapitalized

bank also is generally prohibited from increasing its average
total assets making acquisitions establishing any

branches or engaging in any new line of business except in accordance with an accepted capital restoration plan

or with the approval of the FDIC In addition the FDIC is given authority with respect to any undercapitalized

bank to take any of the actions it is required to or may take with respect to significantly undercapitalized

bank if it determines that those actions are necessary to carry
out the purpose of the law

Limitations on Payment of Cash Dividends Under North Carolina law we are authorized to pay

dividends as declared by our Board of Directors provided that no such distribution results in our insolvency on

going concern or balance sheet basis However although we are legal entity separate and distinct from the

Bank our principal source of funds with which we can pay dividends to our shareholders is dividends we receive

from the Bank For that reason our ability to pay dividends effectively is subject to the same limitations that

apply to the Bank

Under North Carolina law commercial banks such as the Bank may pay dividends only from undivided

profits However if our surplus is less than 50% of our paid-in capital stock our directors may not declare any

cash dividend until we have transferred from undivided profits to surplus 25% of our undivided profits or any

lesser percentage necessary to raise our surplus to an amount equal to 50% of our paid-in capital The

Conmiissioners approval of the Banks organization during 2004 was conditioned on the requirement that for

period of three years following the time it began banking operations the Bank not pay any cash dividend without

the Commissioners prior approval This prohibition expired on April 30 2007 and the Board of Directors

announced the Banks first and so far only cash dividend in the fourth quarter of 2007

In addition to these restrictions other state and federal statutory and regulatory restrictions apply to our

payment of cash dividends on our common stock As an insured depository institution federal law prohibits the

Bank from making any capital distributions including payment of cash dividend if it is undercapitalized as

that term is defined in the Federal Deposit Insurance Act or would become undercapitalized after making the

distribution Also the FDIC has indicated that paying dividends that deplete depository institutions capital

base to an inadequate level would be an unsafe and unsound banking practice The FDIC has issued policy

statements that provide that insured banks generally should pay dividends only from their current operating

earnings and under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act no dividend may be paid by an insured bank while it is in

default on any assessment due the FDIC If the FDIC believes that the Bank is engaged in or are about to engage

in an unsafe or unsound practice the FDIC may require after notice and hearing that the Bank cease and desist
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from that practice The Banks payment of dividends also could be affected or limited by other factors such as

events or circumstances which lead the FDIC to require as further described below that it maintain capital in

excess of regulatory guidelines In the future the Banks and 1st Financials ability to declare and pay cash

dividends will be subject to our Board of Directors evaluation of operating results capital levels financial

condition future growth plans general business and economic conditions and tax and other relevant

considerations We are subject to further limitations on cash dividends due to the United States Treasurys

purchase of our preferred stock See CPP Participation below

While we have paid one cash dividend management expects the Company to maintain an above
average

growth rate for the foreseeable future Therefore management anticipates that any further cash dividends paid for

the foreseeable future will be nominal and that the majority of the Companys earnings will be retained to

support expected growth We cannot assure you that in the future we will have funds available to pay cash

dividends or that even if funds are available we will pay dividends in any particular amounts or at any particular

times or that we will pay dividends at all

Federal Deposit Insurance Reform On February 2006 President Bush signed the Federal Deposit

Insurance Reform Act of 2005 FDIRA

Among other things FDIRA changes the Federal deposit insurance system by

raising the
coverage level for retirement accounts to $250000

indexing deposit insurance
coverage levels for inflation beginning in 2012

prohibiting undercapitalized financial institutions from accepting employee benefit plan deposits

merging the Bank Insurance Fund and Savings Association Insurance Fund into new Deposit

Insurance Fund the DIF and

providing credits to financial institutions that capitalized the FDIC prior to 1996 to offset future

assessment premiums

FDIRA also authorized the FDIC to revise the current risk-based assessment system subject to notice and

comments and caps the amount of the DIF at 1.50% of domestic deposits The FDIC must issue cash dividends

awarded on historical basis for the amount of the DIF over the 1.50% ratio Additionally if the D1F exceeds

1.35% of domestic deposits at year-end the FDIC must issue cash dividends awarded on historical basis for

half the amount of the excess

On October 2008 President Bush signed the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 ESSA
which temporarily raised the basic limit on federal deposit insurance

coverage from $100000 to $250000 per

depositor The temporary increase in deposit insurance
coverage became effective upon the Presidents signature

The legislation provides that the basic deposit insurance limit will return to $100000 after December 31 2009

FDIC Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program Pursuant to the EESA the maximum deposit

insurance amount per depositor has been increased from $100000 to $250000 until December 31 2009

Additionally on October 14 2008 after receiving recommendation from the boards of the FDIC and the

Federal Reserve and consulting with the President the Secretary of the Treasury signed the systemic risk

exception to the FDIC Act enabling the FDIC to establish its Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program

TLGP Under the transaction account guarantee program of the TLGP the FDIC will fully guarantee until

the end of 2009 all non-interest-bearing transaction accounts including NOW accounts with interest rates of 0.5

percent or less and IOLTAs lawyer trust accounts The TLGP also guarantees all senior unsecured debt of

insured depository institutions or their qualified holding companies issued between October 14 2008 and

June 30 2009 with stated maturity greater than 30 days All eligible institutions were permitted to participate in

both of the components of the TLGP without cost for the first 30 days of the program Following the initial 30
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day grace period institutions were assessed at the rate of ten basis points for transaction account balances in

excess of $250000 for the transaction account guarantee program and at the rate of either 50 75 or 100 basis

points of the amount of debt issued depending on the maturity date of the guaranteed debt for the debt guarantee

program Institutions were required to opt-out of the TLGP if they did not wish to participate 1st Financial chose

not to participate opt-out of debt guarantee program component of the TGLP but elected to participate in the

deposit guarantee program

FDIC Insurance Assessments Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005 FDIRA the

FDIC uses revised risk-based assessment system to determine the amount of our deposit insurance assessment

based on the evaluation of the probability that the DIF will incur loss with respect to the Bank That evaluation

takes into consideration risks attributable to different categories and concentrations of our assets and liabilities

and any other factors the FDIC considers to be relevant including information obtained from the Commissioner

higher assessment rate results in an increase in the assessments we pay the FDIC for deposit insurance

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act the FDIC may terminate our deposit insurance if it finds that we

have engaged in unsafe and unsound practices are in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operation or

have violated applicable laws regulations rules or orders

The FDIC is responsible for maintaining the adequacy of the DIF and the amount we pay for deposit

insurance is influenced not only by the assessment of the risk it poses to the DIF but also by the adequacy of the

insurance fund at any time to cover the risk posed by all insured institutions FDIC insurance assessments could

be increased substantially in the future if the FDIC finds such an increase to be necessary in order to adequately

maintain the DIF

On February 27 2009 the FDIC approved an interim rule to raise deposit premiums for Risk Category

banks to 12-16 basis points The Agency will also impose 20 basis point special emergency assessment

payable September 30 2009 With the increased base rates and special assessments management anticipates

paying premiums in excess of $2 million for the year ending December 31 2009

On February 27 2009 the Board of Directors of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC voted to

amend the restoration plan for the Deposit Insurance Fund The Board took action by imposing special

assessment on insured institutions of 20 basis points implementing changes to the risk-based assessment

systems and increased regular premium rates for 2009 which banks must pay on top of the special assessment

The 20 basis point special assessment on the industry will be as of June 30 2009 payable on September 30 2009

On March 2009 the FDIC Chairman announced that the FDIC intends to lower the special assessment from 20

basis points to 10 basis points The approval of the cutback is contingent on whether Congress clears legislation

that would expand the FDICs line of credit with the Treasury to $100 billion Legislation to increase the FDICs

borrowing authority on permanent basis is also expected to advance to Congress which should aid in reducing

the burden on the industry

For the year ended December 31 2008 we paid approximately $395 thousand in deposit insurance

premiums As result of the special assessment and increases in regular assessments the Company projects it

will experience an increase in FDIC assessment expense by approximately $1.8 million from 2008 to 2009 if the

special assessment is 20 basis points and approximately $1.0 million if the special assessment is 10 basis points

All FDIC rates including the special assessment are subject to change at the discretion of the Board of

Directors of the FDIC

Community Reinvestment Under the Community Reinvestment Act CRA as implemented by

regulations of the FDIC an insured institution has continuing and affirmative obligation consistent with its safe

and sound operation to help meet the credit needs of its entire community including low and moderate income

neighborhoods The CRA does not establish specific lending requirements or programs for financial institutions
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nor does it limit an institutions discretion to develop consistent with the CRA the types of products and

services that it believes are best suited to its particular community The CRA requires the federal banking

regulators in connection with their examinations of insured institutions to assess the institutions records of

meeting the credit needs of their communities using the ratings of outstanding satisfactory needs to

improve or substantial noncompliance and to take those records into account in its evaluation of certain

applications by those institutions All institutions are required to make public disclosure of their CRA
performance ratings In its most recent CRA examination the Bank received satisfactory rating

Federal Securities Law 1st Financials common stock is registered under Section 12g of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and 1st Financial files reports under the Exchange Act with the SEC As result of this

registration the proxy and tender offer rules insider trading reporting requirements annual and periodic

reporting and other requirements of the Exchange Act apply to the Pt Financial

Transactions with Affiliates Although the Bank is not member of the Federal Reserve System it is

subject to the provisions of Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act Section 23A places limits on the

amount of

banks loans or extensions of credit to or investment in its affiliates

Assets bank may purchase from affiliates except for real and personal property exempted by the

Federal Reserve Board

The amount of loans or extensions of credit by bank to third parties which are collateralized by the

securities or obligations of the banks affiliates and

banks guarantee acceptance or letter of credit issued on behalf of one of its affiliates

Transactions of the type described above are limited in amount as to any one affiliate to 10% of banks

capital and surplus and as to all affiliates combined to 20% of banks capital and surplus In addition to the

limitation on the amount of these transactions each of these transactions also must meet specified collateral

requirements The Bank also must comply with other provisions designed to avoid purchasing low quality assets

from an affiliate

Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act among other things prohibits bank from engaging in these

affiliate transactions unless the transactions are on terms substantially the same or at least as favorable to the

bank or its subsidiaries as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with nonaffiliated companies

Federal law also places restrictions on the Banks ability to extend credit to executive officers directors

principal shareholders and their related interests These extensions of credit must be made on substantially

the same terms including interest rates and collateral as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions

with unrelated third parties and must not involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other

unfavorable features

Loans to One Borrower The Bank is subject to the Commissioners loans to one borrower limits which

are substantially the same as those applicable to national banks Under these limits no loans or extensions of

credit to any borrower outstanding at one time and not fully secured by readily marketable collateral shall exceed

15% of the unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus of the bank Loans and extensions of credit fully secured

by readily marketable collateral may comprise an additional 10% of unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus

Reserve Requirements Under Federal Reserve Board regulations the Bank must maintain average daily

reserves against its transaction accounts We are not required to maintain reserves on the first $10.3 million of

transaction accounts but must maintain reserves equal to 3.0% on the aggregate balances of those accounts

between $10.3 million and $44.4 million and reserves equal to 10.0% on aggregate balances in excess of $44.4

million The Federal Reserve Board may adjust these percentages Because our reserves are required to be
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maintained in the form of vault cash or in non-interest-bearing account at Federal Reserve Bank or

correspondent bank one effect of the reserve requirement is to reduce the amount of our interest-earning assets

During 2007 the Bank adopted an internal deposit reclassification system approved by the Federal Reserve

Board of Governors under Regulation whereby significant portions of interest bearing and noninterest bearing

transaction accounts are transferred to non-reservable savings account status As result all required reserves

at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 were met by the Banks vault cash

Interstate Banking and Branching The Bank Holding Company Act as amended by the interstate

banking provisions of the Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 the Interstate

Banking Law generally permits adequately capitalized and managed bank holding companies to acquire

control of the assets of other banks including branches in any state Acquisitions are subject to antitrust

provisions that cap at 10.0% the portion of the total deposits of insured depository institutions in the United

States that single bank holding company may control and generally cap at 30.0% the portion of the total

deposits of insured depository institutions in state that single bank holding company may control Under

certain circumstances states have the authority to increase or decrease the 30.0% cap and states may set

minimum age requirements of up to five years on target banks within their borders

Subject to certain conditions the Interstate Banking Law also permits interstate branching by allowing

bank in one state to merge with bank located in different state Each state was allowed to accelerate the

effective date for interstate mergers by adopting law authorizing such transactions prior to June 1997 or it

could opt out and thereby prohibit interstate branching by enacting legislation to that effect prior to that date

The Interstate Banking law also permits banks to establish branches in other states by opening new branches or

acquiring existing branches of other banks provided the laws of those other states specifically permit that form

of interstate branching North Carolina has adopted statutes which subject to certain conditions authorize

out-of-state bank holding companies and banks to acquire or merge with North Carolina banks and to establish or

acquire branches in North Carolina

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act The federal Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act enacted in 1999 the GLB Act

dramatically changed various federal laws governing the banking securities and insurance industries The GLB Act

permits bank holding companies to become financial holding companies and in general expands opportumties

to affiliate with securities firms and insurance companies overrides certain state laws that would prohibit certain

banking and insurance affIliations expands the activities in which banks and bank holding companies may

participate requires that banks and bank holding companies engage in some activities only through affiliates

owned or managed in accordance with certain requirements and reorganizes responsibility among various

federal regulators for oversight of certain securities activities conducted by banks and bank holding companies The

GLB Act has expanded opportunities for banks and bank holding companies to provide services and engage in other

revenue-generating activities that previously were prohibited to them However this expanded authority also

presents us with new challenges as our larger competitors are able to expand their services and products into areas

that are not feasible for smaller commumty onented financial institutions

USA Patriot Act of 2001 The USA Patriot Act of 2001 was enacted in response to the terrorist attacks

that occurred in the United States on September 11 2001 The Act is intended to strengthen the ability of U.S

law enforcement and the intelligence community to work cohesively to combat terrorism on variety of fronts

The Acts impact on financial institutions of all kinds is significant and wide ranging The Act contains sweeping

anti-money laundering and financial transparency requirements and imposes various other regulatory

requirements including standards for verifying customer identification at account opening and rules to promote

cooperation among financial institutions regulators and law enforcement entities in identifying parties that may

be involved in terrorism or money laundering

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 which became effective during 2002 is

sweeping federal legislation addressing accounting corporate governance and disclosure issues The impact of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act is wide-ranging as it applies to all public companies and imposes significant new

requirements for public company gOvernance and disclosure requirements
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In general the Sarbanes-Oxley Act mandated corporate governance and financial reporting requirements

intended to enhance the accuracy and transparency of public companies reported financial results It established

new responsibilities for corporate chief executive officers chief financial officers and audit committees in the

financial reporting process and created new regulatory body to oversee auditors of public companies It backed

these requirements with new SEC enforcement tools increased criminal penalties for federal mail wire and

securities fraud and created new criminal penalties for document and record destruction in connection with

federal investigations It also increased the opportunity for more private litigation by lengthening the statute of

limitations for securities fraud claims and providing new federal corporate whistleblower protection

The economic and operational effects of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act on public companies including us have

been and will continue to be significant in terms of the time resources and costs associated with compliance

Because the Act for the most part applies equally to larger and smaller public companies we will continue to be

presented with additional challenges as smaller community-oriented financial institution seeking to compete

with larger financial institutions in our markets

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 ESSA In response to recent extraordinary market

turmoil the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act EESA was enacted in October 2008 EESA authorizes

the Secretary of the Treasury to purchase or guarantee up to $700 billion in troubled assets from financial

institutions under the Troubled Assets Relief Program TARP Pursuant to authority granted under EESA the

Secretary has created the TARP Capital Purchase Program CPP under which the Treasury Department will

invest up to $250 billion in senior preferred stock of healthy U.S banks and savings associations or their holding

companies Qualifying financial institutions may issue senior preferred stock with value equal to not less than

1% of risk-weighted assets and not more than the lesser of $25 billion or 3% of risk-weighted assets

Institutions participating in the TARP or CPP are required to issue warrants for common or preferred stock

or senior debt to the Secretary If an institution participates in the CPP or if the Secretary acquires meaningful

equity or debt position in the institution as result of TARP participation the institution is required to meet

certain standards for executive compensation and corporate governance including prohibition against

incentives to take
unnecessary and excessive risks recovery of bonuses paid to senior executives based on

matenally inaccurate earnings or other statements and prohibition against agreements for the payment of

golden parachutes Institutions that sell more than $300 million in assets under TARP auctions or participate in

the CPP will not be entitled to tax deduction for compensation in excess of $500000 paid to its chief executive

or chief financial official or any of its other three most highly compensated officers In addition any severance

paid to such officers for involuntary termination or termination in connection with bankruptcy or receivership

will be subject to the golden parachute rules under the Internal Revenue Code Additional standards with respect

to executive compensation and corporate governance for institutions that have participated or will participate in

the TARP including the CPP were enacted as part of the ARRA described below

CPP Participation On November 14 2008 1st Financial entered into Letter Agreement the Purchase

Agreement with the Treasury Department under the CPP pursuant to which 1st Financial agreed to issue 16369

shares of 1st Financials Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series the Preferred Stock having

liquidation amount per share equal to $1 thousand for total price of $16369000 The Preferred Stock is to pay
cumulative dividends at rate of 5% per year

for the first five years and thereafter at rate of 9%
per year Under

the Purchase Agreement 1st Financial may not redeem the Preferred Stock during the first three
years except with

the proceeds from qualified equity offering as defined in 1st Financials amended articles of incorporation

adopted pursuant to the Purchase Agreement However under the ARRA described below it appears that 1st

Financial may redeem the Preferred Stock at any time without qualified equity offering provided it obtains the

approval of its primary federal regulator After three years 1st Financial may at its option redeem the Preferred

Stock at par value plus accrued and unpaid dividends The Preferred Stock is generally non-voting but does have

the right to vote as class on the issuance of any preferred stock ranking senior any change in its terms or any

merger exchange or similar transaction that would adversely affect its rights The holders of Preferred Stock also

have the right to elect two directors if dividends have not been paid for six periods

18



As part of its purchase of the Series Preferred Stock the Treasury Department received warrant the

Warrant to purchase 276815 shares of 1st Financials common stock at an initial per share exercise price of

$8 87 The Warrant provides for the adjustment of the exercise pnce and the number of shares of Financials

common stock issuable upon exercise pursuant to customary anti-dilution provisions such as upon stock splits or

distributions of securities or other assets to holders of 1st Financials common stock and upon certain issuances

of Financials common stock at or below specified price relative to the initial exercise price The Warrant

expires ten years from the issuance date If on or prior to December 31 2009 18t Financial receives aggregate

gross cash proceeds of not less than $16369000 from qualified equity offerings announced after

November 14 2008 the number of shares of common stock issuable pursuant to the Treasury Departments

exercise of the Warrant will be reduced by one-half of the original number of shares taking into account all

adjustments underlying the Warrant Under the ARRA the Warrant would be liquidated upon the redemption by

1st Financial of the Preferred Stock Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement the Treasury Department has agreed

not to exercise voting power with respect to any shares of common stock issued upon exercise of the Warrant

Both the Series Preferred Stock and the Warrant will be accounted for as components of Tier capital

Prior to November 14 2011 unless 1st Financial has redeemed the Preferred Stock or the Treasury

Department has transferred the Preferred Stock to third party the consent of the Treasury Department will be

required for 1st Financial to declare or pay any dividend or make any distribution on its common stock other

than dividends not exceeding $0.10 per share of common stock per fiscal year or redeem purchase or

acquire any shares of its common stock or other equity or capital securities other than in connection with benefit

plans consistent with past practice and certain other circumstances specified in the Purchase Agreement

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ARRA The ARRA was enacted on February 17

2009 The ARRA includes wide variety of programs intended to stimulate the economy and provide for

extensive infrastructure energy health and education needs In addition the ARRA imposes certain new

executive compensation and corporate govemance obligations on all current and future CPP participants

including 1st Financial until the institution has redeemed the Preferred Stock ARRA also provides that CPP

participants may redeem preferred stock purchased by the Treasury without regard to the three year holding

period and without the need to raise new capital subject to approval of its primary federal regulator The

executive compensation restrictions under the ARRA described below are more stringent than those currently

in effect under the CPP but it is yet unclear how these executive compensation standards will relate to the similar

standards recently announced by the Treasury Department or whether the standards will be considered effective

immediately or only after implementing regulations are issued by the Treasury Department

The ARRA amends Section 111 of the BESA to require the Secretary to adopt additional standards with

respect to executive compensation and corporate governance for TARP recipients including 1st Financial The

standards required to be estabhshed by the Secretary include in part prohibitions on making golden

parachute payments to senior executive officers and the next most highly-compensated employees during such

time as any obligation arising from financial assistance provided under the TARP remains outstanding the

Restricted Period prohibitions on paying or accruing bonuses or other incentive awards for certain senior

executive officers and employees except for awards of long-term restricted stock with value equal to no greater

than 1/3 of the subject employees annual compensation that do not fully vest during the Restricted Period or

unless such compensation is pursuant to valid written employment contract prior to February 11 2009

requirements that TARP CPP participants provide for the recovery
of any bonus or incentive compensation

paid to senior executive officers and the next 20 most highly-compensated employees based on statements of

earnings revenues gains or other criteria later found to be materially inaccurate with the Secretary having

authority to negotiate for reimbursement and review by the Secretary of all bonuses and other

compensation paid by TARP participants to senior executive employees and the next 20 most highly-

compensated employees before the date of enactment of the ARRA to determine whether such payments were

inconsistent with the purposes of the Act
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The ARRA also sets forth additional corporate governance obligations for TARP recipients including

requirements for the Secretary to establish standards that provide for semi-annual meetings of compensation

committees of the board of directors to discuss and evaluate employee compensation plans in light of an

assessment of any risk posed from such compensation plans TARP recipients are further required by the ARRA
to have in place company-wide policies regarding excessive or luxury expenditures permit non-binding

shareholder say-on-pay proposals to be included in proxy materials as well as require written certifications by

the chief executive officer and chief financial officer with respect to compliance The Secretary is required to

promulgate regulations to implement the executive compensation and certain corporate governance provisions

detailed in the ARRA

Available Information Our Internet website address is www.mountainlst.com Electronic versions of our

annual report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to

those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a of the Securities Exchange Act are available on our

website We will provide electronic or paper copies of those filings free of charge upon request Requests for

copies should be directed by mail to Roger Mobley Chief Financial Officer at 101 Jack Street

Hendersonville North Carolina 28792 or by telephone at 828 697-3100

Other The federal banking agencies including the FDIC have developed joint regulations requiring

annual examinations of all insured depository institutions by the appropriate federal banking agency with some

exceptions for small well-capitalized institutions and state chartered institutions examined by state regulators

Such regulations also establish requirements for operational and managerial standards asset quality earnings and

stock valuation standards for insured depository institutions as well as compensation standards when such

compensation would endanger the insured depository institution or would constitute an unsafe practice

In addition the Bank is subject to various other state and federal laws and regulations including state usury

laws laws relating to fiduciaries consumer credit and equal credit fair credit reporting laws and laws relating to

branch banking The Bank as an insured North Carolina commercial bank is prohibited from engaging as

principal in activities that are not permitted for national banks unless the FDIC determines that the activity

would pose no significant risk to the appropriate deposit insurance fund and ii the Bank is and continues to be
in compliance with all applicable capital standards

ITEM 1A Risk Factors

An investment in our securities is subject to certain risks You should carefully review the following risk

factors and other information contained in this report and the documents incorporated by reference before

deciding whether an investment in our securities is suited to your particular circumstances Other risks and

uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial or unlikely also may impair our

business operations If any of the following risks actually occur our business results of operations and financial

condition could suffer In that event the value of our secunties could decline and you may lose all or part of

your investment The risks discussed below also include forward-looking statements and our actual results may
differ materially from those discussed in these forward-looking statements

Risks Related to Our Business

Dfflcult market conditions and economic trends have adversely affected our industry and our business

Dramatic declines in the housing market with decreasing home prices and increasing delinquencies and

foreclosures have negatively affected the credit performance of mortgage and construction loans and resulted in

significant write-downs of assets by many financial institutions In addition the values of other real estate

collateral supporting many loans have declined and may continue to decline General downward economic

trends reduced availability of commercial credit and increasing unemployment have negatively affected the

credit performance of commercial and consumer credit resulting in additional write-downs Concerns over the
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stability of the financial markets and the economy caused decrease in lending by financial institutions to their

customers and to each other This market turmoil and tightening of credit has led to increased commercial and

consumer loan delinquencies lack of consumer confidence increased market volatility and widespread reduction

in general business activity Competition among depository institutions for deposits has increased significantly

Financial institutions have experienced decreased access to capital and to deposits or borrowings The resulting

economic pressure on consumers and businesses and the lack of confidence in the financial markets has

adversely affected most businesses and the prices of securities in general and financial institutions in particular

and it will continue to adversely affect our business financial condition results of operations and stock price

Our ability to assess the creditworthiness of customers and to estimate the losses inherent in our credit

exposure is made more complex by these difficult market and economic conditions As result of these factors

there is potential for new federal or state laws and regulations regarding lending and funding practices and

liquidity standards and bank regulatory agencies are expected to be very aggressive in responding to concerns

and trends identified in examinations This increased government action may increase our costs and limit our

ability to pursue certain business opportunities We also may be required to pay even higher Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation FDIC premiums than the recently increased level because financial institution failures

resulting from the depressed market conditions have depleted and may continue to deplete the deposit insurance

fund and reduce its ratio of reserves to insured deposits

We do not believe these difficult conditions are likely to improve in the near future worsening of these

conditions would likely exacerbate the adverse effects of these difficult market and economic conditions on us

our customers and the other financial institutions in our market As result we may experience increases in

foreclosures delinquencies and customer bankruptcies as well as more restricted access to funds

Recent legislative and regulatory initiatives to address difficult market and economic conditions may not

stabilize the U.S banking system

The recently enacted Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 EESA authorizes the United States

Treasury to purchase from financial institutions and their holding companies up to $700 billion in mortgage

loans mortgage-related securities and certain other financial instruments including debt and equity securities

issued by financial institutions and their holding companies under the Troubled Asset Relief Program

TARP The purpose of TARP is to restore confidence and stability to the U.S banking system and to

encourage
financial institutions to increase their lending to customers and to each other The Treasury has

allocated $250 billion towards the TARP Capital Purchase Program CPP Under the CPP the Treasury is

purchasing equity securities from participating institutions The warrant offered by this prospectus together with

our Series Preferred Stock was issued by us to Treasury pursuant to the TARP Capital Purchase

Program EESA also temporarily increased federal deposit insurance on most deposit accounts from $100000 to

$250000 This increase will remain in effect until the end of 2009 and is not covered by deposit insurance

premiums paid by the banking industry

In February the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ARRA was enacted containing

additional provisions designed to support the national economy and aid in economic recovery

The provisions of EESA and ARRA are in addition to numerous other actions by the Federal Reserve

Treasury the FDIC the SEC and others to address the current decline in the national economy and liquidity and

credit crisis that commenced in 2007 These measures include homeowner relief that encourages loan

restructuring and modification the establishment of significant liquidity and credit facilities for financial

institutions and investment banks the lowering of the federal funds rate emergency action against short selling

practices temporary guaranty program for money market funds the establishment of commercial paper

funding facility to provide back-stop liquidity to commercial paper issuers and coordinated international efforts

to address illiquidity and other weaknesses in the banking sector The purpose of these legislative and regulatory

actions is to stabilize the U.S banking system However there is no assurance that EESA ARRA and the other
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regulatory initiatives described above will be fully effective or have their desired effects If the volatility in the

markets continues and economic conditions fail to improve or worsen our business financial condition and

results of operations could be materially and adversely affected

Current levels of market volatility are unprecedented

The capital and credit markets have experienced volatility and disruption for more than year More

recently the volatility and disruption has increased and the markets have produced downward pressure on stock

prices and credit availability for many issuers without regard to their underlying financial strength especially in

the case of financial institutions The general market prices of financial services companies stock including ours

are at their lowest levels in recent history If current levels of market disruption and volatility continue or worsen

there can be no assurance that we will not experience an adverse effect which may be material on our ability to

access capital and on our business financial condition and results of operations

Our allowance for loan losses may prove to be insufficient to absorb probable losses in our loan portfolio

Lending money is substantial part of our business Every loan carries degree of risk that it will not be

repaid in accordance with its terms or that any underlying collateral will not be sufficient to assure repayment

This risk is affected by among other things

cash flows of the borrower and/or the business activity being financed

in the case of collateralized loan changes in and uncertainties regarding future values of collateral

the credit history of particular borrower

changes in economic and industry conditions and

the duration of the loan

We use underwriting procedures and criteria that we believe minimize the risk of loan delinquencies and

losses but banks routinely incur losses in their loan portfolios However regardless of the underwriting criteria

we use we will experience loan losses from time to time in the ordinary course of our business and some of

those losses will result from factors beyond our control These factors include among other things changes in

market economic business or personal conditions or other events including changes in market interest rates

that affect our borrowers abilities to repay their loans and the value of properties that collateralize loans Recent

difficulties in the national economy and housing market declining real estate values rising unemployment and

loss of consumer confidence have resulted and will continue to result in increasing loan delinquencies and loan

losses for all financial institutions

We maintain an allowance for loan losses based on our current judgments about the credit quality of our

loan portfolio The amount of our allowance is determined by our management through periodic review and

consideration of internal and external factors that affect loan collectibility including but not limited to

an ongoing review of the quality size and diversity of the loan portfolio

evaluation of non-performing loans

historical default and loss experience

historical recovery experience

existing economic conditions

risk characteristics of various classifications of loans and

the amount and quality of collateral including guarantees securing the loans
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On December 31 2008 our allowance totaled 1.54% of our total loans and 1.55% of loans excluding sold

mortgage loans which had not yet been delivered At December 31 2008 the Bank had $10.8 million of

nonperforming loans $10.0 million of which were on non-accruing status and one restructured loan totaling $798

thousand It should be noted that our allowance is somewhat higher than more mature peer institutions as our

loan portfolio due to the rapid growth of the Bank is somewhat unseasoned This factor in and of itself is

considered to increase our loan portfolios risk profile

However if delinquency levels increase or we incur higher than expected loan losses in the future there is

no assurance that our allowance will be adequate to cover resulting losses

large percentage of our loans are secured by real estate Adverse conditions in the real estate market in

our banking markets might adversely affect on our loan portfolio

While we do not have sub-prime lending program relatively large percentage of our loans are secured by

real estate Our management believes that in the case of many of those loans the real estate collateral is not

being relied upon as the primary source of repayment and the level of our real estate loans reflects at least in

part our policy to take real estate whenever possible as primary or additional collateral rather than other types of

collateral However adverse conditions in the real estate market and the economy in general have decreased real

estate values in our banking markets If the value of our collateral for loan falls below the outstanding balance

of that loan our ability to collect the balance of the loan by selling the underlying real estate in the event of

default will be diminished and we would be more likely to suffer loss on the loan An increase in our loan

losses could have material adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition

The FDIC recently adopted rules aimed at placing additional monitoring and management controls on

financial institutions whose loan portfolios are deemed to have concentrations in commercial real estate CRE
At December 31 2008 our loan portfolio exceeded thresholds established by the FDIC for CRE concentrations

and for additional regulatory scrutiny Indications from regulators are that strict limitations on the amount or

percentage of CRE within any given portfolio are not expected but rather that additional reporting and analysis

will be required to document managements evaluation of the potential additional risks of such concentrations

and the impact of any mitigating factors It is possible that regulatory constraints associated with these rules

could adversely affect our ability to grow loan assets and thereby limit our overall growth and expansion plans

These rules also could increase the costs of monitoring and managing this component of our loan portfolio

Either of these eventualities could have an adverse impact on our operating results and financial condition

Our business strategy includes the continuation of our growth plans and our financial condition and

operating results could be negatively affected if we fail to grow or fail to manage our growth effectively

We intend to continue to grow in our existing banking markets internally and through additional offices

and to expand into new markets as appropriate opportunities arise We have opened fifteen de novo branch

offices since May 2004 We expect to continue with de novo branching during 2009 and beyond so long as we

can continue to identify and successfully recruit qualified bankers to manage such offices

Our business prospects must be considered in light of the risks expenses and difficulties frequently

encountered by banking companies that are experiencing rapid growth We cannot assure you we will be able to

expand our market presence
in our existing markets or successfully enter new markets or that expansion will not

adversely affect our operating results Failure to manage our growth effectively could have material adverse

effect on our business future prospects financial condition or operating results and could adversely affect our

ability to successfully implement our business strategy Also if our growth occurs more slowly than anticipated

or declines our operating results could be materially affected in an adverse way

Our ability to successfully grow will depend on variety of factors including continued availability of

desirable business opportunities and the competitive response
from other financial institutions Due to personnel

and fixed asset costs of de novo branching any new branch offices we establish may operate at loss until we
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can establish sufficient base of business to operate profitably Also in establishing new office in new

market we likely would be faced with competitors with
greater knowledge of that local market Although we

believe we have management resources and internal systems in place to successfully manage our future growth

we will need to hire and rely on well-trained local managers who have local affiliations and to whom we may
need to give significant autonomy We cannot assure you that any de novo or other branch office we establish or

acquire will not for some period of time operate at loss and have an adverse effect on our earnings that we
will be able to hire managers who can successfully operate any new branch offices or that we will become an

effective competitor in any new banking market

Our business depends on the condition of the local and regional economies where we operate

We currently have offices only in western North Carolina Consistent with our community banking

philosophy our customer base is located in that region and we lend substantial portion of our capital and

deposits to commercial and consumer borrowers in our local banking markets Therefore our local and regional

economy has direct impact on our ability to generate deposits to support loan growth the demand for loans the

ability of borrowers to repay loans the value of collateral securing our loans particularly loans secured by real

estate and our ability to collect liquidate and restructure possible problem loans The local economies of the

communities in our banking markets are relatively dependent on the tourism industry and the retirement and

second home real estate market The economies of our banking markets have been adversely affected by

general economic downturn and this downturn has affected the tourism industry and real estate values in our

communities which has adversely affected our operating results Further deterioration of economic conditions in

our banking markets could further reduce our growth rate adversely affect the ability of our customers to repay

their loans to us and generally affect our financial condition and operating results We are less able than larger

institutions to spread risks of unfavorable local economic conditions across large number of diversified

economies And we cannot assure you that we will benefit from
any market growth or favorable economic

conditions in our banking markets even if they do occur

Adverse market and economic conditions in North Carolina particularly in the real estate agricultural or

tourism industries disproportionately increase the risk our borrowers will be unable to make their loan payments

and the risk that the market value of real estate securing our loans will not be sufficient collateral On

December 31 2008 approximately 83.6% of the total dollar amount of our loan portfolio was secured by liens on

real estate with approximately 5.5% of our portfolio representing home equity lines of credit Our management

believes that in the case of many of those loans the real estate collateral is not being relied upon as the primary

source of repayment and those relatively high percentages reflect at least in part our policy to take real estate

whenever possible as primary or additional collateral However any sustained period of increased payment

delinquencies foreclosures or losses caused by adverse market or economic conditions in North Carolina could

adversely affect the value of our assets revenues operating results and financial condition

Future expansion involves risks

Our business model is primarily based on growth through de novo branching however we have been

presented the opportunity to merge with another financial institution We currently have definitive agreement in

place with ABT Financial Corporation ABT the parent company of Alliance Bank Trust Company
Under the terms of the agreement each common share of ABT will be converted into 1.175 shares of 1st

Financial common stock Preferred stock will be converted on to ratio We believe ABTs operations

nicely complement our existing franchise and that the merger would allow us to enter into new markets that are

contiguous to our own In addition the transaction provides additional capital that will enable us to continue to

grow the Banks assets We currently have no additional agreements understandings or definite plans for any

merger or acquisition but we will evaluate opportunities to establish or acquire branches that complement or

expand our business as they arise We are aware that such transactions involve totally different risk profile as

compared to risks associated with growth through de novo branching These risks include these possibilities

we may incur substantial costs in identifying and evaluating potential acquisitions and merger partners

or in evaluating new markets hiring experienced local managers and opening new offices
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our estimates and judgments used to evaluate credit operations management and market risks relating

to target institutions may not be accurate

there may be substantial lag-time between completing an acquisition or opening new office and

generating sufficient assets and deposits to support costs of the expansion

we may not be able to finance an acquisition or the financing we obtain may have an adverse effect on

our operating results or dilution to our existing stockholders

negotiating transaction and integrating the operations and personnel of the combining businesses may

unduly divert our managements attention from our existing business

we may enter new markets where we lack local experience

we may introduce new products and services we are not equipped to manage

we may incur goodwill in connection with an acquisition or the goodwill we incur may become

impaired which results in adverse short-term effects on our operating results or

we may lose key employees and customers

We cannot assure you that we will have opportunities to acquire or establish any new branches or that we

will be able to negotiate finance or complete any acquisitions that may become available to us We may incur

substantial costs in expanding and we cannot assure you that any expansion will benefit us or that we will be

able to successfully integrate any banking offices that we acquire into our operations or retain the deposit and

loan customers of those offices Additionally we may experience disruption and incur unexpected expenses
in

any branch acquisitions we complete which may have material adverse effect on our business operating results

or financial condition Also we may issue equity securities including common stock and securities convertible

into shares of our common stock in connection with acquisitions which could cause ownership and economic

dilution to you

The Treasury Departments Investment in Financial imposes restrictions and obligations limiting

Financials ability to access equity markets repurchase common stock or increase dividends

In November 2008 1st Financial issued preferred stock and warrant to purchase common stock to the

Treasury Department under the Capital Purchase Program Prior to November 14 2011 unless 1st Financial has

redeemed all of the preferred stock or the Treasury Department has transferred all of the preferred stock to

third party the consent of the Treasury Department will be required for 1st Financial to among other things

increase common stock cash dividends or to effect repurchases of common stock with certain exceptions

including the repurchase of 1st Financial common stock to offset share dilution from equity-based employee

compensation awards

Building market share through our de novo branching strategy could cause our expenses to increase

faster than revenues

We intend to continue to build market share in western North Carolina through our de novo branching

strategy and we have identified several sites for possible future de novo branches There are considerable costs

involved in opening branches and industry averages indicate that new branches generally do not generate

sufficient revenues to offset their costs until they have been in operation for at least year Therefore any new

branches we open can be expected to negatively affect our operating results until those branches reach size at

which they become profitable Our expenses also could be increased if there are delays in opening any new

branches Finally we cannot assure you that any new branches we open will be successful even after they have

become established
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Our increasing volume of loans makes loan quality more difficult to control Increased loan losses could

affect the value of our common stock

While growth in earning assets is desirable in community bank it can have adverse
consequences if it is

not well managed For example rapid increases in our loans could cause future loan losses if we cannot properly

underwrite increasing volumes of loans as they are made and adequately monitor larger loan portfolio to detect

and deal with loan problems as they occur Our business strategy calls for us to continue to grow in our existing

banking markets internally and through additional offices and expand into new markets as appropriate

opportunities arise Because collection problems with some loans often do not arise until those loans have been in

existence for some period of time we cannot assure you that we will not have future problems collecting loans

that now are performing according to their terms

Higher loan to value ratios on portion of the Banks loan portfolio may increase loan portfolio risk and

could adversely impact loan portfolio performance and the profitability and the value of our common
stock

During the Banks initial start-up phase during 2004 and 2005 managements business plan was predicated

upon reaching critical mass as quickly as possible so as to achieve break-even and minimize operating losses and

the associated reduction in the Banks equity Therefore management elected to make number of exceptions to

existing policies with regard to maximum loan to value LTV ratios of assets used to collateralize some select

high quality credits At December 31 2005 these types of loans totaled $64.2 million representing 148.6% of the

Banks total risk-based capital During 2006 management determined that reduction in the amount of loans

with LTV exceptions was warranted to aid in mitigating the real estate concentration risk discussed in the

preceding section Therefore by the end of 2006 loans with LTVs that exceeded regulatory guidelines had been

reduced to 88% of risk-based capital This was further reduced during 2007 and at December 31 2007 and 2008

LTV exceptions totaled only 55% and 60% of risk-based capital respectively Even though this risk has been

dramatically reduced with the substantial reduction in LTV exceptions remaining loans with elevated LTV ratios

could present future additional collection risk which could adversely affect earnings and the financial

performance of the Bank especially in light of the general downturn discussed above in the real estate markets

Our recent results may not be indicative of ourfuture results

Mountain 1st has experienced exceptional growth since its inception However it should be noted that we

may not be able to sustain our historical rate of growth or even grow our business at all Also our recent and

rapid growth may distort some of our historical financial ratios and statistics In the near future we will most

likely not have the benefit of several recently favorable factors such as generally stable interest rate

environment generally strong residential mortgage market or the ability to find suitable expansion

opportunities Various factors such as economic conditions regulatory and legislative considerations and

competition also may impede or restrict our ability to expand our market presence If we experience significant

decrease in our recent rate of growth our operating results and financial condition may be adversely affected

because significant percentage of our operating costs are fixed expenses

We may need to raise additional capital in the future in order to continue to grow but that capital may
not be available when it is needed

Federal and state banking regulators require us to maintain adequate levels of capital to support our

operations On December 31 2008 our three capital ratios were above well capitalized levels under bank

regulatory guidelines number of financial institutions have recently raised considerable amounts of capital in

response to deterioration in their results of operations and financial condition arising from the tunnoil in the

mortgage loan market deteriorating economic conditions declines in real estate values and other factors

However growth in our earning assets resulting from internal expansion and new branch offices at rates in

excess of the rate at which our capital is increased through retained earnings will reduce our capital ratios unless
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we continue to increase our capital Also future unexpected losses whether resulting from loan losses or other

causes would reduce our capital However our business strategy calls for us to continue to grow in our existing

banlung markets internally and through additional offices and to expand into new markets as appropriate

opportumtles anse If our capital ratios fall below well capitalized levels our FDIC deposit insurance

assessment rate would increase until we restored and maintained our capital at well capitalized level

higher assessment rate would cause an increase in the assessments we pay the FDIC for deposit insurance which

would adversely affect our operating results

If we are able to effectively execute our business plan in the future we will need to increase our capital to

fund additional growth or satisfy regulatory requirements Based on managements current projections we

expect to need additional capital sometime in the second half of 2009 or the first half of 2010 Our ability to raise

that additional capital will depend on conditions at that time in the capital markets that are outside our control

and on our financial performance We cannot assure you that we will be able to raise additional capital on terms

favorable to us or at all If we cannot raise additional capital when needed our ability to expand our operations

through internal growth and acquisitions could be materially impaired

Should we need or be required by regulatory authorities to raise additional capital we may seek to do so

through the issuance of among other things common stock preferred stock or trust preferred securities

However our ability to raise that additional capital will depend on conditions at that time in the capital markets

economic conditions our financial performance and condition and other factors many of which are outside our

control There is no assurance that if needed we will be able to raise additional capital on terms favorable to us

or at all Any future inability to raise additional capital on terms acceptable to us may have material adverse

effect on our ability to expand our operations and on our financial condition results of operations and future

prospects

If we are unable to redeem our Series Preferred Stock after five years the cost of this capital to us will

increase substantially

If we are unable to redeem the Series Preferred Stock we have sold to Treasury prior to November 14

2013 the cost of this capital to us will increase from 5.0% per annum approximately $846950 annually to

9.0% per annum approximately $1524510 annually See Description of Capital Stock Series Preferred

Stock Depending on our financial condition at the time this increase in the annual dividend rate on the Series

Preferred Stock could have material negative effect on our liquidity and on our net income available to

holders of our common stock

Our profitability is subject to interest rate risk Changes in interest rates could have an adverse effect on

our operating results

Changes in interest rates can have different effects on various aspects of our business particularly our net

interest income Our profitability depends to large extent on our net interest income which is the difference

between our income on interest-earning assets and our expense on interest-bearing deposits and other liabilities

Like most financial institutions we are affected by changes in general interest rate levels and by other economic

factors beyond our control Interest rate risk arises in part from the mismatch i.e the interest sensitivity gap
between the dollar amounts of repricing or maturing interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and is

measured in terms of the ratio of the interest rate sensitivity gap to total assets When more interest-earning assets

than interest-bearing liabilities will reprice or mature over given time period bank is considered asset

sensitive and has positive gap When more liabilities than assets will reprice or mature over given time

period bank is considered liability-sensitive and has negative gap liability-sensitive position i.e

negative gap may generally enhance net interest income in falling interest rate environment and reduce net

interest income in rising interest rate environment An asset-sensitive position positive gap may

generally enhance net interest income in rising interest rate environment and reduce net interest income in
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falling interest rate environment Our ability to manage our gap position detennines to great extent our ability

to operate profitably However fluctuations in interest rates are not predictable or controllable and we cannot

assure you we will be able to manage our gap position in manner that will allow us to remain profitable

Since opening the Bank in mid-2004 through the second half of 2006 short term interest rates continually

rose From the second half of 2006 through the second quarter of 2007 short term interest rates were static

However during the third quarter of 2007 the Federal Reserves Federal Open Market Conmiittee FOMC
began to reduce short term interest rates in response to weakening economy Heretofore management has

structured the Banks balance sheet with relatively short duration Interest rate risk while relatively neutral has

been maintained with slightly asset sensitive bias since the Banks inception Management considers this

configuration to be favorable in most interest rate environments The primary exception to this is scenario in

which short term interest rates are driven down dramatically and rapidly Over the course of four months in late

2007 and through 2008 the FOMC has driven down short term interest rates by 500 basis points This represents

the most dramatic reduction in interest rates in decades As result management expects the Banks earnings to

be reduced during the first half of 2009 until the Banks CD portfolio matures and can be repriced downward

toward current market rates

On December 31 2008 the Bank remained in slightly asset sensitive position This reflects the construct

of the Banks balance sheet whereby our interest-earning assets generally would be expected to reprice at faster

rate than our interest-bearing liabilities Therefore rising rate environment would generally be expected to have

positive effect on our earnings while falling rate environment generally would be expected to have negative

effect on our earnings In our interest rate gap analysis money market deposit accounts are considered rate

sensitive and are placed in the shortest duration period while negotiable order of withdrawal or other transaction

accounts and regular savings accounts are assumed to be more stable sources that are less price sensitive and are

placed in the five year duration interval Our managements historical experience has shown that changes in

market interest rates have lesser effect on these type deposits within given time period and for that reason
those liabilities could be considered much less rate sensitive

if our historical experience with the relative insensitivity of these deposits to changes in market interest rates

does not continue in the future and we experience more rapid repricing of interest-bearing liabilities than interest-

earning assets in the near term rising interest rate environment our net interest margin and net income may
continue to decline

Our reliance on time deposits including out-of-market certificates of deposit as source of funds for

loans and our other liquidity needs could impair our ability to fund operations and jeopardize our

financial condition

Liquidity is essential to our business An inability to raise funds through deposits borrowings the sale of

loans and other sources could have substantial negative effect on our liquidity Through 2007 we had been able

to fund our growth and liquidity needs predominantly through deposit gathering activities in our own markets

However as result of the sub-prime mortgage crisis and credit crunch disruption in funding for some of

the larger financial institutions occurred in the fourth quarter of 2007 This resulted in some of these institutions

becoming more aggressive in pricing time deposits as they began using CDs to bridge liquidity shortfalls As

result the cost of locally generated CDs increased disproportionately during the fourth quarter of 2007

Management elected to begin utilizing lower cost wholesale funding rather than pay unusually high premiums on

CDs resulting from this market disruption At December 31 2007 the Bank had outstanding borrowings with the

Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta in the amount of $15 million The sub-prime induced financial crisis

continued to impact local and national markets through 2008 with multiple financial institutions failing in the last

half of the year This financial meltdown in essence froze the credit markets and increased the larger financial

institutions dependence on CDs as source of funding As result the cost of locally generated CDs continued

to increase disproportionately In addition to our use of the FFILB as funding source we began our first use of

brokered CDs during the fourth quarter of 2008 to off-set the high cost of local market CDs At December 31
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2008 the Bank had approximately $48.0 million in FHLB advances and $38.0 million brokered CDs outstanding

Management expects to continue to use and expand these wholesale funding sources for the foreseeable future

and until CD pricing begins to normalize Accordingly we intend to rely on these other funding sources to meet

portion of our loan liquidity and overall growth requirements for some period of time These sources may

include brokered certificates of deposit Internet certificates of deposit Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings

discount window borrowings or other such wholesale sources These sources may not be as stable as local

deposits upon which we have relied to date and we may have to pay higher rate of interest to keep them or to

replace such sources Not being able to acquire those funding sources or to keep them as they mature would

adversely affect our liquidity Paying higher deposit rates to attract keep or replace those funds could have

negative effect on our interest margin and operating results impair our ability to fund our operations and

jeopardize our financial condition

Factors that could detrimentally affect our access to liquidity sources include decrease in the level of our

business activity as result of downturn in the markets in which our loans are concentrated or adverse

regulatory action against us Our ability to borrow could also be impaired by factors that are not specific to us

such as disruption in the financial markets or negative views and expectations about the prospects for the

financial services industry in light of the recent turmoil faced by banking organizations and the continued

deterioration in credit markets

Competition from financial institutions and other financial service providers may adversely affect our

profitability

Commercial banking in our banking markets and in North Carolina as whole is extremely competitive In

addition to community super-regional national and international commercial banks we compete against credit

unions savings and loan associations mortgage banking firms consumer finance companies securities

brokerage firms insurance companies money market funds and other mutual funds We compete with these

institutions in attracting deposits and in making loans and we have to attract our customer base from other

existing financial institutions and from new residents Our larger competitors have greater resources broader

geographic markets and higher lending limits than we do and they may be able to offer more products and

services and better afford and more effectively use media advertising support services and electronic technology

than we can While we believe we compete effectively with other financial institutions we may face

competitive disadvantage as result of our size lack of geographic diversification and inability to spread

marketing costs across broader market Although we compete by concentrating our marketing efforts in our

primary markets with local advertisements personal contacts and greater flexibility and responsiveness in

working with local customers we cannot assure you that we will continue to be an effective competitor in our

banking markets

We are subject to extensive regulation that could limit or restrict our activities and adversely affect our

earnings

We operate in highly regulated industry and are subject to examination supervision and comprehensive

regulation by various federal and state agencies Our compliance with these regulations is costly and restricts

certain of our activities including payment of dividends possible mergers and acquisitions investments loans

and interest rates charged thereon interest rates paid on deposits and establishment of new offices We also are

subject to capital guidelines established by our regulators which require us to maintain adequate capital to

support our growth Most of these regulations are primarily intended to protect depositors the public and the

FDICs Deposit Insurance Fund rather than stockholders

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the related rules and regulations issued by the Securities and

Exchange Commission and The NASDAQ Stock Market have vastly increased the scope complexity and cost of

corporate governance reporting and disclosure practices including the costs of completing our audit and

maintaining our internal controls
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The laws and regulations that apply to us could change at any time and we cannot fully predict the effects

of those changes on our business and profitability However virtually any newly imposed governmental

regulation is highly likely to create additional expense to the Bank and in cases such as Sarbanes-Oxley noted

above the cost can be very significant Implementation and adoption of regulatory and accounting rules greatly

affects the business and financial results of all commercial banks and bank holding companies and our cost of

compliance would be expected to adversely affect our earnings

We depend on the services of our current management team

Our operating results and our ability to adequately manage our growth and minimize loan losses are highly

dependent on the services managerial abilities and performance of our current executive officers Smaller banks

like us sometimes find it more difficult to attract and retain experienced management personnel than larger

banks We have highly experienced management team with demonstrated track record that our Board of

Directors believes is capable of managing and growing the Bank Also the successful execution of our business

model is predicated on retaining our current management team and complementing it with other experienced and

talented managers However changes in key personnel and their responsibilities or the inability to recruit and

retain additional managers may disrupt our business and could have material adverse effect on our business

operating results and financial condition

We may need to invest in new technology to compete effectively and that could have negative effect on

our operating results and the value of our common stock

The market for financial services including banking services is increasingly affected by advances in

technology including developments in telecommunications data processing computers automation and

Internet-based banking We depend on third-party vendors for portions of our data processing services In

addition to our ability to finance the purchase of those services and integrate them into our operations our ability

to offer new technology-based services depends on our vendors abilities to provide and support those services

Future advances in technology may require us to incur substantial
expenses that adversely affect our operating

results and our small size and limited resources may make it impractical or impossible for us to keep pace with

our larger competitors Our ability to compete successfully in our banking markets may depend on the extent to

which we and our vendors are able to offer new technology-based services and on our ability to integrate

technological advances into our operations

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

The trading volume in our common stock has been relatively low and the sale of substantial number of

shares in the public market could depress the price of our stock and make it difficult for you to sell your
shares

Our common stock has been quoted over-the-counter on the Pink Sheets Electronic Quotation Service and

the OTC Bulletin Board since August 2004 However our common stock is still relatively thinly traded Thinly

traded stocks can be more volatile than stock trading in an active public market We cannot predict the extent to

which an active public market for our common stock will develop or be sustained In recent years the stock

market has experienced high level of price and volume volatility and market prices for the stock of many
companies have experienced wide price fluctuations that have not necessarily been related to operating

performance

We cannot predict what effect future sales of our common stock in the market or the availability of shares

of our common stock for sale in the market will have on the market price of our common stock So we cannot

assure you that sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the market or the potential for large

amounts of market sales would not cause the price of our common stock to decline or potentially impair our

ability to raise capital in the future
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Our ability to pay dividends is limited and we may be unable to pay future dividends

As discussed above under Supervision and Regulation in Item our ability to pay cash dividends is

limited by regulatory restrictions as well as the need to maintain sufficient capital If our capital ratios and

regulatory requirements are not satisfied we will be unable to pay cash dividends on our common stock

Our management beneficially owns substantial percentage of our common stock so our directors and

executive officers can significantly affect voting results on matters voted on by our stockholders

On March 2009 our current directors and executive officers as group had the sole or shared right to

vote or to direct the voting of an aggregate of 767682 shares or 15.36% of our outstanding common stock

This group could purchase 617561 additional shares under currently exercisable stock options they hold

Because of their voting rights in matters put to vote of our stockholders it could be difficult for any group of

our other stockholders to defeat proposal favored by our management including the election of one or more of

our directors or to approve proposal opposed by management

ITEM lB Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable
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ITEM Properties

The Banks corporate offices are located in Hendersonville North Carolina The Bank currently maintains

15 full service branch offices and an operations center all of which are leased by the Bank with the exception of

the office facility in Shelby NC The following table contains information about our branch offices

Opening date of Date current

original banking facility leased or
Office location office OwnedlLeased purchased

140 Airport Road Suite October 2004 Leased 2004

Arden NC

52 Coxe Avenue May 2005 Leased 2005

Asheville NC

379 New Market Blvd Suite 2A August 2007 Leased 2007

Boone NC

19 Chestnut St Suite December 2005 Leased 2005

Brevard NC

80 Walker Street January 2005 Leased 2005

Columbus NC

6534 Brevard Road May 2006 Leased 2006

Etowah NC

3270 Hendersonville Road September 2005 Leased 2005

Fletcher NC

102 West Main St
July 2007 Leased 2007

Forest City NC

101 Jack Street November 2004 Leased 2004

Corporate Headquarters

and Main Office

Hendersonville NC

203 Greenville Highway May 2004 Leased 2004

Hendersonville NC

1880 North Center Street November 2008 Leased 2007

Hickory NC

2564 Memorial Hwy April 2007 Leased 2007

Lake Lure NC

174 Highway 70 West May 2006 Leased 2006

Marion NC

800 South Lafayette Street September 2006 Owned 2006

Shelby NC

1637 South Main Street August 2004 Leased 2004

Waynesville NC

Leasedfrom third party

Leased from Director of the Bank on terms comparable to third party leases

Leased from company of which Director of the Bank is co-owner

All the Banks existing branch offices are in good condition and fully equipped for the Banks purposes At

December 31 2008 the total net book value cost less accumulated depreciation of the Banks furniture

fixtures leasehold improvements and equipment was approximately $7.1 million information about
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property is set forth in Note to the Financial Statements contained in this Form 10-K which note is

incorporated herein by reference Any property acquired as result of foreclosure or by deed in lieu of

foreclosure is classified as Other Real Estate Owned until such time as it is sold or otherwise disposed of by the

Bank to recover its investment As of December 31 2008 the Bank had $645 thousand in assets classified as

Other Real Estate Owned

ITEM Legal Proceedings

From time to time we become involved in legal proceedings in the ordinary course of our business

However subject to the inherent risks of
any litigation we believe that as of December 31 2008 no pending

legal proceeding is likely to have material effect on our financial condition or results of operations

ITEM Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted to vote of the stockholders of the Company during the fourth quarter of the fiscal

year ended December 31 2008
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PART II

ITEM Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases

of Equity Securities

There currently is limited local trading market for our common stock and there can be no assurance that

more active market will develop The Companys common stock is traded over-the-counter with quotations

available on the OTC Bulletin Board and the Pink Sheets Electronic Quotation Service under the symbol FFIS
FIG Partners is the primary market maker for our common stock There were 2684 stockholders of record as of

December 31 2008 not including the
persons or entities whose stock is held in nominee or street name and by

various banks and brokerage firms

The table below presents the reported high and low closing prices and the cash dividend declared per share

for the Companys common stock for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 These prices have

been adjusted to reflect the three stock splits paid in the form of stock dividends during 2006 and 2005

Cash Dividends

Declared

High Low Per Share

2008

Fourth quarter 9.70 5.05

Third quarter $11.00 9.25

Second quarter $14.75 8.25

First quarter $14.26 $12.00

2007

Fourth quarter $16.87 $12.50 $0.10

Third quarter $20.10 $15.98

Second quarter $22.93 $17.87

First quarter $25.80 $22.34

2006

Fourth quarter $27.74 $20.36

Third quarter $24.40 $20.20

Second quarter $27.20 $22.60

First quarter $25.60 $20.80

See Item Description of Business Supervision and Regulation Limitations on Payment of Cash

Dividends above for regulatory and contractual restrictions which limit the ability of the Bank to pay cash

dividends
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The following information is being furnished for purposes of Rule 14a-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 It is not deemed to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission or to be incorporated by

reference in any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 except to the extent that we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing

1st Financial Services Corporation

Selected Financial Information and Other Data are presented on page three of this filing The information in

this table is derived in part from the audited financial statements and notes thereto of the Bank The information

in this table does not purport to be complete and should be read in conjunction with our financial statements that

are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The discussion and analysis that follows is intended to assist readers in the understanding and evaluation

of the financial condition and results of operations of the Bank It should be read in conjunction with the

audited financial statements and accompanying notes included in this annual report on Form 10-K and the

supplemental financial data appearing throughout this discussion and analysis

CAUTIONARY NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKiNG STATEMENTS

The following discussion includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the

Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Those statements include

statements about our profitability liquidity allowance for loan losses nonperforming loans interest rate

sensitivity market risk ability to compete in our markets business strategies and other such statements that are

not historical facts They usually will contain qualifying words such as may will expect believe

anticipate intend plan project likely estimate continue could would should or similar

terms or the negative or other variations of those terms We have based those forward-looking statements on our

current expectations and projections about future events but we do not guarantee our future performance

described in the statements or that the facts or events described in the statements actually will happen Our actual

ITEM Selected Financial Data
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performance or any of those events or facts may never occur or be realized or they may be materially different

from or occur in way substantially different from the results facts or events indicated by the forward-looking

statements Those statements involve number of risks and uncertainties including among other things the

factors discussed in Item 1A under the heading Risk Factors Other factors that could influence the accuracy of

those forward-looking statements include among other things

Successful execution of our business plan including planned expansion of our branch network

general national regional or local economic conditions may be less favorable than expected resulting

in among other things deterioration in credit quality and the possible impainnent of collectability of

loans

the competitive nature of the financial services industry and our ability to compete effectively against

other financial institutions in our banking markets

legislative or regulatory changes including changes in accounting standards and changes in tax laws

the level of market interest rates

the financial success or changing strategies of our customers which could impact their ability to repay

their loans

customer acceptance of our services products and fee structure

the impact of changes in monetary and fiscal policies laws rules and regulations

other developments or changes in our business we do not expect

All forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in

their entirety by the cautionary statements in this section We have no obligation and do not intend to publicly

update or otherwise revise any of the forward-looking statements as result of any new information future

events or otherwise

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

During 2008 Mountain 1st Bank continued to experience asset growth Growth experienced during 2008

continued to be derived from both organic growth at existing branches as well as the opening of new branch

office in the Hickory NC market This new office brings the Banks total number of full service banking

locations to fifteen During the year assets increased by $100.6 million or 16.6% Net income for the year ended

December 31 2008 totaled $339 million representing decrease of $3.2 million or 90.4% as compared with 2007

earnings of $3.5 million Earnings per share and earnings per diluted share decreased to $0.04 This compares
with $0.71 per share and $0.66 per diluted share in 2007 or decreases of 94.4% and 93.90% respectively

Pre-tax pre-provision income during 2008 decreased $2.1 million or 24.0% to $7.0 million During the year the

provision for loan loss expense amounted to $6.5 million and tax expense totaled $98 thousand resulting in the

aforementioned net income amount of $339 thousand This compares with $9.1 million pre-tax pre-provision

income for 2007 with $3.4 million in provision and tax expense of $2.2 million While pre-tax pre-provision

income is non-GAAP financial measure management believes it to be meaningful additional metric for

periods presented within this report and has included it herein to provide further information and transparency for

the reader of these financial statements

FINANCIAL CONDITION

DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

As noted above Mountain 1st experienced continued strong asset growth during fiscal 2008 Growth in

loans and deposits were the primary drivers of overall growth During the year gross loans increased $62.1

million or 11.9% while deposits increased $61.9 million or 11.7% The increase in loans was comprised of

increases totaling $5.9 million or 3.7% in construction and land development loans $28.1 million or 17.0% in
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commercial real estate loans $8.5 million or 11.0% in loans secured by first liens on one to four family

residential properties $7.6 million or 31.0% in home equity loans $3.3 million or 56.3% in multifamily

residential loans and $7.6 million or 9.4% in commercial and industrial loans Consumer loans remained

relatively static during the year

Investment securities increased during the period by $26.5 million or 43.4% At December 31 2008 cash

and cash equivalents increased by $1.0 million or 10.8% as compared with December 31 2007 Liquid assets

consisting of cash and demand balances due from banks interest-earning deposits in other banks and available

for sale investment securities totaled $97.1 million at December 31 2008 constituting 13.7% of total assets This

compares with $70.4 million or 11.6% of total assets at year end 2007

Other assets increased from $19.2 million at December 31 2007 to $29.1 million at December 31 2008

principally as result of the Banks purchase of $5 million in life insurance policies on certain key employees

during 2008 Also contributing to the increase in other assets was $585 thousand increase in the Banks

property and equipment from $6.6 million at December 31 2007 to $7.1 million at December 31 2008

Deposits increased $61.9 million or 11.7% during 2008 At year end 2008 noninterest-bearing demand

accounts increased $7.0 million or 13.6% to $58.0 million Other transaction accounts including NOW Money

Market and Savings accounts increased $38.6 million or 29.7% At December 31 2008 transaction accounts

accounted for 38.3% of the Banks total deposits Certificates of deposit under $100 thousand increased $8.8

million or 4.9% while jumbo CDs increased $7.6 million or 4.5% Through the end of 2007 the Bank had

utilized wholesale funding sources only on limited basis via borrowing from the Federal Home Loan Bank of

Atlanta At December 31 2008 these borrowings totaled $48 million and the Bank had brokered CDs totaling

$38.0 million in its CD portfolio Managements funding strategy
remains centered around balanced growth in

loans and deposits generated via the Banks retail branch network supplemented through the selective use of

wholesale funding when such sources present lower cost alternative to CD pricing in the local markets in which

the Bank operates

Stockholders equity increased by $16.4 million or 35.4% during 2008 as result of the issuance of $16.4

million of preferred stock under the U.S Treasury Capital Purchase Program At December 31 2008 all of the

Banks capital ratios continued to be sufficient to classify it as well-capitalized institution by regulatory

measures

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 2007 AND 2006

For the year ended December 31 2008 the Bank reported net income of $339 thousand or $0.04 per
diluted

share This compares with $3.5 million or $0.66 per diluted share fQr the year ended December 31 2007 and $2.8

million or $0.51 per
share for 2006 Net interest income decreased $420 thousand or 2.0% in 2008 as compared

with an increase of $5.2 million or 32.8% in 2007 both of which resulted from the overall growth of the Bank

Noninterest income and expense also increased as general result of overall growth of the Banks balance sheet

During 2008 noninterest income increased $530 thousand or 12.3% This increase resulted predominantly from

increases in the cash surrender value of life insurance totaling $413 thousand or 393.3% During the year

noninterest expense rose $2.3 million or 14.2% This increase was attributed to the overall growth of the Bank

the addition and staffing of one new branch office and the addition of associated infrastructure required to

support continued future growth Individual components with substantial increases included personnel costs

which rose $350 thousand or 4.1% occupancy and equipment costs which increased $337 thousand or 29.4% and

data processing and telecommunications which recorded an increase of $534 thousand or 30.6% During 2007

noninterest income increased by $789 thousand or 22.5% as result of increases of $587 thousand or 50.3% in

service charges on deposit accounts and an increase in mortgage origination revenues of $168 thousand or 7.8%

During the same period noninterest expenses
increased $3.5 million or 27.9% This increase resulted from the

overall growth of the Bank necessitating the hiring of more personnel and adding facilities and infrastructure to

support the growth See further discussion in Noninterest Expense below
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Net Interest Income

The primary component of earnings for the Bank is net interest income Net interest income is defined as the

difference between interest income principally from the loan and investment securities portfolios and interest

expense principally on deposits and borrowings Changes in net interest income result from changes in volume
spread and margin For this purpose volume refers to the average dollar level of interest-earning assets and

interest-bearing liabilities spread refers to the difference between the average yield on interest-earning assets

and the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities and margin refers to net interest income divided by average

interest-earning assets Margin is influenced by the level and relative mix of interest-earning assets and interest-

bearing liabilities as well as levels of noninterest-earning assets and noninterest-bearing liabilities During the

years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 average interest-earning assets were $637.2 million $525.8

million and $394.2 million respectively During these same periods the Banks net interest margins were 3.24%
4.01% and 4.02% respectively

Net interest income decreased to $20.6 million during 2008 as compared with $21.1 million for the year

ended December 31 2007 decrease of $420 thousand or 2.0% Due to the falling rate environment the small

decrease in interest income and interest expense is primarily result of the continued overall growth of the

Banks asset and deposit accounts The increase in net interest income during 2007 amounted to $5.2 million or

32.8% The 2007 increase in both interest income as well as interest
expense primarily resulted from the overall

growth of the Banks asset and deposit bases However in the third quarter of 2007 and through 2008 short term

interest rates have been dramatically decreased by the Federal Reserves Federal Open Market Committee

FOMC The unprecedented nature of this decline in rates is expected to adversely impact the Banks net interest

margin and consequently net income for 2008 and at least the first half of 2009 The degree to which the Banks

margin and earnings may be affected is dependent on future actions by the FOMC and is currently unknown

Management strives to maintain high interest-earning asset ratio so as to maximize income To that end

management targets an earning asset ratio at or above 93% For the year ended December 31 2008 that ratio was

96.0% as compared with 96.7% for 2007 and 96.8% for 2006 Average interest-earning assets for 2008 increased

$111.4 million or 21.2% as compared to 2007 while the average yield decreased by 170 basis points from 7.75%

to 6.05% The decrease in yield was primarily function of the 500 basis point decrease in short term interest

rates from the third quarter of 2007 Average interest-bearing liabilities increased by $110.7 million or 25.1%
also as result of the overall growth of the Bank The

average cost of interest-bearing liabilities decreased by 122

basis points from 4.47% to 3.25% The decrease in cost was also influenced by the 500 basis point decrease in

short term interest rates from the third quarter of 2007 Due to the rapid rate decreases during 2008 management

was unable to balance yields and costs so as to maintain margins at stable level For the year ended

December 31 2008 the Banks net interest margin was 3.24% as compared with 4.01% for 2007
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The following table presents an analysis of the Banks net interest income for 2008 2007 and 2006

Average Balances and Net Interest Income

dollars in thousands

Interest-earning assets

Loans including loans held

for sale

Taxable investment

securities

Federal funds sold

Interest-earning cash

deposits

Total interest-earning

assets 637222

Noninterest-earning assets

Cash and due from banks 10213

Property and equipment 6972

Allowance for loan loss and

other 9184

Total noninterest-earning

assets 26369

Total assets $663591

Interest-bearing liabilities

NOW accounts

Money markets

Savings deposits

Time deposits

Federal funds purchased and

securities sold under

agreements to

repurchase

Borrowings

Total interest-bearing

liabilities 550952

Noninterest-bearing liabilities

Demand deposits 57885

Interest payable and other .. 5509

Total noninterest-bearing

liabilities

Total liabilities

Stockholders equity

Total liabilities and

stockholders equity $663591

Net interest income and

interest rate spread

Net yield on average interest-

earning assets

Ratio of average interest-

earning assets to average

interest-bearing

liabilities 115.66%

255 2.89% 7115

1171 2.39% 3192

17905 3.25% 440245

52220

5933

58153

498398

45120

$543518

$20645 $21065

3.24%

516

Interest

Income Average

Expense Rate

Interest income includes deferred loan fres

For amounts less than or equal to $1 yields are calculated using actual interest income and actual average assets not rounded values

For The Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

56257

31649

68173

337037

8833

49003

Interest Interest

Average Income Average Average Incomel Average Average

Balance Expense 12 Rate Balance Expense 12 Rate Balance
_______

$570997 $35635 6.24% $450200 $36861 8.19% $311171 $25533 8.21%

64800 2897 4.47% 74943 3844 5.13% 70693 3120 4.41%

1391 17 1.22% 672 34 5.06% 11740 608 5.18%

34 2.00% 25 5.19% 613 27 4.40%

38550 6.05% 525840 40740 7.75% 394217 29288 7.43%

11828 8725

5592 3944

258
________

17678 13185

$543518 $407402

557 0.99% 51401 876 1.70% 36992 499 1.35%

831 2.63% 16715 499 2.99% 12810 242 1.89%

1687 2.47% 50662 1483 2.93% 43644 1275 2.92%

13404 3.98% 311160 16277 5.23% 228761 11313 4.95%

382 5.37% 1946 100 5.14%

158 4.95% n/a

19675 4.47% 324153 13429 4.14%

37694

3900

41594

365747

_______
41655

$407402

3.28% $15859 3.29%

4.01% 4.02%

121.61%

63394

614346

49245

119.44%
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The following table illustrates that the change in the
average rate of loans was the predominant factor in the

decreased amount of net interest income realized by the Bank in 2008 compared to 2007 In the preceding year
the change in the average volume of loans was the predominant factor in the increase in the Banks net interest

income

Volume and Rate Variance Analysis

dollars in thousands

Year Ended December 31 2008 vs Year Ended December 312007 vs Year Ended December 312006 vs
Year Ended December 312007 Year Ended December 312006 Year Ended December 312005

Increase Decrease Due to Increase Decrease Due to Increase Decrease Due to

Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

Interest income

Loans including loans

held for sale $9890 $1l143 $1253 $11390 62 $11328 $10316 $2589 $12905
Taxable investment

securities 520 427 947 195 529 724 1270 371 1641

Federal funds sold 36 26 10 560 14 574 68 232 300

Interest-earning cash

deposits 32 26 47 38
Totalintercstincome 9406 11596 2190 10993 459 11452 11607 3201 14808
Interest expense

NOW accounts 93 412 319 227 150 377 195 152 347

Money markets 384 52 332 88 169 257 201 20 181
Savings deposits 368 164 204 204 208 636 13 649

Time deposits 1527 4400 2873 4290 674 4964 4790 2145 6935
Federal funds purchased

and securities sold

under agreements to

repurchase 137 264 127 278 282 38 25 63

Borrowings 1095 82 1013 158 158

Total interest

expense 3604 5374 1770 5245 1001 6246 5458 2355 7813

Net increase decrease

in net interest

income $5802 6222 420 5748 $542 5206 6149 $846 6995

The changes for each category of income and expense ore divided between the portion of change attributable to the variance in rate or

volume for that category The amount of change that cannot be separated is allocated to each variance proportionately

Provision for Loan Losses

The Bank recorded $6.5 million in provision for loan losses in 2008 representing an increase of $3.1

million or 92.3% as compared with the provision of $3.4 million during 2007 The increase in the provision

resulted from continued growth in the Banks loan portfolio as well as loan losses during 2008 which totaled $5.1

million of which $29 thousand was recovered during the year

Provisions for loan losses are charged to income to bring the allowance for loan losses to level deemed

appropriate by management In evaluating the allowance for loan losses management considers factors that

include growth composition diversification or conversely concentrations by industry geography or collateral

within the portfolio historical loan loss experience current seasoning of the portfolio current delinquency levels

adverse situations that may affect borrowers ability to repay estimated value of any underlying collateral

prevailing economic conditions and other relevant factors For 2008 approximately $1.0 million of the provision

for loan losses was attributable to growth of the loan portfolio while $5.5 million resulted from loan losses At

December 31 2008 the allowance for loan losses was $9.0 million representing an increase of $1.4 million or
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19.0% from the $7.6 million at the end of 2007 The allowance represented 1.55% and 1.46% respectively of

loans outstanding at the end of 2008 and 2007 net of loans held for sale At December 31 2008 the Bank had

$10.8 million of impaired loans $10.0 million of which were on non-accruing status and one restructured loan

totaling $798 thousand Approximately $1 million of this total was represented by single commercial property

which was in bankruptcy The Bank holds the first lien on this property and management expects full recovery
of

this credit upon the release of the property by the bankruptcy court

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income increased to $4.8 million for the year
ended December 31 2008 compared to $4.3

million for 2007 and $3.5 million for 2006 representing increases of $530 thousand or 12.3% and $789 thousand

or 22.5% respectively for these years In 2008 increases in other service charges and fees and the increase in the

cash surrender value of life insurance offset the decrease in fees from mortgage operations In 2007 increases in

mortgage origination income accounted for 21.3% of the total increase in noninterest income Service charges on

deposit accounts increased in 2008 to $1.7 million as compared with $1.2 million in 2007 and $856 thousand in

2006 The following table is comparative analysis of the components of noninterest income for 2008 2007 and

2006

Noninterest Income

dollars in thousands

For the Years Ended

December 31

2008 2007 2006

Service charges on deposit accounts $1651 $1214 856

Mortgage origination income 1714 2333 2165

Other service charges and fees 735 633 391

Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance 518

Net realized gain/loss on sale of securities 146 16
Net realized gains on sale of repossessed personal property

10 25

Other income 50 105 85

Total non-interest income $4824 $4294 $3505

Noninterest Expense

Noninterest expenses
include all of the operating costs of the Bank excluding interest and provision

expenses During 2008 noninterest expenses
totaled $18.5 million increasing $2.3 million or 14.2% from $16.2

million in 2007 During 2007 noninterest expenses
increased $3.5 million or 27.9% The most significant

component of noninterest expense personnel costs increased $350 thousand or 4.1% during 2008 and increased

by $1.6 million or 23.8% during 2007 These increases were primarily driven by staffing increases required by

expansion of the Banks branch network and the increase in infrastructure required by the overall growth of the

balance sheet During 2008 the Banks full time equivalent employees increased from 148 at December 31 2007

to 156 at December 31 2008 Expenses associated with growth of the Banks branch network accounted for

significant portion of the remainder of the increase in noninterest expense These expenses including occupancy

equipment and IT and telecom costs which increased $1.1 million or 26.8% in 2008 as compared with an

increase of $1.0 million or 35.8% for 2007 Management expects noninterest expense to continue to increase in

approximate proportion to the overall growth in the Banks balance sheet over the foreseeable future The

following table presents comparison of the components of noninterest expense for 2008 2007 and 2006

41



Noninterest Expense

dollars in thousands

For the Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Salaries and employee benefits 8915 8565 6920

Occupancy expense 1482 1145 828

Furniture/equipment expense 1207 1027 810

Professional service fees 857 708 506

Data processing and telecommunication expense 2279 1745 1246

Deposit insurance premiums 395 273 38

Advertising and business promotion 926 886 956

Stationery printing and supplies 320 327 256

Otherexpenses 2131 1535 1119

Total non-interest expenses $18512 $16211 $12679

Income Taxes

In mid-2006 having depleted all net operating tax loss carryforwards Mountain 1st Banks earnings became

fully taxable Accordingly income tax expense totaling $1.5 million was recorded during the year for the portion

of the Banks earnings for that year that was taxable During 2007 earnings for the entire
year were taxable

therefore income tax expense increased to $2.2 million representing marginal tax rate of 38.5 percent Income

tax expenses for 2008 decreased to $98.0 thousand representing marginal tax rate of 22.4 percent

LIQUIDITY

The Banks primary sources of liquidity are customer deposits cash and demand balances due from other

banks interest-earning deposits in other banks and investment securities available for sale These funds together

with loan repayments are used to make loans and to fund continuing operations

Total deposits were $591.0 million $529.1 million and $424.5 million at December 31 2008 2007 and

2006 respectively The Banks deposits increased $61.9 million or 11.7% during 2008 and $104.6 million or

24.7% during 2007 Until the fourth quarter of 2007 deposit growth within the Banks retail branch bank

network was sufficient to meet the Banks funding requirements However as previously discussed management

began limited utilization of wholesale funding in the fourth quarter of 2007 At December 31 2008 this was

limited to $48 million advance from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta FHLB and approximately $38.0

million of brokered CDs Management expects to continue to utilize these and potentially other wholesale

sources of funding to supplement deposits generated from the Banks branch network and assist in managing the

overall cost of funds

At December 31 2008 and 2007 time deposits represented 1.7% and 65.8% of total deposits respectively

Certificates of deposit of $100000 or more represented 29.9% and 31.9% respectively of the Banks total

deposits at December 31 2008 and 2007 Management believes that sizeable portion of the Banks time

deposits are relationship-oriented Brokered certificates of deposit totaled $38.0 million and $0 at December 31
2008 and 2007 respectively While the Bank appreciates the need to pay competitive rates to retain these

deposits other subjective factors also influence deposit retention Based upon prior experience the Bank

anticipates that substantial portion of outstanding certificates of deposit will renew upon maturity

In the normal course of business there are various outstanding contractual obligations of the Bank that will

require future cash outflows In addition there are commitments and contingent liabilities such as commitments

to extend credit that may or may not require future cash outflows The following table sunmarizes the Banks

contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31 2008
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Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments

dollars in thousands

Payments Due by Period

On Demand
or Within Over One to Over Three to Over

Year Three Years Five Years Five Years Total

Contractual Cash Obligations

Operating lease obligations 701 1368 $1209 1255 4533

Federal funds purchased and securities sold

under agreements to repurchase 1372 1372

Borrowings _______ 48000 48000

Total contractual cash obligations excluding

deposits 2073 49368 1209 1255 53905

Time deposits 355415 8360 592 364367

Total contractual cash obligations $357488 $57728 $1801 1255 $418272

Commitment Expiration by Period

On Demand

or Within Over One to Over Three to Over

Year Three Years Five Years Five Years Total

Other commitments

Commitments to extend credit 46950 8678 $2433 $33025 91086

Commitments to sell loans held for sale 4177 4177

Financial standby letters of credit 1924 827 2751

Total other commitments 53051 9505 $2433 $33025 98014

CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Banks equity totaled $62.6 million and $46.2 million respectively

The Banks equity to asset ratio on those dates was 8.8% and 7.6% respectively This increase resulted from the

issuance of preferred stock and warrants to the U.S Treasury The Bank is subject to minimum capital

requirements which are further discussed in PART ITEM Business Supervision and Regulation

All capital ratios place the Bank in excess of minimum requirements to be classified as well capitalized by

regulatory measures The Banks regulatory capital ratios as of December 31 2008 were leverage ratio 8.34%

Tier risk-based capital ratio 10.44% and total risk-based capital ratio 11.70% At December 31 2007 these

ratios were 7.85% 9.18% and 10.44% respectively

Note 14 to the accompanying financial statements presents an analysis of the Holding Companys and

Banks regulatory capital position as of December 31 2008 and 2007 The decline in capital ratios is result of

the Banks successful growth and leveraging of its capital base Based on current capitalization and growth

expectations management anticipates that the Bank will need to generate additional capital during the second

half of 2009 Accordingly management and the Banks Board of Directors are currently evaluating various

options for increasing the Banks capital base

ASSET/LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

The Companys results of operations depend substantially on its net interest income Like most financial

institutions the Banks interest income and cost of funds are affected by general economic conditions as well as

by competition in the market place The objective of the Banks asset/liability management process is aimed

toward providing relative stability and reduction of volatility for the Banks net interest income through various
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scenarios of changes in interest rates The process attempts to balance the need for stability and predictability of

net interest income against competing needs such as balance sheet mix constraints overall earnings targets and

the risk/return relationships between liquidity interest rate risk market risk and capital adequacy The Bank

maintains an asset/liability management policy approved by the Banks Board of Directors This policy and the

analysis process undertaken by management and the Boards Asset/Liability Management Committee ALCO
provides guidelines for limiting exposure to interest rate risk by placing limits on rate risk assumed via the

existing structure of the Banks balance sheet based on the results produced by the Banks computer simulation

The Banks policy is to control the exposure of its earnings to changing interest rates by generally endeavoring to

maintain position within range around an earnings neutral position which is defined as the mix of assets

and liabilities that generate net interest margin that is least affected by interest rate changes

When suitable lending opportunities are not sufficient to utilize available funds the Bank has generally

invested such funds in securities primarily securities issued by U.S governmental agencies Government

Sponsored Enterprises mortgage-backed securities and municipal securities The securities portfolio contributes

to the Banks earnings and plays an important part in overall interest rate management However management of

the securities portfolio alone cannot balance overall interest rate risk The securities portfolio must be used in

combination with other asset/liability techniques to actively manage the balance sheet The primary objectives in

the overall management of the securities portfolio are safety liquidity yield and asset/liability management

interest rate risk

In reviewing the needs of the Bank with regard to proper management of its asset/liability program the

Banks management estimates its future needs taking into consideration estimations of loan demand and deposit

balances forecasted interest rate changes competition and number of other factors Several measures are used

to monitor and manage interest rate risk including income simulations and interest sensitivity gap analyses An

income simulation model is the primary tool used to assess the direction and magnitude of changes in net interest

income resulting from changes in interest rates Key assumptions in the model include prepayments on loan and

mortgage-backed securities cash flows and maturities of other investment securities and loan and deposit

volumes and pricing These assumptions are inherently uncertain and as result the model cannot precisely

estimate net interest income or precisely predict the impact of higher or lower interest rates on net interest

income Actual results will differ from simulated results due to timing magnitude and frequency of interest rate

changes and changes in market conditions and management strategies among other factors

While the Banks gap analysis at December 31 2008 indicates that its balance sheet is generally asset

sensitive the results of computer simulation modeling at that date suggests minimal interest rate exposure under

moderately increasing or decreasing interest rate scenarios Under these scenarios the Banks net interest income

would be expected to decrease no more than approximately 5%

The analysis of an institutions interest rate gap the difference between the repricing of interest-earning

assets and interest-bearing liabilities during given period of time is another standard tool for the measurement

of the
exposure to interest rate risk Management believes that because interest rate gap analysis does not address

all factors that can affect earnings performance its practical usefulness in managing the Banks interest rate risk

is limited and it should be used in conjunction with other methods of evaluating interest rate risk

The Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis table presented below sets forth the amounts of interest-earning

assets and interest-bearing liabilities outstanding at December 31 2008 which are projected to reprice or mature

in each of the future time periods shown Except as stated below the amounts of assets and liabilities shown

which reprice or mature within particular period were determined in accordance with the contractual terms of

the assets or liabilities Loans with adjustable rates are shown as being due at the end of the next upcoming

adjustment period Money market deposit accounts are considered rate sensitive and are placed in the shortest

period while negotiable order of withdrawal or other transaction accounts and regular savings accounts have

been evaluated and are deemed to be more stable sources that are less price elastic and are placed in the five
year

bucket In making the gap computations none of the assumptions sometimes made regarding prepayment rates

and deposit decay rates are used for any interest-earning assets or interest-bearing liabilities In addition the table
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does not reflect scheduled principal payments that will be received throughout the lives of the loans The interest

rate sensitivity of the Banks assets and liabilities illustrated in the table would vary substantially if different

assumptions were used or if actual experience differs from that indicated by such assumptions

On cumulative basis at December 31 2008 the Bank was asset sensitive for each time interval presented

in the table As stated above certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the table

For example although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to repricing they may

react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates Also the interest rates on certain types of assets and

liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates while interest rates on other types may lag

behind changes in market interest rates For instance while the table is based on the assumption that money

market accounts are immediately sensitive to movements in rates the Bank expects that in changing rate

environment the amount of the adjustment in interest rates for such accounts would be less than the adjustment in

categories of assets that are considered to be immediately sensitive The same is true for all other interest bearing

transaction accounts Additionally certain assets have features that restrict changes in the interest rates of such

assets both on short-term basis and over the lives of such assets Further in the event of change in market

interest rates prepayment and early withdrawal levels could deviate significantly from those assumed in

calculating the tables Finally the ability of many borrowers to service their adjustable-rate debt may decrease in

the event of an increase in market interest rates Due to these shortcomings the Bank places primary emphasis on

its computer simulation model when managing its exposure to changes in interest rates The Bank does not

normally make interest rate predictions nor take significant risk based on potential changes in interest rate

direction The Bank is currently asset sensitive accordingly should interest rates increase and all other factors

remain stable the Banks earnings margins and spreads would be positively impacted The opposite would be

true in declining interest rate environment

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

dollars in thousands

At December 312008

Interest-earning assets

Loans excluding loans held for sale

Investment securities

Interest-earning bank deposits

Total interest-earning assets

Interest-bearing liabilities

NOW Accounts 56000 56000

Savings deposits 76899 76899

Money market accounts 35798

Time deposits under $100 187843

Time deposits of $100 and greater 176524

Federal funds purchased and securities sold

under agreements to repurchase 1372

Borrowings
_______ ________ _______ ______

48000

Total interest-bearing liabilities

________ _________ ________ _______
582436

Interest sensitivity gap
________ _________ ________ _______

85082

Cumulative interest sensitivity gap 85082

Cumulative interest sensitivity gap as percent

of total interest-earning assets

Cumulative ratio of interest-sensitive assets to

interest-sensitive liabilities

1-3 4-12 13-60 Over 60

Months Months Months Months Total

$411479 20220 $128945 $19212 $579856

46157 31365 2587 7516 87625

37 37

457673 51585 131532 26728 667518

35798

91225 91203 5415

79913 93074 3537

1372

48000

256308 184277 141851

$20 1365 $132692 10319 $26728

$201365 68673 58354 $85082

30.17% 10.29% 8.74% 12.75% 12.75%

178.56% 115.59% 110.02% 114.61% 114.61%

45



LENDING ACTIVITIES

General

The Bank provides to its customers full range of short to medium-term commercial mortgage

construction and personal loans both secured and unsecured The Banks loan policies and procedures establish

the basic guidelines governing its lending operations Generally the guidelines address the types of loans that the

Bank seeks target markets underwriting and collateral requirements terms interest rate and yield considerations

and compliance with laws and regulations All loans or credit lines are subject to approval procedures and

amount limitations These limitations apply to the borrowers total outstanding indebtedness to the Bank

including the indebtedness of any guarantor The policies are reviewed and approved at least annually by the

Board of Directors of the Bank The Bank supplements its own supervision of the loan underwriting and approval

process with periodic loan audits by internal loan examiners as well as by third party professionals experienced

in loan review work The Bank has focused its portfolio lending activities on typically higher yielding

commercial construction and consumer loans The Bank also originates 1-4 family mortgages that are typically

sold into the secondary market

The following tables provide additional information regarding the Banks loan portfolio as of December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 and 2004 The Loan Summary table provides an analysis of the composition of the

loan portfolio by type of loan The Loan Maturity Schedule presents the aggregate maturities or re-pricings

of commercial industrial and commercial mortgage loans and of real estate constructions loans and ii the

aggregate amounts of such loans by variable and fixed rates for the same periods presented in the Loan Summary
table

Loan Summary

dollars in thousands

At December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

%of %of %of %of %of
Total Total Total Total Total

Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans

Construction and

development $165017 28.46% $159127 30.78% $131928 35.17% 90915 38.18% 31396 25.66%

1-4familyresidential 117835 20.32% 99692 19.29% 68427 18.24% 46348 19.46% 23791 19.44%

Multifamily 9018 1.55% 5768 1.12% 4478 1.19% 2343 0.98% 1245 1.02%

Nonfarm nonresidential 193010 33.29% 164940 31.91% 98220 26.18% 61190 25.70% 52618 43.00%

Total real estate loans 484880 83.62% 429527 83.10% 303053 80.78% 200796 84.32% 109050 89.12%

Commercial and industrial

loans 88471 15.26% 80867 15.64% 64946 17.31% 33202 13.94% 10575 8.64%

Consumer 6505 1.12% 6514 1.26% 7182 1.91% 4126 1.73% 2739 2.24%

Total loans held to

maturity $579856 100.00% $516908 100.00% $375181 100.00% $238124 100.00% $122364 100.00%

Excluding loans held for sale
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Loan Maturity Schedule

dollars in thousands

At December 312008

Due within Due after one Due after

one year year but within five five years Total

Amount Amount Amount Amount

By loan type

Construction and development $153123 8901 2994 $165017

1-4 family residential 93503 21505 2826 117835

Multifamily 3445 5573 9018

Nonfarm non residential 108531 73378 11101 193010

Total real estate loans 358602 109357 16921 484880

Commercial and industrial 69975 16523 1973 88471

Consumer 3123 3064 318 6505

Total loans $431700 $128944 $19212 $579856

By interest rate type

Fixedrateloans 24914 $110601 $17923 $153438

Variable rate loans 406786 18343 1289 426418

Total loans $431700 $128944 $19212 $579856

Commercial and Industrial Loans

Commercial business lending is another component of the Banks lending activities At December 31 2008

the Banks commercial and industrial loan portfolio equaled $88.5 million or 15.3% as compared with $80.89

million or 15.6% of total loans at year end 2007 Commercial and industrial loans include both secured and

unsecured loans for working capital expansion and other business purposes Short-term working capital loans

generally are secured by accounts receivable inventory and/or equipment The Bank also makes term

commercial loans secured by equipment and real estate Lending decisions are based on an evaluation of the

financial strength management and credit history of the borrower and the quality of the collateral securing the

loan With few exceptions the Bank requires personal guarantees and secondary sources of repayment

Commercial and industrial loans generally provide greater yields and reprice more frequently than other

types of loans such as real estate loans as most commercial loan yields are tied to the prime rate index

Therefore yields on most commercial loans adjust with changes in the prime rate

Real Estate Loans

Real estate loans are originated for the purpose of purchasing constructing or refinancing one- to four-

family multi- family and commercial properties and for purposes unrelated to real estate taken as collateral The

Bank offers fixed and adjustable rate options The Bank provides customers access to long-term conventional

real estate loans through its mortgage loan department which makes FNMA and FHLMC conforming loans that

are originated and sold to upstream correspondent banks on flow basis generally within 30-45 days of closing

Residential one- to four-family loans are classified into two categories conforming loans that are originated

under the underwriting guidelines established by FNMA or FHLMC and which are generally sold into the

secondary market as discussed above and nonconforming loans that are originated and retained in the Banks

loan portfolio The terms conforming and nonconforming do not refer to credit quality but rather to whether

the loan is underwritten so that it can be readily sold in the secondary market At December 31 2008 loans held

for sale amounted to $4.2 million while nonconforming loans held in the Banks permanent portfolio amounted

to $113.7 million in loans secured by first liens and $4.1 million secured by junior liens The Banks permanent
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residential mortgage loans are generally secured by properties located within the Banks market area Most of the

one- to four-family residential mortgage loans that the Bank makes are conforming loans and are sold within 30

days of closing to correspondent bank The Bank originated loans totaling $97.1 million for sale into the

secondary market during 2008 The Bank receives fee income for each loan originated and sold Mortgage

origination activities resulted in aggregate noninterest income of $1.7 million $2.3 million and $2.2 million for

the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The Bank anticipates that it will continue to be

an active originator of residential loans Nonconforming residential mortgage loans that are retained in the

Banks loan portfolio generally have rate terms of five
years or less with amortizations up to 25 years

The Bank has made and anticipates continuing to make commercial real estate loans Commercial real

estate loans amounted to $193.0 million at December 31 2008 These loans are secured principally by

commercial office buildings owner occupied retail and commercial operations storage and warehouse space

agricultural properties and variety of other facilities used by commercial enterprises Generally in underwriting

commercial real estate loans the Bank requires the personal guarantee of borrowers and demonstrated cash

flow capability sufficient to service the debt Loans secured by commercial real estate may involve greater

degree of risk than one to four family residential mortgage loans Payments on such loans are often dependent on

successful operation or management of the properties

The Bank originates both commercial and one- to four- family residential construction loans These include

the construction of commercial buildings infrastructure for residential developments custom homes where the

home buyer is the borrower pre-sold homes where the builder is the borrower and to lesser degree speculative

home construction projects The Bank generally receives pre-arranged permanent financing commitment from

an outside entity prior to financing the construction of pre-sold homes The Bank lends to builders who have

demonstrated favorable record of performance and profitable operations and who are building in markets that

management believes it understands and in which it is comfortable with the economic conditions The Bank

further endeavors to limit its construction lending risk through adherence to established underwriting procedures

The Bank generally requires documentation for all draw requests and utilizes loan officers and third party

vendors to inspect projects prior to honoring draw requests from builders With few exceptions the Bank

requires personal guarantees and secondary sources of repayment on construction loans At December 31 2008

construction and acquisition and development loans totaled $165.0 million or 28.5% of total loans

Consumer Loans and Home Equity Lines of Credits Loans to individuals include automobile loans

boat and recreational vehicle financing home equity and home improvement loans and miscellaneous secured

and unsecured personal loans Consumer loans generally can carry significantly greater risks than other loans

even if secured if the collateral consists of rapidly depreciating assets such as automobiles and equipment

Repossessed collateral securing defaulted consumer loan may not provide an adequate source of repayment of

the loan Consumer loan collections are sensitive to job loss illness and other personal factors The Bank

attempts to manage the risks inherent in consumer lending by following established credit guidelines and

underwriting practices designed to minimize risk of loss At December 31 2008 home equity loans totaled $27.7

million or 4.8% of total loans while other consumer lending accounted for $6.5 million or 1.1% of outstanding

loans

Loan Approvals The Banks loan policies and procedures establish the basic guidelines governing its

lending operations Generally the guidelines address the type of loans that the Bank seeks target markets

underwriting and collateral requirements terms interest rate and yield considerations and compliance with laws

and regulations All loans or credit lines are subject to approval procedures and amount limitations These

limitations apply to the borrowers total outstanding indebtedness to the Bank including the indebtedness of any

guarantor The policies are reviewed and approved at least annually by the Board of Directors of the Bank The

Bank supplements its own supervision of the loan underwriting and approval process with periodic loan audits by

independent outside professionals experienced in loan review analysis

Responsibility for loan production rests with the Senior Commercial Lending Officer in each market The

responsibility for loan underwriting loan processing and approval is with the Chief Credit Officer The Board of
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Directors of the Bank determines individual officer lending authority annually Delegated authorities may include

loans letters of credit overdrafts uncollected funds and such other authority as determined by the Board of

Directors The President and Chief Credit Officer each have the authority to approve
loans up to $2000000 The

President in conjunction with the Chief Credit Officer and Chief Executive Officer comprise the Officer Loan

Committee and may approve loans up to $4 million which is the maximum staff lending limit set by the Board

of Directors The Boards Loan Committee approves all loans in excess of the staffs lending limit The Board

Loan Committee consists of the CEO President Chief Credit Officer and four outside directors as appointed by

the Board of Directors of the Bank The Banks legal lending limit was $9.9 million at December 31 2008

General Economic Lending and Real Estate Conditions One of the most challenging environments for

the banking industry in decades came to the national forefront during 2007 and remained in the forefront through

2008 number of markets across the country were already experiencing marked downturn in real estate early

in 2007 However by midyear the sub-prime mortgage debacle hit the country and the banking industry This

was followed in 2008 by credit and liquidity crisis that affected many banks across the country Fortunately

Mountain 1st was not as directly impacted by these events because Western North Carolina real estate markets

have generally not been as harshly impacted as the national averages We believe that our markets in western

North Carolina are generally strong certainly compared with many other markets across the country As

discussed elsewhere herein Mountain 1st as with most community banks has concentration of loans secured

by real estate Management believes that prudent lending using real estate as collateral presents one of the most

attractive lending opportunities available to community banks However with the current widespread downturn

in real estate markets management has undertaken actions it has deemed both prudent and available to maintain

and enhance the strength of the Banks real estate based loan assets As early as two years ago the Banks

lending on residential lots was curtailed based on the inflated pricing on some residential lots within the markets

we serve This along with increasing inventory of this product type in our markets prompted us to generally exit

the residential lot lending space In late 2006 management began to reduce exposure to new acquisition and

development projects as widespread downturn in real estate was becoming more evident Several previously

originated real estate development loans remain in the Banks portfolio as they progress through their life cycle

However lending on similar new projects along with most speculative building has been greatly curtailed While

we believe that the steps taken to date will assist in strengthening the performance of the Banks real estate loan

portfolio much of the performance of this portfolio is dependent upon the duration and depth of the current real

estate downturn

The more direct impact of these economic events on Mountain 1st has been reduction in the Banks net

interest margin Beginning effectively in the third quarter of 2007 the Federal Open Market Conmtlttee FOMC
of the Federal Reserve Board began reducing short term interest rates Since September 2007 the FOMC
decreased rates dramatically by 500 basis points The unprecedented velocity of this decline in rates is expected

to adversely impact the Bank during 2009

COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT

In the ordinary course of business the Bank enters into various types of transactions that include

commitments to extend credit that are not included in loans net of allowance for loan losses as presented on the

Banks balance sheets The Bank applies the same credit standards to these commitments as it uses in all its

lending activities and has included these commitments in its lending risk evaluations The Banks exposure to

credit loss under commitments to extend credit is represented by the amount of these commitments See Note 13

to the Banks financial statements and the table above for Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments

ASSET QUALITY

The Bank considers asset quality to be of primary importance and employs formal internal loan review

process to ensure adherence to the lending policy as approved by the Banks Board of Directors It is the

responsibility of each loan officer to assign an appropriate risk grade to loans when originated Credit
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Administration through the loan review process tests the accuracy of the initial risk grade assessment In

addition as given loans credit quality changes it is the responsibility of Credit Administration to change the

borrowers risk grade accordingly In determining the allowance for loan losses and any resulting provision to be

charged against earnings particular emphasis is placed on the results of the loan review process Consideration is

also given to historical loan loss experience the value and adequacy of collateral economic conditions in the

Banks market area and other factors For loans determined to be impaired the allowance is based on discounted

cash flows using the loans initial effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral for certain collateral

dependent loans This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates including the amounts

and timing of future cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans that may be susceptible to significant

change The allowance for loan losses represents managements estimate of the appropriate level of reserve to

provide for probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio

The Banks policy regarding past due loans normally requires prompt charge-off to the allowance for loan

losses following thorough review and timely collection efforts Further efforts are then pursued through various

means available Loans carried in non-accrual status are generally collateralized and probable losses are

considered in the determination of the allowance for loan losses

Over the course of the past two years credit quality at number of banks across the country has deteriorated

as real estate markets have been hit with slowing sales and declining prices Fortunately the markets in which

Mountain 1st Bank operates have not experienced such dramatic downturns Although real estate prices in

western North Carolina have shown downward trend they have been relatively stable over the past year The

longer the current real estate market downturn persists the more vulnerable sales volume and prices become

Management believes that the Banks loan portfolio currently remains strong However future scenario of

protracted real estate market problems especially if they become more severe could produce portfolio

underperformance as compared to the first four and one half
years

of the Banks existence

NONPERFORMING ASSETS

The Banks financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting including the recognition

of interest income on loans unless loan is placed on non-accrual basis Loans are accounted for on

non-accrual basis when management has serious concerns about the collectability of principal or interest

Generally the Banks policy is to place loan on non-accrual status when the loan becomes 90 days past due or

when management is uncertain whether the borrower can satisfy the contractual terms of the loan agreement

Payments received on non-accrual loans generally are applied to principal first and then to interest after all

principal payments have been satisfied Restructured loans are those for which concessions including the

reduction of interest rates below rate otherwise available to that borrower or the deferrals of interest or

principal have been granted due to the borrowers weakened financial condition The Bank accrues interest on

restructured loans at the restructured rate when management anticipates that no loss of original principal will

occur Potential problem loans are defined as loans currently performing that are not included in non-accrual or

restructured loans but are loans that management has concerns as to the borrowers ability to comply with

present repayment terms These loans could deteriorate to non-accrual past due or restructured loans status

Therefore management quantifies the risk associated with problem loans in assessing the adequacy of the

allowance for loan losses At December 31 2008 the Bank had $645 thousand of foreclosed real estate and $1.4

million of repossessed personal property At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Bank had approximately $10

million and $1.3 million respectively in nonaccruing loans Approximately $1 million of these totals were

represented by one commercial real estate parcel with an appraised value in excess of $3 million on which the

Bank holds the first lien Management expects full collection of this loan upon release of the Banks collateral

from the bankruptcy court which currently controls this collateral At year end 2006 the Bank had total of $611

thousand in nonperforming loans all of which had been placed on non-accrual status at that time The following

table summarizes the Banks nonperforming assets at December 31 2008 2007 2006 2005 and 2004

50



Nonperforming Assets

dollars in thousands

At December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Nonaccrual loans $10008 1342 611

Loan past due 90 or more days and still

accruing interest

Restructured loans 798

Total nonperforming loans 10806 1342 611

Repossessed assets 1423

Other real estate owned 645

Total nonperforming assets $12874 1342 616

Allowance for loan losses 9013 7571 5765 $3652 $1840

Nonperforming loans to period end loans

excluding loans held for sale 1.86% 0.26% 0.16%

Allowance for loan losses to period end loans

excluding loans held for sale 1.55% 1.46% 1.54% 1.53% 1.50%

Nonperlonning assets as percentage of

Loans and other real estate 2.22% 0.26% 0.16%

Total assets 1.82% 0.22% 0.13%

Ratio of allowance for loan losses to

nonperforming loans 0.70% 564.16% 943.54%

ANALYSIS OF ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The allowance for loan losses is established through charges to earnings in the form of provision for loan

losses Management increases the allowance for loan losses by provisions charged to operations and by

recoveries of amounts previously charged off The allowance is reduced by loans charged off Management

evaluates the adequacy of the allowance at least quarterly which is then reviewed and approved by the Board of

Directors after making any changes as may be required In evaluating the adequacy of the allowance

management considers the growth composition and industry diversification of the portfolio historical loan loss

experience current delinquency levels adverse situations that may affect borrowers ability to repay estimated

value of any underlying collateral prevailing economic conditions and other relevant factors derived from the

Banks limited history of operations In addition regulatory agencies as an integral part of their examination

process periodically review the Banks allowance for loan losses and may require it to make adjustments to the

allowance for loan losses based upon judgments different from those of our management

Management uses risk-grading system as described under ASSET QUALITY to facilitate evaluation of

probable inherent loan losses and the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses In this program risk grades are

initially assigned by loan officers and reviewed and tested by Credit Administration and external loan review

processes The testing program includes an evaluation of sample of new loans large loans loans that are

identified as having potential credit weaknesses accruing loans past due 90 days or more and non-accrual loans

The Bank strives to maintain its loan portfolio in accordance with conservative loan underwriting policies that

result in loans specifically tailored to the needs of the Banks market area Every effort is made to identify and

minimize the credit risks associated with such lending strategies

The Bank follows loan review program designed to evaluate the credit risk in its loan portfolio Through

this loan review process an internally classified watch list is maintained that helps management assess the

overall quality of the loan portfolio and the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses In establishing the

appropriate classification for specific assets management considers among other factors the estimated value of
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the underlying collateral the borrowers ability to repay the borrowers payment history and the current

delinquency status As result of this process loans with higher than standard risk profile are categorized as

watch OAEM Other Assets Especially Mentionedloans not placed on the watch list and not classified but

that may contain potentially unsatisfactory characteristics substandard doubtful or loss and reserves are

allocated based on managements judgment and historical experience

Loans classified as substandard are those loans with clear and defined weaknesses such as unfavorable

financial ratios uncertain repayment sources or poor financial condition that may jeopardize the collection of the

debt They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain some losses if the deficiencies

are not corrected specific reserve based on the estimation of loss within each credit classified as substandard is

allocated to such loans Loans classified as doubtful are those loans that have characteristics similar to

substandard loans but with an increased risk that collection or liquidation in full is highly questionable and

improbable As with substandard loans specific reserves are allocated to these credits Such reserve allocations

average approximately 50% of doubtful loans Loans classified as loss are considered uncollectible and of such

little value that their continuance as bankable assets is not warranted This classification does not mean that the

loan has absolutely no recovery or salvage value but rather it is not practical or desirable to defer writing off this

asset even though partial recovery may be achieved in the future As practical matter when loans are identified

as loss they are charged off against the allowance for loan losses In addition to the above classification

categories the Bank also categorizes loans based upon risk grade and loan type assigning an allowance

allocation based upon each category

Significant growth in the Banks loan portfolio has been the primary reason for increases in the Banks
allowance for loan losses and the resultant provisions for loan losses necessary to provide for those increases

This growth has been spread among the Banks major loan categories with the mix of major loan categories

being relatively consistent The percentage of each major category of loans as percentage of total loans

outstanding for the past five years is illustrated in the afore-mentioned Loan Summary table During 2008 the

Bank experienced $5.1 million in loan losses of which $29 thousand was recovered during the year Charge offs

are typically recognized when it is the opinion of management that all or portion of an outstanding loan

becomes uncollectible Examples of loans which may be deemed uncollectible are credits whose principal and

interest payments are past due and/or when the fair market value of underlying pledged collateral is less than the

outstanding loan balance and the borrower is not meeting contractual obligations Loan repayment may be

realized through contractual agreement or through liquidation of assets pledged as collateral The Banks

allowance for loan losses at December 31 2008 totaled $9.0 million representing 1.55 percent of total loans

outstanding excluding loans held for sale At December 31 2007 this total was $7.6 million or 1.46 percent

The allowance for loan losses represents managements estimate of an amount adequate to provide for

known and inherent losses in the loan portfolio in the normal course of business Management makes specific

allowances that are allocated to certain individual loans and pools of loans based on risk characteristics as

discussed below At December 31 2008 portion of the Banks allowance was unallocated to specific credits or

specific classes of loans This unallocated portion of the allowance has been provided due to number of

unknown factors that management believes could potentially pose future general portfolio risks beyond those

identified by means of specific allocations These risks include but are not limited to the relative lack of

seasoning of the Banks portfolio the significant growth of the loan portfolio in relatively short time continued

growth development and demands on the credit administration function since inception of the Bank potential

risks associated with the concentration of real estate loans within the portfolio and significant uncertainties

within the general domestic economy and to lesser degree in the local economies in which the Bank conducts

its operations

While management believes that it uses the best information available to establish the allowance for loan

losses future adjustments to the allowance may be
necessary and results of operations could be adversely

affected if circumstances differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the determinations

Furthermore while management believes that it has established the allowance for loan losses in conformity with
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generally accepted accounting principles there can be no assurance that regulators in reviewing our portfolio

will not require adjustment to the allowance for loan losses In addition because future events affecting

borrowers and collateral cannot be predicted with certainty there can be no assurance that the existing allowance

for loan losses is adequate or that increases will not be necessary
should the quality of any loans deteriorate as

result of the factors discussed herein Any material increase in the allowance for loan losses may adversely affect

the Banks financial condition and results of operations The following table presents the allocation of the

allowance for loan losses at the end of each of the last five years The allocation is based on an evaluation of

defined loan problems historical ratios of loan losses and other factors that may affect future loan losses in the

categories of loans shown

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses

dollars in thousands

At December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

%ofTotai %ofTotal %ofTotal %ofTotal %ofTotal

Amount Loans Amount Loans1 Amount Loans Amount Loans1 Amount Loans1

Construction loans $3481 28.46% $2528 30.78% $2042 35.17% $1279 38.18% 471 25.66%

1-4 family residential 1942 20.32% 1191 19.29% 815 18.24% 469 19.47% 187 19.44%

Multifamily 51 1.55% 81 1.12% 76 1.19% 29 0.98% 19 1.02%

Nonfarm nonresidential 1729 33.29% 2400 31.91% 1277 26.18% 835 25.70% 790 43.00%

Totairealestateloans 7203 83.62% 6200 83.10% 4210 80.78% 2612 84.33% 1467 89.12%

Commercial and industrial

loans 1550 15.26% 1073 15.64% 928 17.31% 610 13.94% 199 8.64%

Consumer 65 1.12% 70 1.26% 80 1.91% 50 1.73% 24 2.24%

Unallocated 195 228 547 380 150

Total loans $9013 100.00% $7571 100.00% $5765 100.00% $3652 100.00% $1840 100.00%

Percent of loans in each category to total loans
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The following table summarizes information regarding changes in the Banks allowance for loan losses for

the years ended December 31 2008 2007 2006 2005 and 2004

Loan Loss and Recovery

dollars in thousands

For the Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Total loans outstanding at the end of the period 1.. $579856 $516908 $375181 $238124 $122364

Average loans outstanding during the period $567560 $445976 $308049 $178642 75629

Allowance for loan losses at the beginning of the

period 7571 5765 3652 1840 1840
Provision for loan losses 6520 3390 2396 1812
Loans charged off 5107 1597 288

Recoveries on loans previously charged off 29 13

Allowance for loan losses at the end of the period .. 9013 7571 5765 3652 1840

Ratios

Net charge-offs as percent of average loans 0.89% 0.36% 0.09%

Allowance for loan losses as percent of period end

loans 1.55% 1.46% 1.54% 1.53% 1.50%

Excluding loans held for sale

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

The Banks portfolio of investment securities consists primarily of debt instruments of U.S government

agencies or of Govermnent Sponsored Enterprises and mortgage-backed securities Securities to be held for

indefinite periods of time and not intended to be held to maturity are classified as available for sale AFS and

carried at fair value with any unrealized gains or losses reflected as an adjustment to stockholders equity

Securities held for indefinite periods of time include securities that management intends to use as part of its asset

liability management strategy and that may be sold in response to changes in interest rates and/or significant

prepayment risks Securities for which the Bank has the ability and intent to hold the securities to maturity are

classified as held to maturity securities HTM HTM securities are carried at amortized cost It is the Banks

policy to classify most investment securities as available for sale The following table summarizes investment

securities by type at December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Investment Securities Composition

dollars in thousands

At December 31

2008 2007 2006

Available for sale

U.S Government Agencies $15426 $14284 2974

Government-sponsored enterprises 2000 11046 36096

Mortgage backed securities 69375 35785 42140

Total investment securities $86801 $61115 $81210

At December 31

2008 2007 2006

Held to Maturity

State and political subdivisions 824
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The following table summarizes the amortized costs fair values and weighted average yields of securities at

December 31 2008 by contractual maturity groups

Available for sale

Government agencies

Due within one year

Due after one but within five years

Due after five but within ten years

Due after ten years

Government-sponsored enterprises

Due within one year

Due after one but within five years

Due after five but within ten years

Due after ten years

Mortgage backed securities

Due within one year

Due after one but within five years

Due after five but within ten years

Due after ten years

Total securities available for sale

Due within one year

Due after one but within five years

Due after five but within ten years

Due after ten years

Total investment securities

Yields are calculated based on amortized cost

Held to Maturity

State and political subdivisions

Due within one Year

Due after one but within five years

Due after five but within ten years

Amortized Fair

Cost Value Yield

723 715 3.21%

6805 6655 2.13%

8301 8056 4.03%

15829 15426 3.18%

2000 2000 2.8 1%

2000 2000 2.81%

69762 69375 4.88%

69762 69375 5.62%

2000 2000 2.81%

723 715 3.21%

6805 6655 2.13%

78063 77431

$87591 $86801 4.53%

At December 312008

Amortized Fair

Cost Value Yield

51 3.30%

259 4.28%

521 5.26%

$831 4.83%

The Bank does not engage in nor does it presently intend to engage in securities trading activities and

therefore does not maintain trading account At December 31 2008 there were no securities of any issuer

other than governmental agencies or Government Sponsored Enterprises that exceeded 10% of the Banks

stockholders equity

Investment Securities

dollars in thousands

At December 312008

51

257

516

$824
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SOURCES OF FUNDS

Deposit Activities

The Bank provides range of deposit services including noninterest-bearing checking accounts interest-

bearing checking and savings accounts money market accounts IRAs and certificates of deposit These accounts

generally earn interest at rates established by management based on assetlliability planning earnings budgets

competitive market factors and managements desire to increase or decrease certain types or maturities of

deposits Management believes that one of the primary keys to the long-term success of the Bank is the

acquisition of demand deposit accounts and other transaction accounts Accordingly we strive to establish

relationships with customers which will facilitate and attract core deposits While certificates of deposit are

certainly significant component in the funding of the Bank management endeavors to utilize these instruments

as an entrØe into full relationship with each customer resulting in complete banking relationship inclusive of

the customers transaction accounts

As noted previously during the fourth quarter of 2008 management initiated the use of brokered certificates

of deposit as supplemental source of funding Management elected to begin to utilize wholesale funding to

avoid the steep increase in funding costs associated with unusually high premiums being paid on CDs within the

Banks local markets Such unusual premiums have emanated from disruption of normalized CD pricing

resulting from liquidity shortfalls experienced by some larger financial institutions Management believes that

this situation stems from the disruption of the secondary mortgage and credit markets and the inability of larger

institutions to generate liquidity from commercial paper markets and from the securitization and sale of financial

assets

The following table summarizes the average balances outstanding and average interest rates for each major

category of deposits for the
years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

Deposit Mix

dollars in thousands

For the Year Ended December 312008 For the Period Ended December 312007

Average to Total Average Average to Total Average
Amount Deposits Rate Amount Deposits Rate

Interest-bearing deposits

NOW Accounts 56257 10.21% 0.99% 51401 10.66% 1.70%

Money Market 31649 5.74% 2.63% 16715 3.47% 2.99%

Savings 68173 12.37% 2.47% 50662 10.51% 2.93%

Time deposits under $100 172900 1.38% 3.87% 158257 32.82% 5.28%

Time deposits of $100 or greater 164137 29.79% 4.09% 152903 31.71% 5.19%

Total interest-bearing deposits 493116 89.49% 3.34% 429938 89.17% 4.45%

Nonmterest-bearing deposits 57885 10.5 1% 52220 10.83%

Total deposits $551001 100.00% 3.34% $482158 100.00% 4.45%

The following table presents information regarding maturities of certificates of deposit with balances of

$100000 or more at December 31 2008

Maturities of Time Deposits of $100000 or More

dollars in thousands

At December 31 2008

Amount Average Rate

Maturing in

Three months or less 79913 3.34%

Over three months to six months 65281 3.28%

Over six months to twelve months 27793 3.41%

Over twelve months 3537 4.19%

Total $176524 3.35%
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RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See Note to the Banks Financial Statements for full description of recent accounting pronouncements

including the respective expected dates of adoption and effects on results of operations and financial condition

INFLATION AND OTHER ISSUES

Because our assets and liabilities are primarily monetary in nature the effect of inflation on our assets is less

significant compared to most commercial and industrial companies However inflation does have an impact on

the growth of total assets in the banking industry and the resulting need to increase capital at higher than nonnal

rates in order to maintain an appropriate equity-to-assets ratio Inflation also has significant effect on other

expenses which tend to rise during periods of general inflation Notwithstanding these effects of inflation

management believes our financial results are influenced more by our ability to react to changes in interest rates

and general economic conditions impacting the creditworthiness of customers than directly by inflation

Except as discussed in this Managements Discussion and Analysis management is not aware of trends

events or uncertainties that will have or that are reasonably likely to have material adverse effect on the Banks

liquidity capital resources or operations Management is not aware of any current recommendations by

regulatory authorities which if they were implemented would have such an effect

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Allowance for Loan Losses The Banks most significant critical accounting policy is the determination

of its allowance for loan losses critical accounting policy is one that is both
very important to the portrayal of

the Banks financial condition and results and requires managements most difficult subjective or complex

judgments What makes these judgments difficult subjective and/or complex is the need to make estimates about

the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain If the mix and amount of future loan write-offs differ

significantly from those assumptions used in making determination the allowance for loan losses and resultant

provisions for loan losses could materially impact the Banks financial position and results of operations For

further discussion of the allowance for loan losses and detailed description of the methodology used in

determining the adequacy of the allowance see the sections of this discussion titled Asset Quality and

Analysis of Allowance for Loan Losses and Note to the financial statements contained in this Annual Report

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements Except as discussed in Note 13 with regard to conmtitted unfunded

lines of credit the Bank does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to

have current or future effect on its financial condition changes in financial condition revenues or expenses

results of operations liquidity capital expenditures or capital resources that is material to investors

ITEM 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The information called for by Item 7A is set forth in Item under the caption Asset/Liability Management

and is incorporated herein by reference
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Managements Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting Internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance to the

companys management and board of directors regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation

of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Under the supervision and with the participation of management including the chief executive officer and

chief financial officer the Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over

financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on this evaluation under the

framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework management of the Company has concluded the

Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as such term is defined in Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 13a-15t as of December 31 2008

Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting

objectives because of its inherent limitations Internal control over financial reporting is
process

that involves

human diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human

failures Internal control over financial reporting can also be circumvented by collusion or improper management

override Because of such limitations there is risk that material misstatements may not be prevented or detected

on timely basis by internal control over financial reporting However these inherent limitations are known

features of the financial reporting process Therefore it is possible to design into the process safeguards to

reduce though not eliminate this risk

Management is also responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and

other financial information contained in this report The accompanying financial statements were prepared in

conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles and include as necessary best estimates and

judgments by management

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Companys independent registered public

accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting for the year ended December 31 2008 The

Companys registered public accounting firm was not required to issue an attestation on its internal control over

fmancial reporting pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission

1st Gregory Gibson /s Roger Mobley

Gregory Gibson Roger Mobley

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors

and Stockholders

1st Financial Services Corporation

Hendersonville NC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of 1St Financial Services Corporation as of

December 31 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations changes in stockholders equity and

comprehensive income and cash flows for the year then ended 1st Financial Services Corporations

management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit The accompanying consolidated balance

sheet of 1St Financial Services Corporation as of December 31 2007 and the related consolidated statements of

operations changes in stockholders equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for the years ended

December 31 2007 and 2006 were audited by other auditors whose report dated March 13 2008 expressed an

unqualified opinion on those statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not

required to have nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our

audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstance but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also

includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as

well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audit provides reasonable

basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects

the financial position of 1St Financial Services Corporation as of December 31 2008 and the consolidated results

of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America

IS/Brown Edwards Company L.L.P

CERTiFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Bluefield West Virginia

January 30 2009
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li
Davis PLIC

Accountants and Business Advisors

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders

1st Financial Services Corporation

Hendersonville North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Mountain 1st Bank Trust Company the predecessor to 1st

Financial Services Corporation as of December 31 2007 and the related statements of operations changes in

stockholders equity and comprehensive income loss and cash flows for each of the two years in the period

ended December 31 2007 These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Mountain 1st Bank Trust Company as of December 31 2007 and the results of their operations

and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31 2007 in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

P4

Greenville South Carolina

March 13 2008

www.elliottdavis.com
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1ST FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31 2008 and 2007

dollars in thousands

2008 2007

Assets

Cash and noninterest bearing bank deposits $10244 9210

Interest bearing deposit with bank 37 69

Total cash and cash equivalents 10281 9279

Investment securities available for sale 86801 61115

Investment securities held to maturity 824

Restricted equity securities 5140 2501

Loans held for sale 4177 5035

Loans net of allowance for loan losses of $9013 at December 31 2008 and $7571 at

December 31 2007 570843 509337

Bank owned life insurance 11518 6000

Property and equipment net 7140 6555

Accrued interest receivable 3138 3534

Other assets 7274 3135

Total assets $707136 $606491

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Liabilities

Demand deposits 57950 50994
NOW accounts 56000 50504

Savings deposits 76899 53044

Money market accounts 35798 26552

Time deposits under $100 187843 179085

Time deposits of $100 and greater 176524 168926

Total deposits 591014 529105

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase 1372 9458

Borrowings 48000 15000

Accrued interest payable 3313 5209

Other liabilities 867 1507

Total liabilities 644566 560279

Commitments and contingencies Note 13
Stockholders equity

Preferred stock no par value Authorized 10000000 shares issued and outstanding

16369 and shares at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 respectively 15380

Common stock $5.00 par value 20000000 shares authorized 4997027 shares issued

and outstanding at December 31 2008 and 2007 24985 24985

Common stock warrants 1016

Additional paid-in capital 17778 17734

Retained earnings 3933 3621

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 522 128

Total stockholders equity 62570 46212

Total liabilities and stockholders equity $707136 $606491

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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1ST FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

dollars in thousands except per share data

2008 2007 2006

Interest income

Loans and fees on loans 35635 36861 25533

Investment securities 2897 3844 3120

Interest-bearing bank balances 27

Federal funds sold 17 34 608

Total interest income 38550 40740 29288

Interest expense

Deposits 16479 19135 13329

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase 255 382 100

Other borrowings 1171 158

Total interest expense 17905 19675 13429

Net interest income 20645 21065 15859

Provision for loan losses 6520 3390 2396

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 14125 17675 13463

Noninterest income

Service charges on deposit accounts 1651 1214 856

Mortgage origination income 1714 2333 2165

Other service charges and fees 735 633 391

Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance 518 105 85

Net realized gain on sale of investment securities 146 16
Other income 60 25

Total noninterest income 4824 4294 3505

Noninterest expense

Salaries and employee benefits 8915 8565 6920

Occupancy 1482 1145 828

Equipment 1207 1027 810

Advertising 926 886 956

Data processing and telecommunication 2279 1745 1246

Deposit insurance premiums 395 273 38

Professional fees 857 708 506

Printing and supplies expense 320 327 256

Othergeneralandadministrative 2131 1535 1119

Total noninterest expense 18512 16211 12679

Income before income taxes 437 5758 4289

Income tax expense 98 2218 1509

Net income 339 3540 2780

Accretion of preferred stock to redemption value 27

Preferred dividends accrued 105

Net income available to common stockholders 207 3540 2780

Basic income per share 0.04 0.71 0.56

Diluted income per share 0.04 0.66 0.51

Basic weighted average shares outstanding1 4997027 4988604 4977795

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding1 5211060 5381687 5442835

Amounts have been adjusted for all stock splits

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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1ST FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity and Comprehensive IncomeLoss

For the Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

dollars in thousands except share data

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Stock Preferred Stock

Paid-in Retained Comprehensive

Shares Amount Shares Amount Warrants Capital Earnings Loss Total

Balance December 312005 3975874 $19879 $22479 $2199 $288 $39871

Exercise of stock options 12341 62 61 123

Stock split effected in the form of

astockdividend 996314 4981 4981
Fractional shares purchased 23 23
Stock compensation expense 55 55

Comprehensive loss

Net income 2780 2780

Net unrealized gain on investment

securities available for sale net

of income taxes of $87 172 172

Reclassification adjustment for

gains included in net income

netof income taxes of $8 17 17

Total comprehensive income 2969

Balance December 31 2006... 4984529 24922 17591 581 99 42995

Exercise of stock options 12498 63 44 107

Cash dividend $.lO per share 500 500
Stock compensation expense 99 99

Comprehensive income

Net income 3540 3540

Net unrealized gain on investment

securities available for sale net

of income taxes of $3
Reclassification adjustment for

gains included in net income

net of income taxes of $8 24 24

Total comprehensive income... 3511

Balance December31 2007... 4997027 24985 17734 3621 128 46212

Stock compensation expense ... 44 44

Issuance of preferred stock 16369 15353 15353

Issuance of common stock

warrants 1016 1016

Accretion of Preferred Stock to

redemption value 27 27
Comprehensive loss

Net income 339 339

Net unrealized gain on investment

securities available for sale net

ofincometaxesof$l51 291 291
Reclassification adjustment for

gains included in net income

net of income taxes of $52 103 103

Total comprehensive loss 55

Balance December 312008... 4997027 $24985 16369 $15380 $1016 $17778 3933 $522 $62570

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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1ST FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

dollars in thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operations

Depreciation

Provision for loan losses

Deferred income taxes

Amortization of premium on securities net of discount accretion

Origination of available for sale loans

Sales of available for sale loans

Net realized loss gains on sales of investment securities

Stock compensation expense

Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance

Changes in assets and liabilities

Accrued interest receivable

Other assets

Accrued interest payable

Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of investment securities available for sale

Purchases of investment securities held to maturity

Sales of investment securities available for sale

Maturities and calls of investment securities

Purchases of restricted equity securities

Sales of restricted equity securities

Net increase in loans

Purchase of bank owned life insurance

Purchases of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows fromfinancing activities

Net increase in deposits

Net increase decrease in securities sold under agreements to repurchase and

federal funds purchased

Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock

Proceeds from issuance of warrants

Proceeds from issuance of common stock net

Fractional shares purchased

Net increase in borrowings

Dividends paid
________

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning

Cash and cash equivalents ending

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Transfer of loans to real estate acquired in settlement of loans 645

Transfer of loans to repossessions acquired in settlement of loans 1476 670

Interest paid 19801 18633

Taxes paid 1816 2646

See accompanying notes to financial statements

65

2008 2007 2006

339 3540 2780

1299 991 644

6520 3390 2396

893 341 744
345 186 119

97072 120531 106078
97930 119513 106946

146 16

44 99 55

518

396 724 1273
2705 100 136
1896 1042 2305

640 868 243

4789 7949 6763

74300 29667 45918
824

21214 3096 1880

26601 46422 24217

5159 2086 1049
2520 990

70147 143311 137340
5000 6000
1884 2977 2168

106979 133533 160378

61909

8086
15353

1016

33000

103192

1002

61115

62117

104623 144529

5327 3922

107 123

23
15000

500

124557 148551

1027 5064
10306 15370

9279 10306

11123
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1S1 FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements

Note SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business and Basis of Presentation

1st Financial Services Corporation 1st Financial formed in May 2008 is the Bank holding company for

Mountain 1st Bank Trust Company the Bank 1st Financial has no other assets or liabilities other than its

investment in the Bank 1st Financials business activity primarily consists of directing the activities of the Bank

Accordingly the information set forth in this report including financial statements and related data relates

primarily to the Bank 1st Financial and the Bank are collectively referred to as the Company herein

Mountain 1st Bank Trust the Bank is federally insured non-member commercial bank incorporated

and chartered under the laws of North Carolina on April 30 2004 and commenced operations on May 14 2004

The Bank provides financial services through its branch network located in western North Carolina and operates

under the banking laws of North Carolina and the Rules and Regulations of the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation The Bank competes with other financial institutions and numerous other non-financial services

commercial entities offering financial services products The Bank is further subject to the regulations of certain

federal and state agencies and undergoes periodic examinations by those regulatory authorities The Banks

customers are principally located in western North Carolina

The accounting and reporting policies of the Bank follow generally accepted accounting principles and

general practices within the financial services industry Following is summary of the more significant policies

Business Segments

The Bank reports its activities as single business segment In determining proper segment definition the

Bank considers the materiality of potential segment and components of the business about which financial

information is available and regularly evaluated relative to resource allocation and performance assessment

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of 1st Financial Services Corporation and its

wholly-owned subsidiary Mountain 1st Bank Trust All intercompany transactions and balances have been

eliminated in consolidation

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance

sheets and the reported amounts of income and expenses for the periods presented Actual results could differ

significantly from those estimates

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near-term relate to the

determination of the allowance for loan losses

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of reporting cash flows cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand amounts due from

banks short-term interest-bearing deposits and federal funds sold Cash and cash equivalents have maturities of

three months or less Accordingly the carrying amount of such instruments is considered to be reasonable

estimate of fair value
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Notes to Financial StatementsContinued

Investment Securities

Management determines the appropriate classification of investment securities at the time of purchase

Securities are classified as held to maturity HTM when the Bank has both the positive intent and ability to hold

the securities to maturity HTM securities are stated at amortized cost Securities that are bought and held

principally for the purpose of sellmg the near term are classified as trading securities and reported at fair value

with unrealized gains and losses included in earnings Securities not classified as HTM or trading are classified

as available for sale AFS AFS securities are stated at fair value with the unrealized gains and losses net of

income taxes reported as separate component of stockholders equity

The fair value of securities is based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes If quoted market price is not

available fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similarsecurities

decline in the market value of any AFS or HTM security below cost that is deemed to be other-than-

temporary results in reduction in carrying amount to fair value The impairment is charged to earmngs and

new cost basis for the security is established To determine whether an impairment is other-than-temporary the

Bank considers whether it has the ability and intent to hold the investment until market price recovery and

considers whether evidence indicating the cost of the investment is recoverable outweighs evidence to the

contrary Evidence considered in this assessment includes the reasons for the impairment the severity and

duration of the impairment changes in value subsequent to year-end and forecasted performance of the investee

At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Bank had no trading assets At those dates all of the Banks

investment securities were classified as AFS or HTM

Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted over the life of the related security as an adjustment to

yield using the effective-interest method Dividend and interest income are recognized when earned The cost of

securities sold is based on the specific identification method Gains and losses are recorded on the trade date

Restricted Equity Securities

The Bank as member institution is required to own stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta

FHLB No ready market exists for this stock and it has no quoted market value however redemption of these

stocks has historically been at par At December 31 2008 the Bank owned $3251700 in FHLB stock compared

to $1532600 at December 31 2007 Also the Bank owns stock in its upstream correspondent Silverton Bank

formerly the Bankers Bank of Atlanta Georgia The Banks investment in Silverton Bank stock totaled

$423528 at December 31 2008 compared to $105457 at December 31 2007 Also included in restricted equity

securities is an investment in Capital South Partners LLC Small Business Investment Corporation which

totaled $862500 at December 31 2008 and 2007 Restricted Equity Securities also include $500000 and

$102000 investment made during 2008 the Semor Housing Investment Fund and Pacific Coast Bankers Bank

stock respectively

Bank Owned Life Insurance

In December 2007 the Bank purchased $6.0 million in life insurance policies on certain key employees and

in January 2008 purchased an additional $5.0 million These policies are recorded on the Banks balance sheet at

their cash surrender value or the amount that can be realized and any income from these policies and changes in

the net cash surrender values are recorded in Other Noninterest Income on the Banks Statement of Operations
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Loans Held for Sale

The Bank originates single family residential first mortgage loans on pre-sold flow basis Loans held for

sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value in the aggregate as determined by outstanding commitments

from investors At closing these loans together with their servicing rights are sold to other financial institutions

under prearranged terms The Bank recognizes certain origination and service release fees upon the sale which

are classified as mortgage origination income on the statements of operations

Loans

Loans are generally stated at their outstanding unpaid principal balances net of an allowance for loan losses

and net deferred fees and costs Loan origination fees net of certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and

amortized as yield adjustment over the contractual life of the related loans using the level-yield method

Interest on loans is recorded based on the principal amount outstanding The Bank ceases accruing interest

on loans including impaired loans when in managements judgment the collection of interest appears doubtful

or the loan is past due 90 days or more Payments received on non-accrual loans generally are applied to

principal first and then to interest after all principal payments have been satisfied Management may return

loan classified as nonaccrual to accrual status when the obligation has been brought current has performed in

accordance with its contractual terms over an extended period of time and the ultimate collectability of the total

contractual principal and interest is no longer in doubt

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan and lease losses ALLL is established through provisions for losses charged against

income Loan amounts deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the ALLL and subsequent recoveries if

any are credited to the allowance The ALLL represents managements estimate of the amount necessary to

absorb estimated probable losses in the loan portfolio Managements periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the

allowance is based on individual loan reviews past loan loss experience economic conditions in the Banks
market areas the fair value and adequacy of underlying collateral and the growth and loss attributes of the loan

portfolio This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates including the amounts and

timing of future cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans that may be susceptible to significant

change Thus future additions to the ALLL may be necessary based on the impact of changes in economic

conditions In addition various regulatory agencies as an integral part of their examination process periodically

review the Banks ALLL Such agencies may require the Bank to recognize adjustments to the ALLL based on

their judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination

loan is considered impaired when full payment according to the terms of the loan agreement is not

probable or when the terms of loan are modified The ALLL related to loans that are deemed impaired is based

on discounted cash flows using the loans initial effective interest rate the loans observable market price or the

fair value of the collateral for collateral dependent loans At December 31 2008 the only loans considered by the

Bank to be impaired were one restructured loan which totaled $798 thousand and $10.0 million in non-accrual

loans At December 31 2007 impaired loans were comprised of $1.3 million in non-accrual loans

Real Estate Acquired in Settlement of Loans

Real estate acquired in settlement of loans ORE consists of property acquired through foreclosure

proceeding or acceptance of deed-in-lieu of foreclosure Real estate acquired in settlement of loans is recorded

initially at estimated fair value of the property less estimated selling costs at the date of foreclosure The initial
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recorded value may be subsequently reduced by additional write-downs which are charged to earnings if the

estimated fair value of the property less estimated selling costs declines below the initial recorded value Costs

related to the improvement of the property are capitalized whereas those related to holding the property are

expensed Such properties are held for sale and accordingly no depreciation or amortization expense is

recognized As of December 31 2008 the Bank held approximately $645 thousand of ORE The Bank held no

ORE at December 31 2007

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation is computed by the

straight-line method and is charged to operations over the estimated useful lives of the assets which range from

to 15 years for leasehold improvements and to 25 years for furniture and equipment

Maintenance repairs renewals and minor improvements are charged to expense as incurred Major

improvements are capitalized and depreciated

Advertising Costs

Advertising promotional and other business development costs are generally expensed as incurred External

costs incurred in producing media advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes place External

costs relating to direct mailing costs are expensed in the period in which the direct mailings are sent

Borrowings

At December 31 2008 the Banks borrowings consisted of $48.0 million in borrowings from the Federal

Home Loan Banic FHLB federal funds purchased of $237 thousand and securities sold under agreements to

repurchase of $1.1 million At December 31 2007 the Banks borrowings consisted of $15.0 million in

overnight borrowings from the FHILB federal funds purchased totaling $7.9 million and securities sold under

agreements to repurchase of $1.5 million

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consists of amounts currently payable to taxing authorities and the net

change in income taxes payable or refundable in future years Income taxes deferred to future years are

determined using the asset and liability method Under this method deferred income taxes are determined based

on temporary differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax

rates expected to be in effect when such amounts are realized or settled

In 2006 the FASB issued Interpretation No 48 FIN 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

an Interpretation of SFAS No 109 FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized

in an enterprises financial statements in accordance with SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes

FIN 48 also prescribes recognition threshold and measurement of tax position taken or expected to be taken in

an enterprises tax return FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2006 Accordingly

the Bank adopted FIN 48 effective January 2007 The adoption of FIN 48 did not have any impact on the

Banks financial position

Stock Splits

On February 14 2005 December 2005 and December 2006 the Bank effected 5-for-4 stock splits in

the form of stock dividends Net income loss per share information has been adjusted for all periods prior to the

splits
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Net Income Per Share

Basic income per share represents the net income available to common stockholders divided by the

weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period Dilutive income per share reflects

additional common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued

Potential common shares that may be issued by the Company relate to outstanding stock options and warrants

and are determined using the treasury stock method For the year ended December 31 2008 basic weighted

average shares outstanding totaled 4997027 and basic earnings per share amounted to $0.04 per share Diluted

weighted average shares totaled 5211060 which accounted for no dilution per share and resulted in fully diluted

BPS of $0.04 for the year ended December 31 2008 For the year ended December 31 2007 basic weighted

average shares outstanding totaled 4988604 and basic earnings per share EPS amounted to $0.71 per share

Diluted weighted average shares totaled 381 687 which accounted for dilution of $0 05
per share and resulted

in fully diluted EPS for 2007 of $0.66 per share For the year ended December 31 2006 basic weighted average

shares outstanding totaled 4.977795 and basic earnings per
share EPS amounted to $0.56 per share Diluted

weighted average shares totaled 5442835 which accounted for dilution of $0.05 per share and resulted in fully

diluted EPS for 2006 of $0.51 per share

Comprehensive Income Loss

Comprehensive income loss consists of net income and other comprehensive income loss Other

comprehensive income loss consists of unrealized gains and losses on investment securities available for sale

net of taxes Comprehensive income loss is presented in the statements of stockholders equity and

comprehensive income loss

Stock Compensation

In December 2004 the FASB issued SFAS No 123Revised Share-Based Payment SFAS 123R
SFAS 123R replaces SFAS No 123 Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation SFAS 123 and

supersedes APB Opinion No 25 Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees APB 25 SFAS 123R
requires compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions to be recognized ratably in the financial

statements over the period that an employee provides service in exchange for the award Public companies are

required to adopt and the Bank has adopted effective January 2006 the new standard using modified

prospective method Under the modified prospective method companies are allowed to record compensation cost

for new and modified awards over the related vesting period of such awards prospectively and record

compensation cost prospectively on the nonvested portion at the date of adoption of previously issued and

outstanding awards over the remaining vesting period of such awards No change to prior periods presented is

permitted under the modified prospective method At December 31 2006 the Bank had two stock-based

payment plans one for directors and another for employees which is described below Prior to January 2006
the Bank as permitted under SFAS 123 applied the intrinsic value method under APB 25 and related

interpretations in accounting for its stock-based compensation plan

Effective January 2006 the Bank adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R thereby expensing employee

stock-based compensation using the fair value method prospectively for all awards granted modified or settled

on or after January 2006 The fair value at the date of grant of the stock option is estimated using the Black

Scholes option-pricing model based on assumptions noted in table below The dividend yield is based on

estimated future dividend yields The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual term of the share option is

based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant Expected volatilities are generally based on

historical volatilities The expected term of share options granted is generally derived from historical experience

Compensation expense is recognized on straight-line basis over the stock option vesting period The impact of

adoption of the fair value based method for
expense recognition of employee awards resulted in net expense of
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approximately $44 thousand for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to $99 thousand for the year ended

December 31 2007

The Banks stock option plans which are stockholder approved provide for stock options to be granted

primarily to directors officers and other key associates Options granted under the directors stock option plan

are non-incentive stock options while options granted under the employee stock option plan are incentive stock

options Share option awards are granted with an exercise price equal to or higher than the market price of the

Banic shares at the date of grant Options vest ratably over pre-determined period generally five years and

expire after ten years from the date of grant except as discussed below Share options awards provide for

accelerated vesting if there is change in control as defined in the stock option plan At December 31 2008 no

shares were available to be granted under the directors plan and 327 706 shares remained available for award

under the employee plan Of the 941 095 options awarded pnor to December 31 2005 933 283 or 99 2% were

fully vested at that date with the remaining shares fully vested during the first and second quarters of 2006

As noted in Note 12 the Plans were established in 2004 subject to approvals of shareholders and the

Conmiissioner which occurred in June 2005 The Bank entered into stock option agreements during 2004 with

directors and certain employees Agreements executed in June and July of 2004 for options to purchase

approximately 595 thousand shares all share and per share amounts in this note have been adjusted for all stock

splits had an exercise price of $5.63 per share that was less than the market value of $10.35 per share of the

Banks stock on the deemed grant date in June 2005 The difference between the exercise price and the market

value of the stock was $4.72 per share i.e the intrinsic value Compensation cost recognized in the year ended

December 31 2005 was approximately $2.8 million This amount represents the per
share intrinsic value based

on the 595 thousand shares at the value of $4.72 per share

Management believes that the over-the-counter OTC quoted market prices of the Banks stock do not

reflect an accurate value of the stock since the stock is not traded in large volumes and the OTC bid and ask

quotes are for very small share lots The Plans themselves contemplate that there is no efficient market unless the

stock is listed on an exchange The Plans assign the responsibility to value the stock at each grant date to the

Board of directors until such time the Bank stock trades on stock exchange Management believes that this

approach to valuation is consistent with the measurement principles established by APB 25

The Bank engaged an investment banker to assist in the valuation of the Banks stock as of June 2005 The

investment banker first concluded that the Banks stock does not freely trade on an established market which is

the condition required to be met by APB 25 when the value of the underlying stock is valued on basis other

than quoted market price Next the valuation considered the ratio of the market price of publicly traded on an

exchange peer group banks in relation to their book values This ratio was then applied to the book value of the

Bank to estimate value under this approach The valuation also included discounted cash flow analysis using

discount rates of 13% to 15% applied to growth and performance assumptions provided by management The

results of the values obtained under the two methodologies were analyzed and conclusion was reached by the

Board of Directors that the value of the stock at the time the Plans were approved was $10.35 per share
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Under the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No 123 Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation SFAS 123 if company elects to

follow the inthnsic value method of measuring compensation cost under APB 25 proforma disclosures of

compensation cost must be made as if the Bank had adopted the fair value recognition method under SFAS 123

The following table illustrates the effect on net income loss per share and earnings loss per share as if the fair

value method had been applied to all outstanding and unvested awards in each of the periods presented dollars

in thousands except per share data

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2006

Net income as reported 339 $3540 2780

Add stock-based employee compensation

expense included in reported net income 44 99 55

Deduct total stock based employee

compensation cost determined under fair

value based method 44 99 55
Pro forma net loss based on SFAS No

123R 339 $3540 2780

Basic earnings loss per
share

As reported 0.04 0.71 0.56

Pro forma 0.04 0.71 0.56

Diluted earnings loss per share

As reported 0.04 0.66 0.51

Pro forma 0.04 0.66 0.51

Assumptions in estimating option values

Risk-free rate 4.07% 4.96%

Dividend yield

Volatility 30.34% 30%

Expected life 10 years 10 years

The weighted average
fair value of options granted for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2006 were

$4.93 and $10.36 respectively No options were granted during 2007

Reclassifications

Certain pnor year amounts have been reclassified from service charges on deposit accounts to other service

charges and fees in the financial statements to conform with the current year presentation The reclassifications

had no effect on previously reported net income or stockholders equity

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

The following is summary of recent authoritative pronouncements

In December 2007 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Statement of Financial

Accounting Standard SFAS No 141R Business Combinations SFAS 141R which replaces SFAS

141 SFAS 141R establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer in business combination

recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired the liabilities assumed and

any controlling interest recognizes and measures goodwill acquired in the business combination or gain from
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bargain purchase and determines what information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to

evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination SFAS 141R is effective for acquisitions

by the Company taking place on or after January 2009 Early adoption is prohibited Accordingly calendar

year-end company is required to record and disclose business combinations following existing accounting

guidance until January 2009 The Company will assess the impact of SFAS 14 1R as future acquisitions

occur

Also in December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated

Financial Statements an amendment of ARB No 51 SFAS 160 SFAS 160 establishes new accounting

and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of subsidiary

Before this statement limited guidance existed for reporting noncontrolling interests minority interest As

result diversity in practice exists In some cases minority interest is reported as liability and in others it is

reported in the mezzanine section between liabilities and equity Specifically SPAS 160 requires the recognition

of noncontrolling interest minority interest as equity in the consolidated financial statements and separate

from the parents equity The amount of net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest will be included in

consolidated net income on the face of the income statement SFAS 160 clarifies that changes in parents

ownership interest in subsidiary that do not result in deconsolidation are equity transactions if the parent retains

its controlling financial interest In addition this statement requires that parent recognize gain or loss in net

income when subsidiary is deconsolidated Such gain or loss will be measured using the fair value of the

noncontrolling equity investment on the deconsolidation date SPAS 160 also includes expanded disclosure

requirements regarding the interests of the parent and its noncontrolling interests SPAS 160 was effective for the

Company on January 2009 SPAS 160 had no impact on the Companys financial position results of

operations or cash flows

In March 2008 the PASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities SPAS 161 SPAS 161 requires enhanced disclosures about an entitys derivative and hedging

activities thereby improving the transparency of financial reporting It is intended to enhance the current

disclosure framework in SPAS 133 by requiring that objectives for using derivative instruments be disclosed in

terms of underlying risk and accounting designation This disclosure is intended to convey the
purpose

of

derivative use in terms of the risks that the entity is intending to manage SPAS 161 was effective for the

Company on January 2009 and will result in additional disclosures if the Company enters into any material

derivative or hedging activities

In February 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No 140-3 Accounting for Transfers of Pinancial

Assets and Repurchase Financing Transactions PSP 140-3 This FSP provides guidance on accounting for

transfer of financial asset and the transferors repurchase financing of the asset This FSP presumes that an

initial transfer of financial asset and repurchase financing are considered part of the same arrangement linked

transaction under SFAS 140 However if certain cntena are met the imtial transfer and repurchase financing

are not evaluated as linked transaction and are evaluated separately under SPAS 140 PSP 140-3 was effective

for the Company on January 2009 The adoption of FSP 140-3 had no impact on the Companys financial

position results of operations or cash flows

In April 2008 the PASB issued FASB Staff Position No 142-3 Determination of the Useful Life of

Intangible Assets FSP 142-3 This PSP amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal

or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of recognized intangible asset under SPAS No 142

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets SPAS 142 The intent of this FSP is to improve the consistency

between the useful life of recognized intangible asset under SPAS 142 and the period of expected cash flows

used to measure the fair value of the asset under SPAS 141R and other U.S generally accepted accounting
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principles This FSP was effective for the Company on January 2009 and had no material impact on the

Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows

In May 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 162 The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles SFAS 162 SFAS 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for

selecting the principles used in the preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental entities that are

presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP in the United States the GAAP
hierarchy SFAS 162 is effective November 15 2008 The FASB has stated that it does not expect SPAS 162

will result in change in current practice The application of SFAS 162 had no effect on the Companys financial

position results of operations or cash flows

The FASB issued FASB Staff Position No APB 14-1 Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments That

May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion Including Partial Cash Settlement FSP APB 14-1 The Staff

Position specifies that issuers of convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash upon conversion should

separately account for the liability and equity components in manner that will reflect the entitys nonconvertible

debt borrowing rate when interest cost is recognized in subsequent periods FSP APB 14-1 provides guidance for

initial and subsequent measurement as well as derecognition provisions The Staff Position was effective as of

January 2009 and had no material effect on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash

flows

In June 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No EITF 03-6-1 Determining Whether Instruments

Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions are Participating Securities FSP EITF 03-6-1 The Staff

Position provides that unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or

dividend equivalents are participating securities and must be included in the earnings per share computation FSP

EITF 03-6-1 was effective January 2009 and had no effect on the Companys financial position results of

operations earnings per share or cash flows

FSP SFAS 133-1 and FIN 45-4 Disclosures about Credit Derivatives and Certain Guarantees An

Amendment of FASB Statement No 133 and FASB Interpretation No 45 and Clarification of the Effective Date

of FASB Statement No 161 FSP SFAS 133-1 and FIN 45-4 was issued September 2008 effective for

reporting periods annual or interim ending after November 15 2008 FSP SFAS 133-1 and FIN 45-4 amends

SFAS 133 to require the seller of credit derivatives to disclose the nature of the credit derivative the maximum

potential amount of future payments fair value of the derivative and the nature of any recourse provisions

Disclosures must be made for entire hybrid instruments that have embedded credit derivatives

The Staff Position also amends FASB Interpretation No FIN 45 to require disclosure of the current

status of the paymentlperformance risk of the credit derivative guarantee If an entity utilizes internal groupings

as basis for the risk how the groupings are determined must be disclosed as well as how the risk is managed

The Staff Position encourages that the amendments be applied in periods earlier than the effective date to

facilitate comparisons at initial adoption After initial adoption comparative disclosures are required only for

subsequent periods

FSP SPAS 133-1 and FIN 45-4 clarifies the effective date of SFAS 161 such that required disclosures

should be provided for any reporting period annual or quarterly interim beginning after November 15 2008

The adoption of this Staff Position had no material effect on the Companys financial position results of

operations or cash flows
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The SECs Office of the Chief Accountant and the staff of the FASB issued press release 2008-234 on

September 30 2008 Press Release to provide clarifications on fair value accounting The Press Release

includes guidance on the use of managements internal assumptions and the use of market quotes It also

reiterates the factors in SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin SAB Topic 5M which should be considered when

determining other-than-temporary impairment the length of time and extent to which the market value has been

less than cost financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer and the intent and ability of the holder to

retain its investment for period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in market value

On October 10 2008 the FASB issued FSP SFAS 157-3 Determining the Fair Value of Financial Asset

When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active FSP SFAS 157-3 This FSP clarifies the application of SPAS

No 157 Fair Value Measurements see Note 17 in market that is not active and provides an example to

illustrate key considerations in determining the fair value of financial asset when the market for that asset is not

active The FSP is effective upon issuance including prior periods for which financial statements have not been

issued For the Company this FSP was effective for the quarter ended September 30 2008

The Company considered the guidance in the Press Release and in FSP SFAS 157-3 when conducting its

review for other-than-temporary impairment as of December 31 2008 as discussed in Note

FSP SFAS 140-4 and FIN 46R-8 Disclosures by Public Entities Enterprises about Transfers of

Financial Assets and Interests in Variable Interest Entities FSP SFAS 140-4 and FiN 46R-8 was issued in

December 2008 to require public entities to disclose additional information about transfers of financial assets and

to require public enterprises to provide additional disclosures about their involvement with variable interest

entities The FSP also requires certain disclosures for public enterprises that are sponsors
and servicers of

qualifying special purpose entities The FSP is effective for the first reporting period ending after December 15

2008 This FSP had no material impact on the financial position of the Company

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and

Hedging Activities SPAS 133 as amended by SPAS No 137 138 and 149 establishes accounting and

reporting standards for derivatives and hedging activities It requires an entity to recognize all derivatives as

either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet and measures those instruments at fair value Changes in the fair

value of those derivatives are reported in current earnings or other comprehensive income depending on the

purpose for which the derivative is held and whether the derivative qualifies for hedge accounting The Bank

does not currently engage in any activities that qualify for hedge accounting under SPAS 133 Accordingly

changes in fair value of these derivative instruments are included in gain on sales of loans held for sale in the

consolidated statements of operations

Note Restrictions on Cash

The Bank is required to maintain average reserve balances computed by applying prescribed percentages to

its various types of deposits either at the Bank or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank FRB During 2007

the Bank adopted an internal deposit reclassification system approved by the Board of Governors under

Regulation whereby significant portions of interest bearing and noninterest bearing transaction accounts are

transferred to non-reservable savings account status As result all required reserves at December 31 2008

and 2007 were met by the Banks vault cash

75



Note 3Investment Securities

1ST FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION
Notes to Financial StatementsContinued

Following is summary of investment securities at December 31 2008 and 2007 dollars in thousands

Securities available for sale

U.S Government agencies

Government sponsored enterprises

Mortgage backed securities

Total securities available for sale

At December 31 2008

Gross Gross

Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair

cost gains losses value

$15829 403 $15426

2000 2000

69762 224 611 69375

$87591 $224 $1014 $86801

The following tables show the gross unrealized losses and fair values aggregated by investment category

and length of time that the individual securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively All unrealized losses on investment securities are considered by

management to be temporary in nature Given the credit ratings on these investment securities the short duration

of the individual securities and the Banks ability and intent to hold these securities to maturity these securities

are not considered to be permanently impaired dollars in thousands

Securities available for sale

Government Agencies

Government-sponsored enterprises

Mortgage backed securities

Total temporarily impaired securities

At December 31 2008

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

value losses value losses value losses

8278 $235 $7551 $168 $15829 403

44086 611 44086 611

$52364 $846 $7551 $168 $59915 $1014

Less Than 12 Months

Fair Unrealized

value losses

At December 312007

Gross Gross

Amortized unrealized unrealized

cost gains losses

Securities available for sale

U.S Government agencies $14536 54 306 $14284

Government sponsored enterprises 10921 128 11046

Mortgage backed securities 35851 128 194 35785

Total securities available for sale $61308 $310 503 $61115

Fair

value

Securities available for sale

Government Agencies $10168

Government-sponsored enterprises

Mortgage backed securities

At December 312007

12 Months or More

Fair Unrealized

value losses

Total temporarily impaired securities

Total

Fair Unrealized

value losses

8341

$18509

$306

190

$496

997

1597

$2594

$10168
997

9938

$21103

306

194

503
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Thirteen individual securities were in continuous unrealized loss position for twelve months or more at

December 31 2008

The aggregate amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available for sale at December 31

2008 by remaining contractual maturity are shown below Actual expected maturities may differ from

contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations dollars in thousands

At December 312008

Amortized Fair

cost value

Government agencies

Due after year through years 723 715

Due after
years through 10

years 6805 6655

Due after lOyears 8301 8056

Government-sponsored enterprises

Due within
year 2000 2000

Due after year through years

Due after 10 years

Mortgage-backed securities 69762 69375

Total $87591 $86801

Proceeds from sales of investment securities available for sale were $21.2 million and $3.1 million for the

years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Gross realized gains from the sales of investment

securities available for sale for the year ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 were $146000 $0 and

$8000 respectively Gross realized losses for the
year

ended December 31 2007 were $16000 There were no

realized losses for the
years

ended December 31 2008 or 2006

Investment securities with amortized cost of $12.5 million and fair value of $12.5 million were pledged as

collateral on credit availability through Silverton Bank for securities sold under agreements to repurchase and

other banking purposes at December 31 2008

Note Loans

Following is summary of loans excluding loans held for sale at December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

dollars in thousands

At December 31

2008 2007 2006

Real estate

Construction and development $165017 $159127 $131928

1-4 family residential 117835 99692 68427

Multifamily 9018 5768 4478

Nonfarm nonresidential 193010 164940 98220

Total real estate loans 484880 429527 303053

Commercial and industrial loans 88471 80867 64946

Consumer 6505 6514 7182

579 856 516908 375 181

Allowance for loan losses 9013 7571 5765

Total loans $570843 $509337 $369416
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At December 31 2008 the Bank had $10.0 million in non-accruing loans compared to $1.3 million and

$611 thousand at December 31 2007 and 2006 respectively The foregone interest associated with these loans

totaled $233 thousand at December 31 2008 compared to $124 thousand and $26 thousand at December 31

2007 and 2006 respectively

Note Allowance for Loan Losses

An analysis of the changes in the allowance for loan losses is as follows dollars in thousands

For the Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Balance beginning 7571 5765 $3652

Provision for loan losses charged to expense 6520 3390 2396

Loan charge-offs 5107 1597 288
Loan recoveries 29 13

Balance ending 9013 7571 $5765

Note Property and Equipment

The components of property and equipment and accumulated depreciation are as follows amounts in

thousands

At December 31

2008 2007

Premises

Land 275 275

Buildings 597 294

Leasehold improvements 3197 2631

Furniture and fixtures 3957 3468

Computer and telecom equipment and software 2488 1962

Other 26 26

Property and equipment total 10540 8656

Less accumulated depreciation 3400 2101

Property and equipment 7140 6555

Depreciation amounted to $1.3 million $991 thousand and $644 thousand for the
years

ended December 31

2008 2007 and 2006 respectively
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Note Time Deposits

Time deposits in denominations of $100000 or more were $176.5 million and $168.9 million at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Interest expense on such deposits aggregated approximately $6.7

million $7.9 million and $5.6 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Time

deposits maturing subsequent to December 31 2008 are as follows dollars in thousands

Maturing in Amount

2009 $355423

2010 7230
2011 1131

2012 213

2013 370

$364367

Note Borrowings

At December 31 2008 the Banks borrowings consisted of borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank
federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase Additional information as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 is summarized below dollars in thousands

2008 2007

Outstanding balance at December 31 $49372 $24458

Year-end weighted average rate 0.48% 4.43%

Daily average outstanding during the period $57836 $10307

Average rate for the period 2.47% 5.24%

Maximum outstanding at any month-end during the period $83694 $24458

At December 31 2008 the Banks borrowings consisted of $48.0 million in borrowings from the Federal

Home Loan Bank at rate of 0.46% federal funds purchased of $237 thousand at rate of 0.95% and securities

sold under agreements to repurchase of $1.1 million at rate of 0.83% portion of the Banks borrowings are

collateralized by investment securities as described in Note

As of December 31 2008 the Bank had lines of credit to purchase federal funds from unrelated banks

totaling $38.5 million These lines of credit are unsecured and are available on one to fourteen day basis for

general corporate purposes As of December 31 2008 the Bank had no outstanding balances on these lines The

Bank also has line of credit to borrow funds from correspondent bank on secured basis This $7.0 million

line is available on one day basis and is secured by investment securities with total fair market values of $7.9

million
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Note Leases

As of December 31 2008 the Bank leases office space under non-cancelable operating leases Future

minimum lease payments required under the leases are as follows dollars in thousands

Year Ending
December 31 Amount

2009 701

2010 740

2011 628

2012 602

2013 607

Thereafter 1255

$4533

The leases contain options for renewals after the expiration of the current lease terms The cost of such

renewals is not included above Total rent expense for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

amounted to $739 thousand $606 thousand and $465 thousand respectively

Note 10Income Taxes

The following table presents the Banks current and deferred income tax provision benefit at the end of

2008 2007 and 2006 dollars in thousands

The components of income tax expense are as follows amounts in thousands

Current Deferred Total

Year ended December 31 2008

Federal 574 $502 72

State 93 67 26

667 $569 98

Year ended December 31 2007

Federal $2165 $280 $1885

State 394 61 333

$2559 $341 $2218

Year ended December 31 2006

Federal $1958 $688 $1270

State 295 56 239

$2253 $744 $1509
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Reconciliation between the income tax expense and the amount computed by applying the statutory federal

income tax rate of 34% to income before income taxes is as follows dollars in thousands

For the Years Ended

2008 2007 2006

Tax at statutory federal rate $148 $1958 $1458

State income tax net of federal benefit 17 220 158

Nondeductible employee stock compensation 15 34

Other 94 101

Deferred tax asset valuation allowance change net 208
Cash surrender value of life insurance 176

Income tax expense $98 $2218 $1509

The significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are summarized as follows dollars in

thousands

At December 31

2008 2007

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for loan losses $3192 $2555

Pre-opening expenses 34 80

Nonqualified stock compensation 575 575

Unrealized losses on securities available for sale 269 66

Other 175

Deferred loan costs net 25

Deferred tax asset $4270 $3276

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation 819 542
Deferred loan costs net 55

Deferred tax liability 819 597

Deferred tax assets represent the future tax benefit of deductible differences and if it is more likely than not

that tax asset will not be realized valuation allowance is required to reduce the recorded deferred tax assets to

net realizable value As of December 31 2008 and 2007 management determined that it was more likely than

not that all assets would be realized and no valuation allowance was appropriate As of December 31 2005 in

consideration of the lack of an established earnings history management provided valuation allowances of

approximately 11% to reflect its estimate of net realizable value as of that date The net deferred asset is included

in other assets in the balance sheet

The Bank has analyzed the tax positions taken or expected to be taken in its tax returns and has concluded it

has no liability related to uncertain tax positions in accordance with FIN 48

Note 11 401k/Profit Sharing Plan

Effective January 2005 the Bank adopted 401k Profit Sharing Plan which is available to all full-time

employees and part-time employees working more than 1000 hours per year The 401k plan provides that

employee contributions are matched in an amount equal to 100% of employee contributions which do not exceed
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3% of compensation and 50% of employee contributions over 3% and up to 5% of compensation Both employee

contributions and the initial 3% Bank matching contribution under the 401k Plan are 100% vested at all times

The additional 2% match under the 40 1k Plan as well as any discretionary Bank contributions under the Profit

Sharing Plan are fully vested after three years Matching contributions under the 40 1k Plan Profit Sharing

Plan totaled approximately $241 thousand $202 thousand and $164 thousand for 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively There were no discretionary contributions made in 2008 or 2007 Discretionary contributions

totaled $112 thousand for the 2006 plan year

Note 12 Stock Options

Stock Option Plans

During 2004 the Banks Board of Directors approved both an Employee Stock Option Plan and Director

Stock Option Plan collectively referred to as the Plans subject to the approval of the Banks stockholders and

the North Carolina Commissioner of Banks The Plans as they subsequently were amended by the Board and

approved by the Banks stockholders and the Commissioner provide that up to 497110 shares adjusted for all

stock splits of the Banks common stock may be issued under each of these plans for combined total of

994220 shares Options granted under the Plans may be vested immediately and expire no more than 10 years

from date of grant The exercise price for any options granted under the Plans is set by the Board of Directors at

the date of grant and is adjusted on pro rata basis for any subsequent stock split In 2007 no options were

granted either under the Employee Stock Option Plan or the Director Stock Option Plan During 2006 25000

options were granted under the Employee Stock Option Plan while no options were granted under the Director

Stock Option Plan Including options forfeited and those exercised the total number of options outstanding at

December 31 2007 under each plan was 497110 in the Director Stock Option Plan and 431667 in the Employee

Stock Option Plan

During 2008 the Companys Board of Directors and stockholders approved the 2008 Omnibus Equity Plan

which provided an additional 250000 shares of the 1st Financials common stock to be reserved and made

available for use as either stock option awards or restricted stock grants As of December 31 2008 no restricted

stock awards have been granted During 2008 10000 options were granted and 50195 options were forfeited
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summary of the activity in the Plans and related information for the years
ended December 31 2008

2007 2006 is as follows

Outstanding Options Exercisable Options

Shares Weighted Weighted

Available Average Average

for Number Exercise Number Exercise

Grants Outstanding Price Outstanding Price

AtDecember 31 2005 53125 941095 8.49 933283 8.49

Options granted 25000 25000 23.90

Options vested 7812 5.63

Options exercised 15434 7.97 15434 7.97

Options forfeited 2344 2344 13.31 2344 13.31

AtDecember 31 2006 30469 948317 8.90 923317 8.90

Options granted

Options vested 5000 23.90

Options exercised 12498 8.51 12498 8.51

Options forfeited 7042 7042 13.31 7042 13.31

AtDecember 31 2007 37511 928777 8.86 908777 8.86

2008 Omnibus Plan 250000

Options granted 10000 10000 9.90

Options vested 2500 24.00

Options exercised

Options forfeited 50195 50195 14.08 40195 10.86

AtDecember 31 2008 327706 888582 8.58 871082 8.43

Additional information concerning the Banks Plans as of December 31 2008 is as follows

Average Weighted Average

Number Number Intrinsic Remaining

Exercise Price Outstanding Exercisable Value Contractual Life

$5.63 566297 566297 $492 5.49 Years

$9.90 10000 9.50 Years

$12.29 9766 9766 6.76 Years

$13.31 271713 271713 7.75 Years

$14.08 12056 12056 7.75 Years

$20.60 6250 6250 694 Years

$24.00 12500 5000 8.50 Years

Total outstanding at end of the year .. 888582 871082 $492 6.98 Years

dollars in thousands

It is the Banks policy to issue new shares to satisfy option exercises There were no options exercised

dunng 2008 Cash received from option exercises amounted $107 thousand for the years ended December 31

2007 The total intrinsic value of options exercised in 2007 was $160 thousand
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As of December 31 2008 anticipated total unrecognized compensation cost related to outstanding

non-vested stock options will be recognized over the following periods in thousands

Year Ending
December31 Amount

2009 33042
2010 25665
2011 19943

2012 17784
2013 15720

$112154

Note 13 Contingent Liabilities Commitments and Uncertainties

Litigation

In the normal course of business the Bank is involved in various legal proceedings Management believes

that any liability resulting from such proceedings will not be material to the financial statements

Risks and Uncertainties

In the normal course of its business the Bank encounters numerous risks Two of the most significant of

these types of risk are economic and regulatory There are three main components of economic risk interest rate

risk credit risk and market risk The Bank is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing

liabilities mature or reprice at different speeds or on different bases than its interest-earning assets Credit risk is

the risk of default on the Banks loan portfolio that results from borrowers inability or unwillingness to make

contractually required payments Market risk reflects changes in the value of collateral underlying loans

receivable the valuation of real estate held by the Bank and the valuation of loans held for sale and investment

securities available for sale

The Bank is subject to the regulations of various governmental agencies These regulations can and do

change significantly from period to period The Bank also undergoes periodic examinations by the regulatory

agencies which may subject it to further changes with respect to asset valuations amounts of required loss

allowances and operation restrictions resulting from the regulators judgments based on infonnation available to

them at the time of their examination

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet-Risk

The Bank is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to

meet the financing needs of its customers These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and

standby letters of credit These instruments involve to varying degrees credit risk in excess of the amount

recognized in the balance sheets The Banks exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other

party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by
the contractual amount of those instruments The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments and

conditional obligations as for on-balance-sheet instruments summary of the Banks commitments are as

follows dollars in thousands

At December 31

2008 2007

Commitments to extend credit $91086 $97999
Standby letters of credit 2751 960

$93837 $98959
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Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customer as long as there is no violation of any

condition established in the contract Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination

clauses and may require payment of fee Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being

drawn upon the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements The Bank

evaluates each customers creditworthiness on case-by-case basis The amount of collateral obtained if deemed

necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit is based on management credit evaluation of the party

Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivables inventory property and equipment residential real

estate and income-producing commercial properties

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of

customer to third party Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing

arrangements The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in

extending loan facilities to customers Collateral held varies as specified above and is required in instances

which the Bank deems necessary Since most of the letters of credit are expected to expire without being drawn

upon they do not necessarily represent future cash requirements The Bank has not recorded liability for the

current carrying amount of the obligation to perform as guarantor and no contingent liability was considered

necessary as such amounts were not considered material

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Bank to concentrations of credit risk consist principally

of loans investment securities federal funds sold and amounts due from banks with loans accounting for the

most significant risk

The Bank makes loans to individuals and small businesses for various personal and commercial purposes

primarily in western North Carolina Management does not consider the loan portfolio to be significantly

concentrated in loans to any single borrower or relatively small number of borrowers Additionally

management is not aware of any concentrations of loans to classes of borrowers or industries that would be

similarly affected by economic conditions

Recently banking regulators have raised concern and are preparing to heighten regulatory scrutiny

regarding loan portfolios with concentrations of loans collateralized by real estate particularly commercial real

estate CRE They have defined CRE to include construction loans acquisition and development loans loans

collateralized with tracts of raw land for speculative purposes any sort of commercial premise unless it is owner

occupied and number of other subcategories As noted within this report slightly more than 83% of Mountain

1st Banks loan portfolio is collateralized by real estate As with the vast majority of community banks

management believes that utilizing real estate as collateral generally provides the safest form of lending

reasonably available to the Bank Furthermore real estate lending is the principal core competency and expertise

of the Banks lending team North Carolina has become the number one state in the country
for in-migration and

western North Carolina has been and is forecast to continue to be the beneficiary of sizeable portion of this

influx of new residents These factors coupled with the diversification of the different types
of real estate

collateral and the Banks emphasis on borrowers secondary repayment sources rather than placing over reliance

on liquidation of real estate as the source of repayment of loans significantly mitigates the risk of this

concentration in managements opinion

In addition to monitoring potential concentrations of loans to particular borrowers or groups of borrowers

industries geographic regions and loan types management monitors exposure to credit risk from other lending

practices such as loans that subject borrowers to substantial payment increases e.g principal deferral periods

loans with initial interest-only periods etc and loans with high loan-to-value ratios LTV Regulatory
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guidelines state that the total amount of all loans in excess of the regulatory loan-to-value ratio limits should not

exceed 100% of banks total risk-based capital These types of loans totaled $64.2 million at December 31
2005 representing 148.6% of the Banks total risk-based capital During 2006 management determined that

reduction in the amount of loans with LTV exceptions was warranted to aid in mitigating the above noted real

estate concentration risk As result of managements actions loans with LTVs that exceeded regulatory

guidelines were reduced to 88% of risk-based capital at December 31 2006 Continued efforts in 2007 further

reduced the amount of loans with LTV exceptions to $29.0 million or 55% of risk-based capital at December 31
2007 LTV exceptions rose to 60% at December 31 2008

The Banks investment portfolio consists principally of obligations of the United States its agencies

Government Sponsored Enterprises and general obligation municipal securities In the opinion of management
there is no concentration of credit risk in its investment portfolio

The Bank places its deposits and correspondent accounts with and sells its federal funds to high quality

institutions Management believes credit risk associated with correspondent accounts is not significant

Note 14 Stockholders Equity

Preferred Stock

In November 2008 under the U.S Department of the Treasurys U.S Treasury TARP Capital Purchase

Program 1st Financial issued to the U.S Treasury 16369 shares of Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred

Stock Series Series Preferred Stock and 10-year warrant to purchase up to 276815 shares of common
stock at an exercise price of $8.87 per share for aggregate proceeds of $16369000 The allocated carrying

values of the warrant and the Series Preferred Stock on the date of issuance based on their relative fair values

were $1016000 and $15353000 respectively Cumulative dividends on the Series Preferred Stock are

payable at 5%
per annum through November 14 2013 and at rate of 9% per annum thereafter The Series

Preferred Stock will be accreted to the redemption price of $16369000 over five years The warrant is

exercisable at any time until November 14 2018 and the number of shares of common stock underlying the

warrant and the exercise price are subject to adjustment for certain dilutive events If on or prior to

December 31 2009 the company receives aggregate gross cash proceeds of at least $16369000 from sales of

Tier qualifying perpetual preferred stock or common stock the number of shares of common stock issuable

upon exercise of the warrant will be reduced by one-half of the original number of shares of common stock

Each share of Series Preferred Stock issued and outstanding has no par value has liquidation preference

of $1000 and is redeemable at the companys option subject to the approval of the Federal Reserve Board at

redemption price equal to $1000 plus accrued and unpaid dividends provided that through November 14 2011

the Series Preferred Stock is redeemable only in an amount up to the aggregate net cash proceeds received

from sales of Tier qualifying perpetual preferred stock or common stock and only once such sales have

resulted in aggregate gross proceeds of at least approximately $4.1 million

The Series Preferred Stock has preference over the companys common stock upon liquidation

Dividends on the preferred stock if declared are payable quarterly in arrears The companys ability to declare

or pay dividends on or purchase redeem or otherwise acquire its common stock is subject to certain restrictions

in the event that the company fails to pay or set aside full dividends on the preferred stock for the latest

completed dividend period In addition pursuant to the U.S Treasurys TARP Capital Purchase Program until at

the earliest November 14 2011 or the redemption of all of the Series Preferred Stock or transfer by the U.S

Treasury of all of the Series Preferred Stock to third parties the company must obtain the consent of the U.S

Treasury to raise the firms common stock dividend or to repurchase any shares of common stock or other

preferred stock with certain exceptions
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Restriction on Dividends

As North Carolina banking corporation the Bank may pay cash dividends only out of undivided profits as

determined pursuant to North Carolina banking laws However regulatory authorities may limit payment of

dividends when it is determined that such limitation is in the public interest and is necessary to ensure bank

financial soundness In addition as condition to receiving its charter the Bank entered into an agreement with

the North Carolina Banking Commission which is standard with all newly chartered banks in the state

restricting the payment of cash dividends for the first three years of its existence

Capital Requirements

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal

and state banking agencies Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and

possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that if undertaken could have direct material effect on

the Companys and the Banks financial statements Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory

framework for prompt corrective action the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative

measures of the Banks assets liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory

accounting practices The Banks capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by

the regulators about components risk weightings and other factors Quantitative measures established by

regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and

ratios set forth in the table below of total and Tier capital to risk-weighted assets and of Tier capital to

average assets as all those terms are defined in the applicable regulations

As of December 31 2008 the most recent notification from the Banks primary regulator categorized the

Bank as well-capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action There are no events or

conditions since that notification that management believes have changed the Banks category

The table below summarizes the Company and the Banks capital ratios at December 31 2008 and 2007

dollars in thousands

Actual Required Action Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31 2008

Total Capital to Risk-weighted Assets

Company $70028 12.67% $44223 8.00% $55279 10.00%

Bank $64665 11.70% $44223 8.00% $55279 10.00%

Tier Capital to Risk-weighted Assets

Company $63092 11.41% $22112 4.00% $33167 6.00%

Bank $57729 10.44% $22112 4.00% $33167 6.00%

Tier Capital to Average Assets

Company $63092 9.12% $27673 4.00% $34591 5.00%

Bank $57729 8.34% $27673 4.00% $34591 5.00%

As of December 31 2007

Total Capital to Risk-weighted Assets

Bank $52661 10.44% $40362 8.00% $50452 10.00%

Tier Capital to Risk-weighted Assets

Bank $46339 9.18% $20181 4.00% $30271 6.00%

Tier Capital to Average Assets

Bank $46339 7.85% $23612 4.00% $29515 5.00%

Note 1st Financial Services Corporation bank holding company formed in 2008
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Note 15 Related Party Transactions

The Bank has loan and deposit relationships with most of its directors and executive officers and with

companies with which certain directors and executive officers are associated The following is reconciliation of

loans directly outstanding to executive officers directors and their affiliates dollars in thousands

At December 31

2008 2007

Balance beginning $18220 $15625

New loans and advances 13998 9153

Repayments 5706 6558

Balance ending $26512 $18220

As matter of policy these loans and credit lines are approved by the Board of Directors and are made with

interest rates terms and collateral requirements comparable to those required of other borrowers In the opinion

of management these loans do not involve more than the normal risk of collectability The Bank also enters into

other transactions in the ordinary course of business with affiliates Bank policy requires transactions with

affiliates to be on terms no less favorable than could be obtained from an unaffiliated third party and to be

approved by majority of disinterested directors The following are two transactions entered into with affiliates

which were outstanding at December 31 2008

The Bank leases the site for its Fletcher branch from company owned by director of the Bank The initial

lease term is ten years
with options to renew the lease for up to three successive five-year renewal terms The

terms of the lease call for $3200 per month rental payment during the first five years of the initial term with

payments during the second five years to be increased by the lesser of 18% or the aggregate increase in the

Chained Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers during the previous five years Rental payments during

each renewal term will be adjusted by the lesser of 15% or the aggregate increase in the Chained Consumer Price

Index for all Urban Consumers for the immediately preceding five years Lease payments under this lease totaled

$38400 for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

The Bank leases the site for its Marion branch from company of which director is co-owner The initial

lease term is five years with options to renew the lease for up to four successive three-year renewal terms The

terms of the lease call for $3500 per
month rental payment during the initial term Rental payments for each

renewal term will be adjusted by the aggregate increase in the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers for

the immediately preceding lease term Lease payments under this lease totaled $42000 for the year ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 and $26250 for the portion of the year during which the Bank leased this facility in

2006

Note 16 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS No 107 Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments requires company to disclose

the fair value of its financial instruments whether or not recognized in the balance sheet where it is practical to

estimate that value

Fair value estimates are made at specific point in time based on relevant market information about the

financial instrument These estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for

sale at one time the Banks entire holding of particular financial instrument In cases where quoted market

prices are not available fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future expected loss experience

current economic conditions risk characteristics of various financial instruments and other factors These
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estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore

cannot be determined with precision Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates In

addition the tax ramifications related to the realization of the unrealized gains and losses can have significant

effect on fair value estimates and have not been considered in the estimates Finally the fair value estimates

presented herein are based on pertinent information available to management as of December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial

instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value

Cash and Due from Banks Federal Funds Sold and Interest-Earning Deposits

The carrying amounts for cash and due from banks federal funds sold and interest-earning deposits

approximate fair value because of the short maturities of those instruments These instruments are considered

cash and cash equivalents

Investment Securities

Fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market price if such information is available If

quoted market price is not available fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similarsecurities

Loans Held for Sale

Fair values of mortgage loans held for sale are based on commitments on hand from investors or prevailing

market prices

Loans

For certain homogenous categories of loans such as residential mortgages fair value is estimated using the

quoted market prices for securities backed by similar loans adjusted for differences in loan characteristics The

fair value of other types of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rate at which

similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities

Bank Owned Life Insurance

The carrying value of life insurance approximates fair value since this investment is carried at cash

surrender value as determined by the insurer

Deposits Short-term Borrowings and Long-term Debt

The fair value of demand deposits and savings accounts is the amount payable on demand at the reporting

date The fair value of time deposits short-term borrowings and long-term debt is estimated based upon the

discounted value of projected future cash outflows using the rates currently offered for instruments of similar

remaining maturities

Accrued Interest Receivable and Accrued Interest Payable

The carrying amounts of accrued interest receivable and accrued interest payable are assumed to

approximate fair values Effective January 2008 the Company adopted SFAS No 157 Fair Value

Measurements SFAS 157 which provides framework for measuring and disclosing fair value under
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generally accepted accounting principles SPAS 157 requires disclosures about the fair value of assets and

liabilities recognized in the balance sheet in periods subsequent to initial recognition whether the measurements

are made on recurring basis for example available-for-sale investment securities or on nonrecurring basis

for example impaired loans

SFAS 157 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer

liability an exit price in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants on the measurement date SFAS 157 also establishes fair value

hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of

unobservable inputs when measuring fair value The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to

measure fair value

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level assets and liabilities include

debt and equity securities and derivative contracts that are traded in an active exchange market as well

as U.S Treasury securities that are highly liquid and are actively traded in over-the-counter markets

Level Observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities

quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated

by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities Level assets and

liabilities include debt securities with quoted prices that are traded less frequently than exchange-traded

instruments as well as U.S Government and agency mortgage backed debt securities and derivative

contracts whose value is determined using pricing model with inputs that are observable in the

market or can be derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data This category

generally includes certain derivative contracts and impaired loans

Level Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair

value of the assets or liabilities Level assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value

is determined using pricing models discounted cash flow methodologies or similar techniques as well

as instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or

estimation For example this category generally includes certain private equity investments retained

residual interests in securitizations residential mortgage servicing rights and highly-structured or long-

term derivative contracts

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis are as follows as of December 31 2008

dollars in thousands

Quoted market price in Significant other Significant unobservable

active markets observable inputs inputs

Level Level Level

Available-for-sale investments .. 86801

Mortgage loans held for sale ... 4177

Impaired loans 10806

Total $101784

The Company has no liabilities carried at fair value or measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis

The Company is predominantly an asset based lender with real estate serving as collateral on substantial

majority of loans Loans which are deemed to be impaired are primarily valued on nonrecurring basis at the fair

values of the underlying real estate collateral Such fair values are obtained using independent appraisals which

the Company considers to be level inputs
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FASB Staff Position No FAS 157-2 delays the implementation of SFAS 157 until the first quarter of 2009

with respect to goodwill other intangible assets real estate and other assets acquired through foreclosure and

other non-financial assets measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis

The following table presents the carrying values and estimated fair values of the Banks financial

instruments at December 31 2008 and 2007 dollars in thousands

Carrying Estimated

value fair value

As of December 31 2008

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents $10244 $10244

Federal funds sold and interest earning bank balances 37 37

Investment securities available for sale 86801 86801

Investment securities held to maturity 824 831

Loans available for sale 4177 4177

Loans net of allowance for loan losses 570843 568309

Bank owned life insurance 11518

Financial liabilities

Deposits $591014 $576671

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and federal

funds purchased 1372 1386

Borrowings 48000 48000

As of December 31 2007

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 9210 9210

Federal funds sold and interest earning bank balances 69 69

Investment securities available for sale 61115 61115

Loans available for sale 5035 5035

Loans net of allowance for loan losses 509337 513995

Bank owned life insurance 6000 6000

Financial liabilities

Deposits $529105 $525989

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and federal

funds purchased 9458 9460

Borrowings 15000 14785
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Note 17 Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

Unaudited condensed financial data by quarter for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 is as

follows dollars in thousands except per share data

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after

provision for loan

losses

Noninterest income

Noninterest expense

Income loss before

income taxes

Income tax expense

benefit

Net income loss

Accretion of preferred

stock

Preferred dividends

accrued

Net income loss available

to common

stockholders

Earnings loss per

common share1

Basic

For the Year Ended December 312008 For the Year Ended December 312007

Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

9248 9523 9504 10275 10977 10763 10009 8991

3889 4216 4582 5218 5363 5197 4767 4348

5359 5307 4922 5057 5614 5566 5242 4643

4280 615 940 685 1035 860 832 663

1079 4692 3982 4372 4579 4706 4410 3980

1095 1111 1260 1358 1016 1119 1100 1059

4463 5057 4483 4509 4426 4281 3976 3528

2289 746 759 1221 1169 1544 1534 1511

821 236 251 432 390 602 606 620

1468 510 508 789 779 942 928 891

27

105

1600$ 510 508 789 779 942 928 891

0.32$ 0.10 0.10 0.16 0.16 0.19 0.18 0.18

Diluted 0.32$ 0.10 0.10 0.15 0.15 0.18 0.17 0.16

Weighted average shares

outstanding1

Basic 4997027 4997027 4997027 4997027 4997027 4988197 4984529 4984529

Diluted 4997027 5188698 5248856 5256327 5291732 5366787 5414185 5446481

All share and per share amounts have been adjusted for stock splits

Note 18 Subsequent Event

On February 16 2009 1st Financial and ABT Financial Corporation ABT the parent company of

Alliance Bank Trust Company entered into definitive agreement whereby ABT Financial Corporation will

merge with and become part of 1st Financial Services Corporation Under the terms of the agreement ABT
stockholders will exchange each of their approximately 2678205 shares of common stock and 369636 stock

options for 1.175 1st Financial common shares and the approximately 369636 stock options would be exchanged

for options to purchase shares of 1st Financial common stock on the same basis The merger is designed to be

tax free exchange Cash will be paid in lieu of fractional shares The terms of exchange represent pro forma
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ownership in the resulting combined institution of approximately 37.8% and 62.2% for ABT and Pt Financial

stockholders respectively on diluted basis Closing of the merger which is expected to occur in the second or

third quarter of 2009 is subject to certain conditions including approval by the stockholders of both companies

and regulatory approval

NOTE 19 Parent Company Financial Information

Following is condensed financial information of 1st Financial Services Inc parent company only Since

1st Financial Services was formed in May 2008 no prior period information is presented

Condensed Balance Sheet

December 312008

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5366

Investment in subsidiaries 57207

Total assets $62573

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Accounts payable and accrued expense

Shareholders equity 62570

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $62573

Condensed Statement of Income

For the year ended

December 312008

Income

Total income

Expenses

Interest expense 47

Other
expenses

439

Total expenses 486

Loss before income taxes and equity in undistributed net loss of subsidiary 486
Income tax provision

Loss before equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary 486
Equity in undistributed net loss of subsidiary 225

Netloss $711
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Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended

December 312008

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Netloss 711
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used for operating activities

Equity in undistributed net loss of subsidiaries 225

Increase in accrued
expenses

Net cash used for operating activities 483

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Investment in subsidiary 10520

Net cash used for investing activities 10520

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Proceeds from the issuance of preferred stock 15353

Proceeds from the issuance of common stock warrants 1016

Net cash provided by financing activities 16369

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5366

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents end of year 5366
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ITEM Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting And Financial Disclosure

Not applicable

ITEM 9AT Controls and Procedures

Our management with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer has

evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures in accordance

with Section 13a 15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act Based on the evaluation our

chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that as of the end of the period covered by this

report our disclosure controls and procedures are effective in enabling us to record process sunmiarize and

report in timely manner the information required to be disclosed in periodic reports we file under the Exchange

Act

It should be noted that the design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about

the likelihood of future events and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated

goals under all potential future conditions regardless of how remote

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting is included on page 59 of this report on

Form 10-K

No change in our internal control over financial reporting has occurred during the Banks fourth fiscal

quarter of 2008 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over

financial reporting

ITEM 9B Other Information

Not applicable
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PART ifi

ITEM 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Directors and Executive Officers The information regarding our directors and executive officers is

incorporated by reference from the information under the headings Proposal Election of Directors and

Executive Officers in our definitive Proxy Statement to be distributed in connection with our 2009 annual

meeting of shareholders

Audit Committee Information regarding our audit committee is incorporated by reference from the

information under the captions Committees of Our Board General and Audit Committee in our definitive

Proxy Statement to be distributed in connection with our 2009 annual meeting of shareholders

Audit Committee Financial Expert Information about our Board of Directors determination as to

whether the Bank has financial expert serving on its audit committee is incorporated by reference from the

information under the caption Committees of Our Board Audit Committee Audit Committee Financial

Expert in our definitive proxy statement to be distributed in connection with our 2009 annual meeting of

shareholders

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance Information regarding compliance by our

directors executive officers and principal shareholders with the reporting requirements of Section 16a of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is incorporated by reference from the information under the caption Section

16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in our definitive Proxy Statement to be distributed in

connection with our 2009 annual meeting of shareholders

Code of Ethics Our Board of Directors has adopted Code of Ethics that applies to the Banks directors

and to all our executive officers including without limitation our chief executive officer and chief financial

officer copy will be provided without charge to any person upon request Requests for copies should be

directed by mail to Roger Mobley Chief Financial Officer at 101 Jack Street Hendersonville North Carolina

28792 or by telephone to 828 6973100

ITEM 11 Executive Compensation

Information regarding compensation paid or provided to our executive officers and directors is incorporated

by reference from the information under the headings Executive Compensation and Director Compensation

in our definitive Proxy Statement to be distributed in connection with our 2009 annual meeting of shareholders is

incorporated into this Report by reference
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ITEM 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

Beneficial Ownership of Securities Information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock

by our directors executive officers and principal shareholders is incorporated by reference from the information

under the caption Beneficial Ownership of Our Common Stock in our definitive Proxy Statement to be

distributed in connection with our 2009 annual meeting of shareholders is incorporated into this Report by

reference

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans The following table summarizes

all compensation plans and individual compensation arrangements which were in effect on December 31 2008

and under which shares of the Banks common stock have been authorized for issuance

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Nwnber of shares Number of shares remaining
to be issued upon Weighted-average available for future issuance under equity

exercise of exercise price of compensation plans excluding
Plan category outstanding options outstanding options shares reflected in column

Equity compensation plans approved by

the Companys security holders 888582 $8.58 327706

Equity compensation plans not approved

by the Companys security holders

Total 888582 $8.58 327706

Adjustedfor stock splits

ITEM 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information regarding transactions between us and our directors and executive officers is incorporated by

reference from the information under the caption Transactions with Related Persons of our definitive Proxy

Statement to be distributed in connection with our 2009 annual meeting of shareholders is included into this

Report by reference

Information regarding our independent directors is incorporated by reference from the information under the

caption Corporate Governance Director Independence in our definitive Proxy Statement to be distributed in

connection with our 2009 annual meeting of shareholders

ITEM 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from the information under the caption

Services and Fees During 2008 and 2007 in our definitive Proxy Statement to be distributed in connection with

our 2009 annual meeting of shareholders
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PART IV

ITEM 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statements The following financial statements are included in Item of this Report

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2008 and 2007

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity and Comprehensive Income Loss for the

Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006

Notes to Financial Statements December 31 2008 and 2007

Exhibits An Exhibit index listing exhibits that are being filed or furnished with or incorporated by

reference into this Report appears immediately following the signature page and is incorporated herein

by reference

Financial statement schedules No separate financial statement schedules are being filed as all required

schedules either are not applicable or are contained in the financial statements listed above or in Item

of this Report
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15d of the Exchange Act the registrant caused this report to be signed on

its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

1ST FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION

Date March 27 2009 By Is Gregory Gibson

Gregory Gibson

Chief Executive Officer

In accordance with the Exchange Act this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf

of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature ThIe Date

Is Lee Beason Executive Vice President COO March 23 2009

Lee Beason
and Director

Is William Burton Vice Chairman and Director March 23 2009

William Burton

Is Michael Foster Director March 23 2009

Michael Foster

Is/ Gregory Gibson Chief Executive Officer and March 23 2009

Gregory Gibson
Director

Is James Kirkpatrick Director March 23 2009

James Kirkpatrick

Is Steve McManus Director March 24 2009

Steve McManus

Is Roger Mobley Executive Vice President CFO March 23 2009

Roger Mobley

Is Van Phillips Director March 23 2009

Van Phillips

Is Vincent Rees President and Director March 23 2009

Vincent Rees

Is Bradley Schnyder Chairman and Director March 23 2009

Bradley Schnyder

Is Catherine Schroader Director March 23 2009

Catherine Schroader

Is John Sheiry Director March 23 2009

John Sheiry
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Exhibit

Number Description

2.01 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of February 16 2009 by and between 1st Financial Services

Corporation and ABT Financial Corporation filed herewith

3.01 Registrants Articles of Incorporation as amended filed herewith

3.02 Registrants Bylaws incorporated herein by reference from exhibits to Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K filed May 30 2008

4.01 Form of Certificate for the Series Preferred Stock incorporated by reference from exhibits to

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 18 2008

4.02 Warrant filed November 14 2008 for the purchase of shares of Common Stock incorporated by

reference from exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 18 2008

10.01 Employment Agreement between Registrant and Gregory Gibson incorporated by reference from

exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 18 2008

10.02 Employment Agreement between Registrant and Lee Beason incorporated by reference from

exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 18 2008

10.03 Employment Agreement between Registrant and Peggy Denny incorporated by reference from

exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 18 2008

10.04 Employment Agreement between Registrant and Vincent Rees incorporated by reference from

exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 18 2008

10.05 Employment Agreement between Registrant and Roger Mobley incorporated by reference from

exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 2009

10.06 Amended Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between the Bank and Gregory Gibson

incorporated by reference from exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed

February 2009

10.07 Amended Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between the Bank and Vincent Rees incorporated

by reference from exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 2009

10.08 Amended Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between the Bank and Peggy Denny incorporated

by reference from exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 2009

10.09 Amended Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between the Bank and Lee Beason incorporated

by reference from exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 2009

10.10 Amended Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between the Bank and Lee Beason incorporated

by reference from exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 2009

10.11 Split Dollar Insurance Plan Election Form and Policy Endorsement between the Bank and Mary
Dopko incorporated by reference from exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed

May 30 2008

10.12 Salary Continuation Agreement between the Bank and Gregory Gibson incorporated by reference

from exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 30 2008

10.13 Salary Continuation Agreement between the Bank and Vincent Rees incorporated by reference

from exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 30 2008

10.14 Salary Continuation Agreement between the Bank and Peggy Denny incorporated by reference

from exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 30 2008

10.15 Salary Continuation Agreement between the Bank and Lee Beason incorporated by reference

from exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 30 2008

10.16 Salary Continuation Agreement between the Bank and Kirk Robinson incorporated by reference

from exhibits to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 30 2008

10.17 Employee Stock Option Plan incorporated by reference from exhibits to Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K filed May 30 2008
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Exhibit 31.01

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Gregory Gibson certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of 1st Financial Services Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules l3a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules l3a-l5f and 15d-15f for the Registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the

period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter
in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over fmancial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process
summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Is Gregory Gibson

Gregory Gibson

Chief Executive Officer

March 27 2009



Exhibit 31.02

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Roger Mobley certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of 1st Financial Services Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain
any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the Registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the

period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our coclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Is Roger Mobley

Roger Mobley

Chief Financial Officer

March 27 2009



Exhibit 32.01

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

17 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of 1st Financial Services Corporation the Company for

the period ended December 31 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof

the Report Gregory Gibson as Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Roger Mobley as Chief

Financial Officer of the Company each hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant

to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents
in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of the Bank

Is Gregory Gibson

Gregory Gibson

Chief Executive Officer

March 27 2009

Is Roger Mobley

Roger Mobley

Chief Financial Officer

March 27 2009

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall

not except to the extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 be deemed filed by the Bank for purposes

of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Bank and will be

retained by the Bank and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request
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